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GARFIELD PUBLIC SCHOOLS

125 OUTWATER LANE, GARFIELD, NEW JERSEY 07026-2693

NICHOLAS L. PERRAPATO 973-340-5007
SUPERINTENDENT FAX: 973-340-4620

November 3, 2011

Mr. Kenneth Conte, President
Members of the Board of Education
Garfield Public Schools

125 Outwater Lane

Garfield, New Jersey 07026

Dear Board Members:

The Comprehensive Annual Financial Report of the Garfield Public Schools (District) for the
fiscal year ended June 30, 2011, is hereby submitted. Responsibility for both the accuracy
of the data and completeness and fairness of the presentation, including all disclosures,
rests with the management of the Board of Education. To the best of our knowledge and
belief, the data presented in this report is accurate in all material respects and is reported
in a manner designed to present fairly the financial positions and results of operations of the
various funds of the district. All disclosures necessary to enable the reader to gain an
understanding of the district’s financial activities have been included.

The Government Accounting Standards Board (GASB) requires that management provide a
narrative introduction, overview and analysis to accompany the basic financial statements
in the form of Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A). This letter of transmittal is
designed to complement the MD&A and should be read in conjunction with it. Garfield
Public School’s MD&A can be found immediately following the “Independent Auditor’s
Report.”

The Comprehensive Annual Financial Report is presented in four sections: 1) introductory;
2) financial; 3) statistical; and 4) single audit. The introductory section includes this
transmittal letter, the district’s organizational chart and a list of principal officials. The
financial section includes the Independent Auditors’ Report, the MD&A, and the basic
financial statements including the district-wide financial statements presented in
conformity with Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 34. The basic
financial statements also include individual fund financial statements, notes to the basic
financial statements, and required supplemental information (RSI). The statistical section
includes selected financial and demographic information, generally presented on a
multi-year.

WE ARE AN AFFIRMATIVE ACTION / EQUAL OPPORTUNITY EMPLOYER
We Do Not Discriminate As To Age, Race, Creed, National Crigin, Gender, Sexual Orientation, Or Disability
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The district is required to undergo an annual single audit in conformity with the provisions
of the Single Audit Act and the U. S. Office of Management and Budget Circutar A-133. “
Audits of States, Local Governments and Non-Profit Organizations, and the State Treasurer
Circular OMB 04-04.” Information related to this single audit, including the auditor’s report
on the internal control structure and compliance with applicable taws and regulations and
findings and recommendations, are included in the single audit section of this report.

1. REPORTING ENTITY AND ITS SERVICES: The Garfield School District is an independent
reporting entity within the criteria adopted by the Government Accounting Standards
Board (GASB). All funds and account groups of the district are included in this
report. The Garfield Board of Education and all its schools constitute the district’s
reporting entity.

The district provides a full range of educational services appropriate to grade levels
Preschool through grade 12. These include advanced placement, regular and
vocational, as well as special education for students with disabilities. The district
completed the 2010/11 fiscal year with an enrollment of 5050 students. The
following details the changes in the student enrollment of the district over the last 10
years.

AVERAGE DAILY ENROLLMENT

Fiscal Year Student Enrollment
2010/11 5050
2009/10 4928
2008/09 4850
2007/08 4614
2006/07 4624
2005/06 4812
2004/05 4479
2003/04 4376
2002/03 4221
2001/02 4035

2, ECONOMIC CONDITION AND OUTLOOK: The Garfield area is experiencing a period of
average economic development and expansion. Although several small commercial
malls continue to flourish, there has been a lack of expansion and development of
major commercial properties. The local tax levy has not significantly increased for
nine of the last ten years, thereby enabling a stabilization of the tax rate for property
owners.

3. MAJOR INITIATIVES: The 2011/12 budget of the Garfield Public Schools will focus on
continued implementation of the New Jersey Core Curriculum Content Standards.
The district had completed its twelfth year of Whole School Reform. The elementary
schools utilized Achievement Success during the 2010/11 school year as their Whole
School Reform Model. The major focus was Language Arts Writing, and aligning the
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Science and Social Studies curricuta to the content standards.

The district has provided professional development working directly with all local
colleges and universities and updated our technology initiatives with new computers,
and SMART boards. In addition, all student report cards, lesson plans and grade
books will be accessible on-line. All student information will be readily available to
all parents through our parent portal. After-school and expanded summer
enrichment was made available to all students.

Educational Vistas is addressing our improvements with a focus on the
staff/curriculum and assessment development at the elementary, middle schoot and
high school levels. Instructional practices included integrating differentiated
learning opportunities, assessment summaries and software systems. New textbooks
continue to be purchased in content areas that offer on-line capabilities. The high
school has reorganized into Small Thematic Learning Communities, working directly
with the Princeton Learning Center. Advanced Placement courses of study continue
to be made available in each major academic discipline.

INTERNAL ACCOUNTING CONTROLS: Management of the district is responsible for
establishing and maintaining an internal control structure designed to ensure that the
assets of the district are protected from loss, theft or misuse, and to ensure that
adequate accounting data are compiled to allow for the preparation of financial
statements in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles. The
internal control structure is designed to provide reasonable, but not absolute,
assurance that these objectives are met. The concept of reasonable assurance
recognizes that: 1) the cost of a control should not exceed the benefits tikely to be
derived; and 2) the valuation of costs and benefits requires estimates and
judgements by management.

As a recipient of Federal and State financial assistance, the district also is responsible
for ensuring that an adequate internal control structure is in place to ensure
compliance with applicable laws and regulations related to those programs. This
internal control structure is also subject to periodic evaluation by the district’s
management.

As part of the district’s single audit described eartier, tests are made to determine
the adequacy of the internal control structure, including that portion related to
Federal and State financial assistance programs, as well as to determine that the
district has complied with applicable laws and regulations.

BUDGETARY CONTROLS: The district also maintains budgetary controls. The
objective of these budgetary controls is to ensure compliance with legal provisions
embodied in the annual appropriated budget approved by the voters of the
municipality. Annual appropriated budgets are adopted for the general fund and
special revenue fund. Project-length budgets are approved for the capital
improvements accounted for in the capital projects fund. The final budget amount
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10.

as amended for the fiscal year is reflected in the financial section. An encumbrance
accounting system is used to record outstanding purchase commitments on a line item
basis. Open encumbrances at year-end are either canceled or are included as
re-appropriations of fund balance in the subsequent year. Those amounts to be
re-appropriated are reported as reservations of fund balance at June 30, 2011.

ACCOUNTING SYSTEM AND REPORTS: The district’s accounting records reflect U.S.
generally accepted accounting principles, as promulgated by the Governmental
Accounting Standards Board (GASB). The accounting system of the district is
organized on the basis of funds and account groups. These funds are explained in
“Notes to the Basic Financial Statement.”

CASH MANAGEMENT: The investment policy of the district is guided in large part by
State statute as detailed in “Notes to the Basic Financial Statements.” The district
has adopted a cash management plan which requires it to deposit public funds in
public depositories protected from loss under the provisions of the Governmental Unit
Deposit Protection Act (GUDPA). GUDPA was enacted in 1970 to protect the
Governmental Units from a loss of funds on deposit with a failed banking institution in
New Jersey. The law requires governmental units to deposit public funds only in
public depositories located in New Jersey, where the funds are secured in accordance
with the Act.

RISK MANAGEMENT: The Board carries various forms of insurance, including but not
limited to general liability, automobile liability and comprehensive/collision, hazard
and theft insurance on property and contents, and fidelity bonds.

OTHER INFORMATION: Independent Audit - State statutes require an annual audit by
independent certified public accountants or registered municipal accountants. The
accounting firm of Lerch Vinci & Higgins, LLP was selected by the Board. In addition
to meeting the requirements set forth in State statutes, the audit also was designed
to meet the requirements of the Single Audit Act of 1984, the Single Audit Act
Amendments of 1996 and the related OMB Circular A-133 and State Treasury Circular
OMB 04-04. The auditors’ report on the general purpose financial statements and
combining and individual fund statements and schedules is included in the financial
section of this report. The auditors’ reports related specifically to the single audit
are included in the single audit section of this report.

ACKNOWLEDGMENTS: We would like to express our appreciation to the members of
the Garfield School Board for their concern in providing fiscal accountability to the
citizens and taxpayers of the schoot district and thereby contributing their full
support to the development and maintenance of our financial operation. The
preparation of this report could not have been accomplished without the efficient
and dedicated services of our financial and accounting staff.
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Respectfully submitted,
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Superintendent of Schools Business Administrator/Board Secretary
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

Honorable President and Members

of the Board of Trustees
Garfield Board of Education
Garfield, New Jersey

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each
major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Garfield Board of Education, as of and for the fiscal year
ended June 30, 2011, which collectively comprise the Board of Education’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of
contents. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Board of Education’s management. Our responsibility is to
express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America; the
standards applicable to financial audits contained in the Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller
General of the United States and audit requirements as prescribed by the Division of Finance and Regulatory
Compliance, Department of Education, State of New Jersey. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit
to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit
includes consideration of internal control over financial reporting as a basis for designing audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Garfield
Board of Education’s internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also
includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements,
assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinions.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to previously present fairly, in all material respects, the respective
financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, cach major fund, and the aggregate
remaining fund information of the Garfield Board of Education as of June 30, 2011, and the respective changes in
financial position and cash flows, where applicable, thereof for the fiscal year then ended in conformity with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated November 1, 2011 on our
consideration of the Garfield Board of Education’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance
with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is
to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing,
and not to provide an opinion on the internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral
part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards and should be considered in assessing the
results of our audit.




Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management’s discussion and
analysis and budgetary comparison information be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such
information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards
Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an
appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required
supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America,
which consisted of inquiriecs of management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the
information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other
knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any
assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an
opinion or provide any assurance.

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively comprise the
Garfield Board of Education’s basic financial statements as a whole. The introductory section, combining fund financial
statements, financial schedules and statistical section are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a
required part of the basic financial statements. The accompanying schedules of expenditures of federal awards and state
financial assistance are presented for purposes of additional analysis as required by U.S. Office of Management and
Budget Circular A-133, “Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations” and New Jersey OMB’s
Circular 04-04, “Single Audit Policy for Recipients of Federal Grants, State Grants and State Aid”, and are also not a
required part of the basic financial statements. The combining fund financial statements and schedules of expenditures of
federal awards and state financial assistance are the responsibility of management and were derived from and relate
directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. The information
has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional
procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other
records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional
procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the
information is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole. The
introductory section, financial schedules and statistical section have not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied
in the audit of the basic financial statements and, accordingly, we do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on
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LERCH, ViNCI & HIGGINS, L
Certified Public Accountants
Public School Agcountants

Gary W. H%

Public School Accountant
PSA Number CS00814

Fair Lawn, New Jersey
November 1, 2011
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GARFIELD BOARD OF EDUCATION
GARFIELD, NEW JERSEY

Management’s Discussion and Analysis
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2011

This section of the Garfield Board of Education’s annual financial report presents our discussion and analysis of the
District’s financial performance during the fiscal year that ended on June 30, 2011. Please read it in conjunction
with the transmittal letter at the front of this report and the District’s financial statements, which immediately
follows this section.

The Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) is an element of Required Supplementary Information
specified in the Governmental Accounting Standard Board’s (GASB) Statement No. 34 — Basic Financial
Statements — and Management’s Discussion and Analysis — for State and Local Governments. Certain comparative
information between the current year (2010-2011) and the prior year (2009-2010) is required to be presented in the
MD&A.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
Key financial highlights for the 2010-2011 fiscal year include the following:

e The assets of the Garfield Board of Education exceeded its liabilities at the close of the fiscal year by
£71,951,734 (net assets).

+  The District’s total net assets increased $1,107,702.

e OQverall district revenues were $88,168,108. General revenues accounted for $67,004,095 or 76% of all
revenues, Program specific revenues in the form of charges for services and grants and contributions accounted
for $21,164,013 or 24% of total revenues.

o Overall district expenses were $87,060,406. Governmental activities accounted for $85,020,914 or 98% of all
expenses, Business-type activities accounted for $2,039,492 or 2% of all expenses.

e The school district had $85,020,914 in expenses for governmental activities; only $19,034,153 of these
expenses were offset by program specific charges, grants or contributions, General revenues (predominantly
property taxes and unrestricted State aid) of $67,004,095 were adequate to provide for these programs.

s As of the close of the current fiscal year, the District’s governmental funds reported a combined ending fund
deficit of $1,772,421 an increase of $88,278 when compared to the previous year ending fund deficit at June 30,
2010 of $1,860,699,

e The General Fund unassigned fund deficit at June 30, 2011 was $3,024,225 a decrease of $125,202 when
compared with the ending fund deficit at June 30, 2010 of $3,899,023.

e The General Fund unassigned budgetary fund balance at June 30, 2011 was $1,557,448 which represents an
increase of $811,879 when compared to the ending unassigned budgetary fund balance at June 30, 2010 of
$745,569.




GARFIELD BOARD OF EDUCATION
GARFIELD, NEW JERSEY

Management’s Discussion and Analysis
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2011

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial section of the annual report consists of four parts — Independent Auditor’s Report, required
supplementary information which includes the management’s discussion and analysis (this section), the basic
financial statements, and supplemental information. The basic financial statements include two kinds of statements
that present different views of the District:

» The first two statements are district wide financial statements that provide both short-term
and fong-term information about the District’s overall financial status.

» The remaining statements are fund financial statements that focus on individual parts of the
District, reporting the District’s operations in more detail than the district-wide statements.

- The governmental funds statements tell how basic services were financed in the short term as
well as what remains for future spending.

- Proprietary funds statements offer short-term and long-term financial information about the
activities the district operated like businesses.

- Fiduciary funds statements provide information about the financial relationships in which the
District acts solely as a frustee or agent for the benefit of others to whom the resources
belong.

The financial statements also include notes that explain the information in the statements and provide more detailed
data. The following illustration shows how the various parts of this annual report are arranged and related to one
another.

M ! . .
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GARFIELD BOARD OF EDUCATION
GARFIELD, NEW JERSEY

Management’s Discussion and Analysis
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2011

The following table summarizes the major features of the District’s financial statements, including the portion of the
District’s activities they cover and the types of information they contain. The remainder of this overview section of
management’s discussion and analysis highlights the structure and contents of each of the statements.

Major Features of the District-Wide and Fund Financial Statements

District-Wide

Statements

Fund Financial Staternents

Governmental Funds

Proprietary Funds

Fiduciary Funds

Scope

Entire district (except
fiduciary funds

The activities of the district that are
not proprietary or fiduciary, such as
Regutar and Special Education
Instruction and Building maintenance

IActivities the district
operates similar to
private businesses:
Enterprise Fund

Instances in which the district
administers resources held in trust,
such as Unemployment, Payroll
iAgency and Student Activities

Required financial

staterments

Statements of net assets

Statement of activities

Batance Sheet

[Statement of Revenues,
[Expenditures and changes in
fund baiances

Statement of Net Assefs
Statement of revenue,
expenses, and changes in
fund net assets
Statement of cash flows

Statements of Fiduciary assets
and liabilities

lAccounting Basis and

Measurement focus

lAccrual accounting and

economic rescurces focus

IModified accrual accounting

land current financial focus

lAccraal accounting and

economic resources focus

|Acerual accounting
land economic resources

Focus

Type of asset/liability

IAll assets and fiabilities,

(Generally assets expected to be

A1 assets and liabilities,

|A1] assets and liabilities,

when cash is received or

paid

ear; expenditures when goods or

services have been received and the

refated liability is due and payable.

of when cash is received

or paid.

information both financial and capital, used up and iiabilities that come both financial and capital, [both short-term and
short-term and long-term Klue during the year or soon there and short-term and long-  fong-term funds do not
lafter; no capital assets or long-term  lterm currently coatain
iabilities included capital assefs.
Type of inflow/outflow Al revenues and expenses  Revenues for which cash is received  JAll revenues and expenses |All additions and
information during year, regardless of during or soon after the end of the during the year, regardless [dedications during the

vear, regardless of when
cash is received or paid.

District-wide financial statements

The district-wide statements report information about the District as a whole using accounting methods similar to

those used by private-sector companies,

The statement of net assets includes all of the District’s assets and

liabilities. All of the current year’s revenues and expenses are accounted for in the statement of activities regardless
of when cash is received or paid.

The two district-wide statements report the District’s mer assets and how they have changed. Net assets — the
difference between the District’s assets and liabilities — is one way to measure the District’s financial health or

position.




GARFIELD BOARD OF EDUCATION
GARFIELD, NEW JERSEY

Management’s Discussion and Analysis
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2011

District-wide financial statements (continued)

¢ QOver time, increases or decreases in the District’s net assets are an indicator of whether its financial
position is improving or deteriorating, respectively.

*  To assess the overall health of the District you need to consider additional non-financial factors such as
changes in the District’s property tax base and the condition of school buildings and other facilities.

In the district-wide financial statements the District’s activities are shown in two categories;

e Governmental activities — Most of the District’s basic services are included here, such as regular and
special education, transportation, administration and plant operations and maintenance.  Property
taxes and state aids finance most of these activities.

e Business type activities — These funds are used to account for operations that are financed and operated
in a manner similar to private business enterprises. The District’s Food Service Fund is included under
this category.

Fund financial statements

The fund financial statements provide more detailed information about the District’s funds — focusing on its most
significant or “major” funds - not the District as a whole. Funds are accounting devices the District uses to keep
track of specific sources of funding and spending on particular programs:

+ Some funds are required by State law and bond covenants,

¢ The District establishes other funds to control and manage money for particular purposes or
to show that it is properly using certain revenues (federai and state grants),

The District has three kinds of Tfunds:

e Governmental funds — Most of the District’s basic services are included in governmental funds, which generally
focus on (1) how cash and other financial assets that can readily be converted to cash flow in and out and (2) the
balances left at year-end that are available for spending. Consequently, the governmental funds statements provide a
detailed short-term view that helps to determine whether there are more or fewer financial resources that can be
spent in the near future to finance the District’s programs. Because this information does not encompass the
additional long-term focus of the district-wide statements, we provide additional information at the bottom of the
governmental funds statements that explains the relationship (or differences) between them.

» Proprietary funds — Services for which the District charges a fee are generally reported in proprietary funds.
Proprietary funds are reported in the same way as the district-wide statements.
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Fund financial statements (continued)

Enterprise Funds — This fund is established to account for operations that are financed and operated in a
manner similar to private business enterprises. The stated intent is that costs of providing goods or services
to the students on a continuing basis are financed or recovered primarily through user charges, The District
currently has one enterprise fund.

* Food Service (Cafeteria)

e Fiduciary funds — The District is the trustee, or fiduciary, for assets that belong to others. The District is
responsible for ensuring that the assets reported in these funds are used only for their intended purposes and by those
to whom the assets belong. All of the District’s fiduciary activities are reported in a separate statement of fiduciary
assets and liabilities. We exclude these activities from the district-wide financial statements because the District
cannot use these assets to finance its operations.

Notes to the basic financial statements

The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full understanding of the data provided in the
government-wide and fund financial statements. The notes to the basic financial statements can be found following
the basic financial statements.

Other Information

In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes, this report also presents certain required
supplementary information concerning the District’s budget process. The District adopts an annual expenditure
budget for the general, special revenue and debt service funds., A budgetary comparison statement has been
provided for the general and special revenue funds as required supplementary information. The required
supplementary information can be found following the notes to the basic financial statements.

Combining statements and schedules are presented immediately following the major budgetary comparisons.

DISTRICT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS

Net assets may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government’s financial position. In the case of the District,
assets exceeded liabilities by $71,951,734 as of June 30, 2011 and $70,844,032 as of June 30, 2010,
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By far the largest portion of the District’s net assets reflects its investment in capital assets (e.g., land and
improvements, buildings and improvements, vehicles, furniture and equipment); less any related debt used to
acquire those assets that are still outstanding. The District uses these capital assets to provide services to its
students; consequently, these assets are not available for future spending. Although the District’s investment in its
capital assets is reported net of related debt, it should be noted that the resources needed to repay this debt must be
provided from other sources, since the capital assets themselves cannot be used to liquidate these liabilities.

Net Assets
As of June 30, 2011 and 2010

Governmental Activitieg Business-Type Activities Total
2011 2010 2011 2010 2011 2016
Current Asseis $ 2,113,247 % 5,561,786 $ 69539 $§ 636,647 § 2808643 $ 6,198,433
Capital Assets 80,411,046 80,980,569 233,977 208,331 80,645,023 81,188,900
Total Assets 82,524,293 86,542,155 929,373 844978 83,453,666 87,387,333
Long-Term Liabilities 7,599,928 9,090,381 7,599,928 9,090,381
Other Liabilities 3,893,937 7,438,900 8,047 14,020 3,902,004 7,452,920
Total Liabilities 11,493,885 16,529,281 8,047 14,020 11,501,932 16,543,301
Net Assets
Invested in capital assets, net of
related debt 80,166,759 80,522,246 233,977 208,331 80,400,736 80,730,577
Restricted 6,113 605,120 6,113 605,120
Unrestricted (Deficit) (9,142,464) (11,114,292) 687,349 622,627 (8,455,115) (10,491,665)
Total Net Assets $ 71,030,408 $ 70,013,074 $ 921326 § 830,958 $ 71,951,734 § 70,844,032

A small portion of the District’s Net Assets, less than one petcent, represents resources that are subject to external
restrictions on how they may be used. The remaining balance of unrestricted net assets is in a deficit position and is
a result of how the district expenses its long-term liabilities for governmental activities such as compensated
absences and claims and judgements on the District-wide financial statements. These long-term liabilities are
recorded and expensed for governmental activities at the time the liabilities are incurred regardless of when payment
is due. However, the revenue for these long-term liabilities of governmental activities is not raised until these
liabilities are included in the District budget when compensated absences and claims and judgements for
governmental activities are due and payable.
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Revenues
Program Revenues
Charges for Services
Operating Grants and Contributions
Capital Grants and Contributions
General Revenues
Property Taxes

State and Federal Aid
Other

Total Revenues

Expenses
Instruction
Regular
Special Education
Other Instruction
School Sponsored Activities and Athietics
Support Services
Student and Instruction Related Services
General Administrative Services
School Administrative Services
Central and Other Support Services
Plant Operations and Maintenance
Pupil Transportation

Interest on Long-Term Debt
Food Services

Total Expenses
Change in Net Assets
Net Assets, Beginning of Year

Net Assets, End of Year

Change in Net Assets

For The Years Ended June 30, 2011 and 2010

Governmental Activities Business-Type Activities Total

2011 2010 2011 2010 011 2010
$ 529343 § 573,546 $ 529343 § 573,546
$ 17,568,071 § 25,479,094 1,600,517 1,557,092 19,168,588 27,036,186
1,466,082 5,369,292 27,000 1,466,082 5,396,292
23,641,953 22,506,019 23,641,953 22,506,019
42,921,974 36,535,365 42,921,974 36,535,365
440,168 899,634 - - 440,168 899,634
86,038,248 90,789,404 2,129,860 2,157,638 88,168,108 92,947,042
36,239,516 36,118,205 36,239,516 36,118,205
17,197,739 15,662,249 17,197,739 15,662,249
2,753,452 2,729,906 2,753,452 2,729,906
877,124 929,972 877,124 929,972
10,203,569 11,792,021 10,203,569 11,792,021
1,230,765 1,447,816 1,230,765 1,447,816
4,247,301 4,650,126 4,247,301 4,650,126
812,309 868,661 812,309 868,661
8,961,416 9,314,342 8,961,416 9,314,342
2,471,517 2,197,865 2,471,517 2,197,865
26,206 42 867 26,206 42,867
- - 2,039,492 1,994,578 2,039,492 1,994,578
85,026,914 85,754,030 2,639,492 1,994,578 87,060,406 87,748,608
1,017,334 5,035,374 90,368 163,060 1,107,702 5,198,434
70,013,074 64,977,700 830,958 667,898 70,844,032 65,645,598
$ 71,030,408 $ 70,013,074 $ 921,326 $ 830,958 §$ 71,951,734 $ 70,844,032
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Governmental Activities. The District’s total governmental activities’ revenues, which includes State and Federal
grants, were $86,038,248 and $90,789,404 for the years ended June 30, 2011 and June 30, 2010, respectively.
Property taxes of $23,641,953 and $22,506,019 which represented 27% and 25% of the revenues for the fiscal years
ended June 30, 2011 and 2010, respectively. Another significant portion of revenues came from State aid; total
State, federal and local aid and grants was $61,956,127 and $67,383,751 which represented 72% and 74% of the
revenues for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2011 and 2010, respectively. State, federal and local aid and grants are
reported as operating and capital grants and contributions if specific to a program or as general revenues if not
specific to a program. In addition, other miscellaneous income is earned which includes items such as interest, prior
year refunds and other miscellaneous items.

The total cost of all governmental activities programs and services were $85,020,914 and $85,754,030 for the years
ended June 30, 2011 and 2010, respectively. The District’s expenses are predominantly related to educating and
caring for students. Instruction totaled $57,067,831 and $55,440,332 (67% and 65%) of total expenditures for the
fiscal years ended June 30, 2011 and 2010, respectively. Support services, totaled $27,926,877 and $30,270,831
(33% and 35%) of total expenditures.
Revenues by Source- Governmental Activities
For Fiscal Year 2011

Oth eli 1% Property

Federal§

State Aid

and Grants
72%

Total governmental activities revenues for the year ended June 30, 2011 exceeded expenses, increasing net assets by
$1,017,334 over the previous year from $70,013,074 at June 30, 2010 to $71,030,408 at June 30, 2011.

The cost of all governmental activities this year was $85,020,914 a decrease of $733,116 (1%) over the previous
year.

e The federal and state governments subsidized certain programs with operating and capital grants and
contributions of $19,034,153 a decrease of $11,814,233 from the previous year. The state contributions from
the Educational Facilities Construction and Financing Aid Program which financed capital project costs
decreased $4,341,639 from the previous year; the District also realized a decrease in Federal and State aid for
operating grants and contributions of $7,911,023.

e District’s costs in the amount of $23,641,953, were provided from property taxes, an increase of $1,135,934

(5%). This increase was a result of additional property taxes levied to finance increases in District operating
costs.
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e District’s costs in the amount of $42,921,974 were provided from unrestricted federal and state aid an increase
of $6,386,609 (17%). The increase was the result of an increase in unrestricted State Aid which replaced the

loss of Federal Aid from the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act (“ARRA”) that was allocated to
program revenues in 2010,

e Other general revenues totaling $440,168 were provided from miscellaneous local sources, a decrease of
$459,466.

Expenditures by Type- Governmental Activities
For Fiscal Year 2011
Studentand
Instruction
Services 12%
Plant Oper. &
Maint. 11%

Pupil Transp.
3% )

School,
General &
Central j
Administration
7%
Instruction
67%

For the most part, total expenses remained flat in 2011, a decrease of less than 1%. An increase was noted in special
education instruction related costs (10%) which were mainly attributable to tuition costs associated with expenses
for the out of district placement of classified special education students. This increase was offset by a decrease in
costs related to student and instruction related services (13%). Another significant area, plant operation and
maintenance decreased 4%. The decrease was mainly attributable to a reduction of salaries in both required
maintenance and other operation and maintenance of plant.

Net Cost of Governmental Activities. The District’s total cost of services were $85,020,914 and $85,754,030 for
the fiscal years ended June 30, 2011 and 2010, respectively. After applying program revenues, derived from
operating grants and contributions of $17,568,071 and $25,479,094 and capital grants and contribution of
$1,466,082 and $5,369,292, for the years ended June 30, 2011 and 2010, respectively; the net cost of services of the
District were $65,986,761 and $54,905,644 for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2011 and 2010, respectively.

11
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Total and Net Cost of Governmental Activities

Net Cost
Total Cost of Services {Revenue) of Services
2011 2010 2011 2010
Instruction
Regular $ 36,239,516 $36,118205 § 27,977,649 § 27,322,884
Special Education 17,197,739 15,662.249 11,687,623 5,191,297
Other Instruction 2,753,452 2,729 906 1,792,060 2,122,064
School Sponsored Activities and Athletics 877,124 929972 877,124 929972
Support Services
Student and Instruction Related Services 10,203,569 11,792,021 7,620,043 7,791,062
QGeneral Administrative Services 1,230,765 1,447 816 1,148,832 1,447.816
School Administrative Services 4,247,301 4,650,126 3,963,056 4,363,639
Central and Other Support Services 812,309 868 661 812,309 868,661
Plant Operations and Maintenance 8,961,416 9,314342 7,665,217 3,022378
Pupil Transportation 2,471,517 2,197,865 2,416,642 1,803,004
Interest on Long-Term Debt 26,206 42 867 26,206 42 867
Total $ 85,020,914 § 85,754,030 $ 65,986,761 § 54,905,644

Business-Type Activities — The District’s total business-type activities revenues were $2,129,860 and $2,157,638
for the years ended June 30, 2011 and June 30, 2010, respectively. Charges for services accounted for 25% and
27% of total revenues and operating grants and contributions accounted for 75% and 72% of total revenue for the
years ended June 30, 2011 and 2010, respectively. Capital grants accounted for 1% of the total revenue for the year
ended June 30, 2011,

The total cost of all business-type activities programs and services were $2,039,492 and $1,994,578 for the years
ended June 30, 2011 and 2010, respectively. The District’s expenses are related to Food Service programs provided
to all students, teachers and administrators within the District.

The business-type activities revenues for the year ended June 30, 2011 surpassed expenses, increasing net assets by
$90,368 over the previous year from $830,958 at June 30, 2010 to $921,326 at June 30, 2011. The cost of business-
type activities this year was $2,039,492 an increase of $44,914 less than (1%) over the previous year.

e Some of the cost was paid by users of the Districts food service program for a total of $529,343 an decrease
of $44,203 (8%).

¢ The Federal and State governments subsidized the food service program with grants and contributions of
$1,600,517 an increase of $43,425 less than (1%).

Increases in expenses reflected the increased cost of sales (i.e., food and supply costs) associated with higher food
prices.

12
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FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE DISTRICT’S FUNDS

As noted eatlier, the District uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal
requirements.

Governmental Funds

The focus of the District’s governmental funds is to provide information on near-term inflows, outflows, and
balances of spendable resources. Such information is useful in assessing the District’s financing requirements. In
particular, unassigned fund balance may serve as a useful measure of the District’s net resources available for
spending at the end of the fiscal year.

The financial performance of the District as a whole is reflected in its governmental funds as well. As the District
completed the year, its governmental funds reported a combined fund deficit of $1,772,421 for the year ended June
30, 2011 compared to a fund deficit of $1,860,699 for the year ended June 30, 2010, a decrease in the deficit of
$88,278 for the year.

Revenues for the District’s governmental funds were $86,120,181 and $90,870,475, while tofal expenses were
$86,031,903 and $91,544,325 for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2011 and 2010, respectively.

General Fund - The General Fund is the chief operating fund of the District and includes the primary operations in
providing educational services to students from pre-kindergarten through grade 12 including pupil fransportation
activities and capital outlay projects.

The following schedule presents a comparison of General Fund Revenues for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2011
and 2010:

Amount of
June 30, Increase Percent
011 2010 {Decrease) Change
Local Sources
Property Tax Levy $ 23,641,953 § 22,506,019 § 1,135,934 5%
Miscellaneous 522,101 980,705 (458,604) -47%
State Sources 49,914,566 44,218,055 5,696,511 13%
Federal Sources 87,959 8,016,807 {7,928,848) -99%
Total General Fund Revenues $ 74,166,579 $ 75,721,586 & (1,555,007) 2%

Local property taxes increased by $1,135,934 or 5% over the previous year. State aid revenues increased
$5.696,511, or 13%, predominantly attributable to a change in the State funding formula and replacement of Federal
ARRA funds during the year. Consequently, revenues from Federal sources decreased significantly by $7,928,848
due to the discontinuation of American Recovery and Reinvestment Act (ARRA) funding in 2011.

13
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The following schedule presents a comparison of General Fund expenditures for the fiscal years ended June 30,
2011 and 2010:

Amount of
June 30, Increase Percent
011 010 (Decrease) Change
[nstruction $ 49,900,247 $ 50,060,805 $ {160,558) 0%

Support Services 23,790,168 25,575,374 (1,785,206) -7%
Debt Service 426,779 533,556 (106,777 20%
Capital Outlay 542,680 1,196,000 {653,320} -55%
Total Expenditures $ 74659874 $ 77,365,735 § (2,705861) -3%

Total General Fund expenditures decreased $2,705,861 or 3% from the previous year. The decrease can be
attributable to decreases in judgements against the school district of approximately $917,000 and salaries associated
with other professional staff within the School Administration Function, $566,000. In addition capital outlay
expenditures decreased $653,320.

Special Revenue Fund - The Special Revenue Fund includes all restricted Federal, State and Local sources utilized
in the operations of the district in providing educational services to students with special needs.

Revenues of the Special Revenue Fund were $11,023,337 and $9,876,985 for the years ended June 30, 2011 and
2010, respectively. State sources accounted for the majority of Special Revenue Fund’s revenue which represented
67% and 74% of the total revenues for the years ended June 30, 2011 and 2010.

Total Special Revenue Fund revenues increased $1,146,352 or 12% from the previous year. State sources increased
$103,161 or 1% and Federal sources increased by $1,031,908 or 40%.

Expenditures of the Special Revenue Fund were $10,441,764 and $8,906,686 for the fiscal years ended June 30,
2011 and 2010, respectively. Instructional expenditures were $7,645,754 and $5,400,070 or 73% and 61% and
expenditures for the support services were $2,260,193 and $3,409,228 or 22% and 38% of the total amounts
expended for the years ended June 30, 2011 and 2010, respectively.

Proprietary Funds

The District maintains an Enterprise Fund to account for activities which are supported in part through user fees.
Enterprise Fund - The District uses an Enterprise Fund to report activities related to the Food Services program.
The District’s Enterprise Fund provides the same type of information found in the district-wide financial statements,

business-type activities, but in more detail. Factors conceming the finances of this Fund have already been
addressed in the discussion of the District’s business-type activities,

14
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GENERAL FUND BUDGETARY HIGHLIGHTS

The District’s budget is prepared according to New Jersey Department of Education guidelines, and is based on
accounting for certain transactions on the budgetary basis and encumbrance accounting, The most significant
difference between the budgetary basis of accounting and generally accepted accounting principles is the legally
mandated revenue recognition of certain deferred state aid payments for budgetary purposes only. The most
significant budgetary fund is the General Fund

o Over the course of the year, the District revised the annual operating budget several times through
appropriation transfers between budget line items.

e Implementing budgets for specially funded projects, which include both Federal and State grants.

» Reinstating prior year purchase orders being carried over as encumbrances.

» Increases in appropriations for significant unbudgeted costs,
General Fund budgetary revenues and other financing sources increasing budgetary fund balance $25,187 from the
previous year. However, after deducting restricted, committed and assigned fund balances, the unassigned

budgetary fund balance increased $811,879 from a $745,569 balance at June 30, 2010 to a $1,557,448 fund balance
at June 30, 2011.

CAPITAL ASSETS

The District’s investment in capital assets for its governmental and business type activities as of June 30, 2011 and
2010 amounted to $80,645,023 and $81,188,900 (net of accumulated depreciation), respectively. The capital assets
consist of land, land improvements, buildings, building improvements, computers, specialized machinery and
various other types of equipment. Depreciation charges for fiscal years 2010-2011 and 2009-2010 amounted to
$2,578,285 and $2,456,676 for governmental activities and $36,919 and $30,662 for business-type activities,
respectively, This increase in governmental activity depreciation was due to the depreciation expense for various
building improvements.

Capital Assets at June 30, 2011 and 2010
{Net of Accumulated Depreciation)

Governmental Activities Business-Type Activities Total
2011 2010 2011 2080 2011 2010
Land and Land Improvements § 7,797,302 § 7,808,872 $ 7,797,302 § 7,808,872
Building and Building Improvements 64,322,122 65,524,552 64,322,122 65,524,552
Machinery and Equipment 2,307,472 1,856,142 § 233977 § 208,331 2,541,449 2,064,473
Construction in Progress 5,984,150 5,791,003 - - 5,984,150 5,791,003
Total Net Assets $ 80,411,046 $ 80,980,569 $ 233,977 $ 208,331 $ 80,645,023 $ 81,188,900

Additional information on the District’s capital assets is presented in Note 3 of this report.
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LONG TERM LIABILITIES

At June 30, 2011 and 2010, the District’s long-term liabilities consisted of capital leases payable of $244,287 and
$458,323, lease purchase agreements of $90,035 and $268,446, compensated absences payable of $7,265,606 and
$8.,363,612, respectively,

Additional information of the District’s fong-term liabilities is presented in Note 3 of this report.

ECONOMIC FACTORS AND NEXT YEAR’S BUDGET

While many factors influence the District’s future, the availability of State funding, special education needs, capital
improvements and the economy will have the most impact on educational and fiscal decisions in the fature.

Many factors were considered by the District’s administration during the process of developing the fiscal year 20i1-
2012 budget. The primary factors were the District’s projected student population, anticipated state and federal aid
as well as increasing salary and related benefit costs, as well as, increased special education tuition costs.

These indicators were considered when adopting the budget for fiscal year 2011-2012. Budgeted expenditures in the
General Fund increased approximately 3% to $72,111,423 in fiscal year 2011-2012.

CONTACTING THE DISTRICT’S FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT
This financial report is designed to provide our citizens, taxpayers, customers, and investors and creditors with a
general overview of the District’s finances and to demonstrate the District’s accountability for the money it receives.

If you have questions about this report or need additional information contact the School Business Administrator,
Garfield Board of Education, 125 Qutwater Lane, Garfield, NJ 07026.
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GARFIELD BOARD OF EDUCATION

EXHIBIT A-1

STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
AS OF JUNE 30, 2011
Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities Total
ASSETS
Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 70,766 $ 99,506 170,272
Receivables, Net 2,475,374 120,872 2,596,246
Internal Balances (441,226} 441,226
Inventory 33,792 33,792
Other Current Assets 8,333 8,333
Capital Assets, Not Being Depreciated 13,645,768 13,645,768
Capital Assets, Being Depreciated 66,765,278 233,977 66,999,255
Total Assets 82,524,293 929,373 83,453,066

LIABILITIES
Accounts Payable and Other Current Liabilities 2,923,604 2,923,604
Accrued Interest Payable 8,289 8,289
Payable to Other Government 3,939 3,939
Unearned Revenue 958,125 8,047 966,172
Noncurrent Liabilities

Due Within One Year 614,187 614,187

Due Beyond One Year 6,985,741 6,985,741

Total Liabilities 11,493,885 8,047 11,501,932

NET ASSETS
Invested in Capital Assets, Net of Related Debt 80,166,759 233,977 80,400,736
Restricted for:

Capital projects 1 i

Other Purposes 6,112 6,112
Unrestricted (9,142 464) 687,349 (8,455,115)
Total Net Assets 8 71,030,408 5 921,326 71,951,734

The accompanving Notes to the Basic Financial Statements are an Integral Part of this Statement,
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FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS



GARFIELD BOARD OF EDUCATION

ASSETS
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Receivabies, Net
Receivables From Other Governments
Due From Other Funds
Other Current Assets

Total Assets

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities
Accounts Payable
Compensated Absences Payable
Due to Other Funds
Payable to State Government
Deferred Revenue
Gther Liabilities

Total Liabilities

Fund Balances
Restricted
Legally Restricted - Register Audit Recoveries
Capital Reserve Account
Reserved Excess Surplus
Committed
Year End Encumbrances
Assigned
Year End Encumbrances
Designated for Subsequent Year's Expenditures
Unassigned

Total Fund Balances

Total Liabilities and Fund Balances

EXHIBIT B-1

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of
net assets (A-1) are different because:

Capitaf assets used in governmental activities are not financiai
resources and therefore are not reported in the funds. The cost
of the assets is $126,876,657 and the accumulated depreciation

is $46,465,611, 80,411,046
The District has financed capital assets through the issuance of
long-term debt, The interest accrued at year end is: (8,289)
Long-term liahilities, including capital leases and compensated
absences, are not due and payable in the current period and
therefore are not reported as liabilities in the funds.
Capital Leases $ {244,287)
Lease - Purchase Agreements (90,035}
Compensated Absences {7,265,606)
(7,599,928)
Net assets of governmentai activities $ 71,030,408

The accompanying Notes to the Basic Financial Statements are an Iniegral Part of this Statement
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GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
BALANCE SHEET
AS OF JUNE 30,2011
Special Capital Total
General Revenue Prajects Governmental
Fund Fund Fund Funds
$ 70,766 $ 70,766
122,896 3 1,806,930 $ 534,468 2,464,294
909,235 909,235
8,333 8,333
3 1,111,230 b 1,806,930 $ 534,468 $ 3,452,628
$ 1,433,334 $ 260,524 $ 1,693,858
990,821 990,82
386,662 478,699 $ 474,020 1,339,381
3,939 3,939
2,069 895,608 60,448 958,125
70,765 168,160 238,925
2,883,651 1,806,930 534,468 5,225,049
6,112 6,112
1 i
67,127 67,127
812,150 812,150
50,889 50,889
315,525 315,525
(3,024,225) (3,024,225}
(1,772.421) - - (1,772,421
$ 1,111,230 b 1,806,930 $ 534,468




STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

REVENUES

Local Sources
Property Tax Levy
Miscellaneous

Total - Local Sources
State Sources
Federal Sources
Total Revenues

EXPENDITURES
Carrent
Instruction
Regular Instruction
Special Education Instruction
Other Instruction
School Sponsored Activities and Athletics
Support Services
Student and Instruction Related Services
General Administrative Services
School Administrative Services
Central and Other Support Services
Plant Operations and Maintenance
Pupil Transportation
Debt Service
Principal
Interest and Other Charges
Capital Outlay

Total Expenditures

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over (Under) Expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Traasfers In

Traasfers Out

Total Other Financing Sources and Uses

Net Change in Fund Balances

Fund Baiance {Deficit), Beginning of Year

Fund Balance (Deficit), End of Year

GARFIELD BOARD OF EDUCATION
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JFUNE 30, 2011

EXHIBIT B-2

Special Capital Total
General Revenue Projects Governmental
Fund Fund Fund Funds
$ 23,641,953 23,641,953
522,101 $ 28,869 550,970
24,164,054 28,869 - 24,192,923
49,914,566 7,389,676 3 930,265 58,234,507
87,959 3,604,792 3,692,751
74,166,579 11,023,337 930,265 86,120,181
31,442,780 5,093,805 36,536,385
15,283,649 2,038,633 17,322,282
2,283,989 513,316 2,797,303
889,829 889,829
8,397,537 1,944,050 10,341,587
1,238,349 81,933 1,320,282
4,264,495 4,264,495
821,944 821,944
6,691,565 229,571 6,921,136
2,376,278 4,639 2,380,917
392,447 392,447
34,332 34,332
542,680 535,817 930,265 2,008,762
74,659,874 10,441,764 930,265 86,031,903
(493,295) 581,573 - 88,278
581,401 581,401
{581,401y (581,401)
581,401 {581,401) - -
88,106 172 - 88.278
(1.860,527) (172) - (1,860,69%)
$ (1,772,421 & - 3 - (1,772,421)

The accompanying Notes to the Basic Financial Statements are an Integral Part of this Statement.
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EXHIBIT B-3
GARFIELD BOARD OF EDUCATION
RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS STATEMENT OF
REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
WITH THE DISTRICT-WIDE STATEMENTS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

Total net change in fund balances - governmental funds (Exhibit B-2) $ 88,278

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the stateroent of
activities are different because:

Capital outlays to purchase or build capital assets are reported in governmental
funds as expenditures. However, for governmental activities those costs are
shown in the statement and allocated over their estimated useful lives as annual
depreciation expense. This is the amount by which depreciation expense exceeds
capital outlay in the current period.

Capital Outlay $ 2,008,762

Depreciation Expense (2,578,285)
{569,523)

Repayment of debt is an expenditure in the governmental funds,
but it reduces long-term liabilities in the statement of net assets and does not affect
the statement of activities,

Capital Leases 214,036
Lease - Purchase Agreements 178,411
392,447

In the statement of activities, certain operating expenses - compensated absences |
and claims and judgements - are measured by the amounts incurred |
during the year, In the governmental funds, however, expenditures
for these items are measured by the amount of financial resources (used) paid;

Compensated Absences 1,098,006

Interest on long-term debt in the statement of activities differs from the amount
reported in the governmental funds because interest is recorded as an
expenditure in the funds when it is due, and thus requires the use of current
financial resources, In the statement of activities, however, interest expense
is recognized as the interest accrues, regardless of when it is due.

Increase in accrued interest 8,126

Change in net assets of governmental activities 3 1,017,334

The accompanying Notes to the Basic Financial Statements are an Integral Part of this Statement.
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EXHIBIT B-4

GARFIELD BOARD OF EDUCATION

PROPRIETARY FUND
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
AS OF JUNE 30, 2011
Business-Type
Activities -
Enterprise
Fund
Food Service
ASSETS
Current Assets
Cash h 99,506
Intergovernmential Receivable
Federal 115,758
State 2,114
Other 3,000
Due from Other Funds 441,226
Inventory 33,792
Total Current Assets 695,396
Capital Assets
Furniture, Machinery, and Equipment 518,994
Less: Accumulated Depreciation {285,017)
Total Capital Assets 233,977
Total Assets 929,373
LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities
Unearned Revenue 8.047
Total Current Liabilities 8,047
NET ASSETS
Invested in Capital Assets 233,977
Unrestricted 687,349
Total Net Assets ) 921,326

The accompanying Notes to the Basic Financial Statements are an Integral Part of this Statement.
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EXHIBIT B-5

GARFIELD BOARD OF EDUCATION
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES
AND CHANGES IN FUND NET ASSETS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 34, 2011

Business-Type

Activities -
Enterprise
Fund
Food Service
OPERATING REVENUES
Charges for Services
Daily Sales-Reimbursable Programs '
School Lunch Program $ 529,343 |
Total Operating Revenues 529,343
OPERATING EXPENSES
Salaries and Employee Benefits 729,960
Management Fee 137,002
Cost of Sales 1,093,104
Miscellaneous 42,507
Depreciation 36,919
Total Operating Expenses 2,039,492
Operating Loss (1,510,149)
Nonoperating Revenues
State Sources
State School Lunch Program 25,495
Federal Sources
National School Lunch Program 1,243,490
National School Breakfast Program 246,785
Afier School Snack Program 84,747
Total Nonoperating Revenues 1,600,517
Change in Net Assets 90,368
Net Assets, Beginning of Year 830,938
Net Assets, End of Year $ 921,326

The accompanying Notes to the Basic Financial Statements are an Integral Part of this Statement.
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EXHIBIT B-6
GARFIELD BOARD OF EDUCATION
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 34, 2011

Business-Type
Activities -
Enterprise
Fund
Food Service
Cash Flows from Operating Activities

Cash Receipts from Customers $ 526,343

Cash Payments for Employees Salaries and Benefits (729,960)

Cash Payments to Suppliers for Goods and Services (1,172,931)
Net Cash Used for Operating Activities (1,376,548)

Cash Flows from Noncapital Financing Activities

Cash Received from State and Federal Sources 1,484,310
Advances to Other Funds (441,226)
Net Cash Provided By Noncapital
Financing Activities 1,043,084
Cash Flows from Capital and Related Financing Activities
Purchases of Capital Assets (62,565)
Net Cash Used For Capital
and Related Financing Activities (62,565)
Net Decrease in Cash and Cash Equivalents {396,029)
Cash, Beginning of Year 495,535
Cash, End of Year $ 99 506

Recenciliation of Operating Loss to Net Cash Used for

Operating Activities:
Operating Loss b (1,510,149
Adjustments to Reconcile Operating Loss to Net Cash Used for
Operating Activities
Depreciation Expense 36,919
Non Cash Federal Assistance - Food Distribution Program 95,217
Change in Assets and Liabilities
{Increase)/Decrease in Intergovernmental Receivable - Other (3,000)
{(Increase)/Decrease in Inventory 10,438
Increase/{Decrease) in Unecarned Revenue (5,973)
Total Adjustments 133,601
Net Cash Used For Operating Activities 3 {1,376,548)

Noncash Investing, Capital and Financing Activities
Valued Received Food Distribution Program $ 89,244

The accompanying Notes to the Basic Financial Statements are an Integral Part of this Statement.
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EXHIBIT B-7

GARFIELD BOARD OF EDUCATION

FIDUCIARY FUNDS
STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS
AS OF JUNE 30, 2011
Unemployment
Compensation Agency
Irust Fund Fund
ASSETS
Cash $ 589,387 § 96,546
Total Assets $ 589,387 $ 96,546
LIABILITIES
Payable to State Government $ 19,518
Due to Other Funds 8,118 $ 2,962
Acerued Salaries and Wages 11,404
Due to Student Groups - 82,180
Total Liabilities 27,636 $ 96,546
NET ASSETS
Held In Trust For Unemployment
Claims $ 561,751

The accompanying Notes to the Basic Financial Statements are an Integral Part of this Statement.
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EXHIBIT B-8

GARFIELD BOARD OF EDUCATION
FIDUCIARY FUNDS
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

Unemployment
Compensation
Trust Fund
ADDITIONS
Contributions
Employer $ 1,099,000
Employee 62,096
Total Contributions 1,161,096
Investment Earnings
Interest 167
Total Additions 1,161,263
DEDUCTIONS
Unemployment Claims and Contributions 671,751
Total Deductions 671,751
Change in Net Assets 489,512
Net Assets, Beginning of Year 72,239
Net Assets, End of Year $ 561,751

The accompanying Notes to the Basic Financial Statements are an Integral Part of this Statement.
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GARFIELD BOARD OF EDUCATION
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 36, 2011

NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

A. Reporting Entity

The Garfield Board of Education (the “Board” or the “District™) is an instrumnentality of the State of New Jersey, established
to function as an education institution. The Board consists of nine elected officials and is responsible for the fiscal control of
the District. A superintendent is appointed by the Board and is responsible for the administrative control of the District.
Under existing statutes, the Board's duties and powers include, but are not limited to, the development and adoption of a
school program; the establishment, organization and operation of schools; and the acquisition, maintenance and disposition
of school property.

The Board also has broad financial responsibilities, including the approval of the annual budget and the establishment of a
system of accounting and budgetary controls.

The reporting entity is composed of the primary government, component units, and other organizations that are included to
ensure that the financial statements of the District are not misleading. The primary government consists of all funds,
departments, boards and agencies that are not legally separate from the District. For the Garfield Board of Education this
includes general operations, food service and student related activities of the District.

Component units are legally separatc organizations for which the District is financially accountable. The District is
financially accountable for an organization if the District appoints a voting majority of the organization’s governing board
and (1) the District is able to significantly influence the programs or services performed or provided by the organization; or
(2) the District is legally entitled to or can otherwise access the organization’s resources; the District is legally obligated or
has otherwise assumed the responsibility to finance the deficits of, or provide financial support to, the organization; or the
District is obligated for the debt of the organization. Component units may also include organizations that are fiscally
dependent on the District in that the District approves the budget, the issuance of debt or the levying of taxes. Based on the
foregoing criteria, the District has no component units. Furthermore, the District is not includable in any other reporting
entity as a component unit.

B. Basic Financial Statements

The basic financial statements include both district-wide financial statements (based on the District as a whole) and fund
financial statements. Both the district-wide and fund financial statements categorize activities as either governmental
activities or business-type activities.

The district-wide financial statements report information on all of the nonfiduciary activities of the Board of Education. For
the most part, the effect of interfund activity has been removed from these statements. Governmental activities, which
normally are supported by property taxes and intergovernmental revenues, are reported separately from business-type
activities, which rely to a significant extent on fees and charges for support. In the statement of net assets, both the
governmental and business-type activities columns (a) are presented on a consolidated basis by column, and (b) reflect on a
full accrual economic resource basis, which incorporates long-term assets and receivables as well as long-term debt and
obligations.
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GARFIELD BOARD OF EDUCATION
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

NOTE I SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

B. Basic Financial Statements (Continued)

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given function or segment are offset by
program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable with a specific function or segment. Program
revenues include 1) charges to customers or other governmental entities, including other school districts, who purchase, use,
or directly benefit from goods or services provided by a given function or segment and 2) grants and contributions that are
restricted to meeting the operational or capital requirements of a particular function or segment. Property taxes, unrestricted
state aid, federal and state grants for school-based budgeting and other items not properly included among program revenues
are reported instead as general revenues.

Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds, proprietary funds, and fiduciary funds, even though the
fatter are excluded from the district-wide financial statements. Major individual governmental funds and major individual
enterprisc funds are reported as separate columns in the fund financial statements. The District considers all of its
governmental and enterprise funds to be major funds.

C. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting and Financial Statement Presentation

The district-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of
accounting, as are the proprietary fund and fiduciary fund financial statements with the exception of the agency fund which
does not have a measurement focus. All assets and all liabilities associated with these operations (with the exception of the
fiduciary funds) are included on the Statement of Net Assets. Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are
recorded at the time liabilities are incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Property taxes are recognized as
revenues in the year for which they are levied. Grants and similar items are recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility
requirements imposed by the provider have been met.

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources measurement focus and the
modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized when susceptible to accrual (i.e. when they are both
measurable and available). Revenues are considered to be available when they are collectible within the current period ot
soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the current period. For this purpose, the Board considers revenues to be available
if they are collected within 60 days after year-end. Expenditures are recorded when a liability is incurred, as under accrual
basis of accounting, with the exception of debt service expenditures as well as expenditures related to compensated absences
and claims and judgments which are recorded only when payment is due.

Property taxes, tuition, unrestricted state aid, and interest associated with the current fiscal period are all considered to be
susceptible to accrual and so have been recognized as revenues of the current fiscal period. Grants and similar awards are
recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility requirements imposed by the grantor or provider have been met. All other
revenue items are considered to be measurable and available only when cash is received by the District.
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GARFIELD BOARD OF EDUCATION
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

C. Measurement Focus, Basis of Aceounting and Financial Statement Presentation

The District repotts the following major governmental funds:

The general fund is the School District’s primary operating fund. It accounts for all financial resources of the
District, except those to be accounted for in another fund.

The special revenue find accounts for the proceeds of specific revenue sources legally restricted to expenditures for
specified purposes. This fund accounts for federal and state financial programs, with the exception of grants for
major capital projects and the child nutrition programs.

The capital projects fund accounts for the proceeds from the sale of bonds, lease purchases and other revenues used
for the acquisition or construction of major capital facilities and other capital assets.

The District reports the following major proprietary fund which is organized to be self-supporting through user charges:

The food service fund accounts for the activities of the school cafeteria, which provides food service to students as
well as a la carte and catering services for teachers and special events.

Additionally, the government reports the following fund type:

The fiduciary trust fund is used to account for resources legally held in trust for the state unemployment insurance
claims, payroll related activities and student related activities which are supported and controlled by student
organizations and clubs. All resources of the fund, including any earnings on invested resources, may be used to
support the intended purpose. Thete is no requirement that any portion of these resources be preserved as capital.

Private-sector standards of accounting and financial reporting issued prior to December 1, 1989, generally are followed in
both the district-wide and proprietary fund financial statements to the extent that those standards do not conflict with or
contradict guidance of the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB). Governments also have the option of
following subsequent private-sector guidance for their business-type activities and enterprise funds, subject to this same
limitation. The Board has elected not to follow private-sector guidance issued subsequent to December 1, 1989.

As a general rule the effect of interfund activity has been eliminated from the district-wide financial statements. Exceptions
to this general rule are charges between the Board’s proprietary and fiduciary funds since elimination of these charges would
distort the direct costs and program revenues reported for the various functions concerned.

Amounts reported as program revenues in the district-wide statement of activities include 1) charges to customers or
applicants for goods or services, provided, 2) operating grants and contributions, and 3) capital grants and contributions.
Internally dedicated resources are reported as general revenues rather than as program revenues. Likewise, general revenues
include all property taxes, unrestricted state aid, federal and state grants for school-based budgeting, investment earnings and
miscellaneous revenues.
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GARFIELD BOARD OF EDUCATION
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

C. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting and Financial Statement Presentation (Continued)

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items. Operating revenues and expenses
generally result from providing services and producing and delivering goods in connection with a proprietary fund’s
principal ongoing operations. The principal operating revenues of the food service enterprise fund are charges to customers
for sales and services. Operating expenses for enterprise funds include the cost of sales and services, administrative
expenses, and depreciation on capital assets. All revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are reported as
nonoperating revenues and expenses. Federal and State subsidies for the food service operation are considered nonoperating
revenues.

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the government’s policy to use restricted resources
first, then unrestricted resources as they are needed.

D. Assets, Liabilities and Net Assets or Equity

1. Deposits and Investments

Cash and cash equivalents are considered to be cash on hand, demand deposits, and short-term investments with original
maturities of three months or less from the date of acquisition.

Investments are reported at fair value and are limited by N.J.S.A. 18A:20-37.

Activity between funds that are representative of lending/borrowing arrangements outstanding at the end of the fiscal year
are referred to as either “due to/from other funds” (i.e., the current portion of interfund loans) or “advances to/from other
funds” (i.e., the non-current portion of interfund loans). All other outstanding balances between funds are reported as “due
to/from other funds”. Any residual balances outstanding between the governmental activities and business-type activities are
reported in the district-wide financial statements as “internal balances”.

All receivables are reported at their gross value, and where appropriate, are reduced by the estimated portion that is expected
to be uncollectible.

Tuition Expenditures - Tuition charges for the fiscal years 2009-2010 and 2010-2011 were based on rates established
by the receiving district. These rates are subject to change when the actual costs have been certified by the State
Department of Education.

Property taxes are levied pursuant to law and are collected by the municipality and are transferred to the District as
requested. Property tax revenue is recognized in the year they are levied and become available. Property taxes collected in
advance of the year-end for which they are levied and transferred to the District are reported as deferred revenues. The tax
bills are mailed annually in June by the municipal tax collector and are levied and due in four quarterly installments on
August 1, November 1, February 1 and May 1 of the fiscal year. When unpaid, taxes or any other municipal lien, or part
thereof, on real property, remains in arrears on Aprii 1 in the year following the calendar year levy when the same became
in arrears, the tax collector of the municipality shall, subject to the provisions of New Jersey Statute, enforce the lien by
placing the property on a tax sale. The municipality may institute annual “in rem” tax foreclosure proceedings to enforce the
tax coliection or acquisition of title to the property.
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GARFIELD BOARD OF EDUCATION
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

D. Assets, Liabilities and Net Assets or Equity (Continued)

3. Inventories

The cost of inventories of the governmental fund types are recorded as expenditures at the time individual inventory items
are purchased.

Food Service Fund inventories, exclusive of the federal commodities, are valued at cost, using the first-in first-out (FIFO)
method. The United States Department of Agriculture (USDA) commodity portion of the Food Service Fund mventory
consists of food donated by the USDA. 1t is valued at estimated market prices by the USDA. The amount of unused
commodities at year-end is reported as unearned revenue.

4. Capital Assets

Capital assets, which include property, plant and equipment, are reported in the applicable governmental or business-type
activities columns in the district-wide financial statements. Capital assets are defined by the Board as assets with an initial,
individual cost of $2,000 and an estimated useful life in excess of two years. The District was able to estimate the historical
cost for the initial reporting of these capital assets through back trending. As the District constructs or acquires additional
capital assets each period, they are capitalized and reported at historical cost. Donated capital assets are recorded at
estimated fair market value at the date of donation. The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value
of the asset or materially extend its useful life are not capitalized.

Major outlays for capital assets and improvements are capitalized as projects are constructed. Interest incurred during the
construction phase of capital assets of business-type activities is included as part of the capitalized value of the assets
constructed.

Property, plant, and equipment of the primary government is depreciated using the straight line method over the following
estimated useful lives:

Assets Years
Land Improvements 20
Buildings 40
Building Improvements 20
Machinery and Equipment 5-7

5. Compensated Absences

It is the District’s policy to permit certain employees to accumulate (with certain restrictions) earned but unused vacation and
sick leave benefits. A long-term liability of accumulated vacation and sick leave and salary refated payments has been
recorded in the governmental activities in the district-wide financial statements, representing the Board’s commitment to
fund such costs from future operations. Proprietary Funds accrue accumulated vacation and sick leave and salary related
payments in the period that they are earned. A liability is reported in the governmental funds only to the amount actually due
at year end as a result of employee resignations and retirements.
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GARFIELD BOARD OF EDUCATION
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

D. Assets, Liabilities and Net Assets or Equity (Continued)

6. Long-term obligations

In the district-wide financial statements, and proprietary fund types in the fund financial statements, long-term debt and other
long-term obligations are repotted as liabilities in the applicable governmental activities, business-type activities, or
proprietary fund type statement of net assets.

7. Fund Equity

Beginning with fiscal year 2011, the District implemented GASB Statement 54 “Fund Balance Reporting and Governmental
Fund Type Definitions”. The Statement provides more clearly defined fund balance categories to make the nature and extent
of the constraints placed on a government’s fund balance more transparent. This statement established fund balance
classifications that comptise a hierarchy based primarily on the extent to which a government is bound to observe constraints
imposed upon the use of the resources reported in governmental funds.

Restricted Fund Balance — Amounts constrained to specific purposes by their providers (such as grantors, bondholders, and
higher levels of government), through constitutional provisions, or by enabling legislation.

Legally Restricted — Register Audit Recoveries — This restriction was created to represent the amount recovered as a
result of audits of the District’s Application for State School Aid.

Capital Reserve — This restriction was created by the District in accordance with NJAC 6A:23A-14.1 to fund future
capital expenditures.

Reserved Excess Surplus — This restriction was created in accordance with NJSA 18A:7F-7 to represent the June 30,
2011 audited excess surplus that is required to be appropriated in the 2012/2013 original budget certified for taxes.

Committed Fund Balance — Amounts constrained to specific purposes by a government itself, using its highest Jevel of
decision-making authority; to be reported as committed, amounts cannot be used for any other purpose unless the
government takes the same highest level action to remove or change the constraint.

Year-End Encumbrances — Represents outstanding purchase orders at year end for contracts awarded by formal action of
the Board of Trustee’s for specific purposes from available resources of the current year for which the goods and
materials have not yet been received or the services have not yet been rendered at June 30.

Assigned Fund Balance — Amounts a government intends to use for a specific purpose; intent can be expressed by the
governing body or by an official or body to which the governing body delegates the authority.

Year-End Encumbrances — Represent outstanding purchase orders for goods or services approved by management for
specific purposes from available resources of the current year for which the goods and materials have not yet been
received or the services have not yet been rendered at June 30.

Designated for Subsequent Year’s Expenditures — This designation was created to dedicate the portion of fund balance
appropriated in the adopted 2011/2012 District budget certified for taxes.

Unassigned Fund Balance — Represents fund balance that has not been assigned to other funds and that has not been
restricted, committed or assigned to specific purposes within the general fund.

8. Reclassifications

Certain amounts presented in the prior year data have been reclassified in order to be consistent with the current year’s
presentation.
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NOTE 2 STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE AND ACCOUNTABILITY

A. Budgetary Information

In accordance with the requirements of the New Jersey Department of Education (“the Department”), the District annually

prepares its operating budget for the forthcoming year. The budget, except for the general fund and special revenue fund, -

which is more fully explained below and in the notes to the required supplementary information, is prepared in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America and serves as a formal plan for expenditures
and the proposed means for financing them. Capital lease transactions are accounted for on the GAAP basis.

The annual budget is adopted in the spring of the preceding year for the general, special revenue and debt service funds. The
District is not required to adopt an annual budget for the capital projects fund. The budget is submitted to the county
superintendent and is voted upon at the annual school election on the third Tuesday in April. Budget adoptions and
amendments are recorded in the District's board minutes. The budget is amended by the Board of Trustees as needed
throughout the year. The budget for revenues, other resources, other uses, and fund balances is prepared by fund source and
amount. The budget for expenditures is prepared by fund, program, function, object and amount. The legal level of
budgetary controf is established at the line item account within each fund. Line item accounts are defined as the lowest
(most specific) level of detail as established pursuant to the minimum chart of accounts referenced in N.JA.C. 6:20-
2A.2(m)1. The Board approved several budget transfers during 2010/2011. During 2010/2011 the Board increased the
original budget by $1,724,438. The increase was funded by additional grant awards and the reappropriation of prior year
general fund encumbrances.

Formal budgetary integration into the accounting system is employed as a management control device during the year. For
governmental funds there are no substantial differences between the budgetary basis of accounting and accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America, with the exception of the legally mandated revenue recognition of certain
state aid payments for budgetary purposes only and the treatment of encumbrances in the special revenue fund as described
in the Notes to Required Supplementary Information (RSI). Encumbrance accounting is also employed as an extension of
formal budgetary integration in the governmental fund types. Unencumbered appropriations lapse at fiscal year end.

Encumbrance accounting is employed in the governmental funds. Under encumbrance accounting, purchase orders,
contracts and other commitments for the expenditure of resources are recorded to reserve a portion of the applicable
appropriation. Open encumbrances in governmental funds other than the special revenue fund are reported as committed
and/or assigned fund balances at fiscal year end as they do not constitute expenditures or liabilities but rather commitments
related to unperformed contracts for goods and services which are reappropriated and honored during the subsequent fiscal
year.

B. Execess Expenditures Over Appropriations

The following is a summary of expenditures in excess of available appropriations. The overexpended appropriation resulted
in unfavorable variances.

Modified Unfavorable
Budget Actual Variance
(General Fund
Unallocated Benefits - Employee Benefits
Other Employee Benefits $ 540,070 $ 1,530,890 $ 990,820

The above variance was offset with other available resources.

33



GARFIELD BOARD OF EDUCATION
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

NOTE 2 STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE AND ACCOUNTABILITY (Continued)

C. Deficit Fund Equitly

The District has an unreserved/undesignated (i.c., unassigned) deficit fund balance of $3,024,225 in the General Fund as of
June 30, 2011 as reported in the fund financial statements (modified accrual basis). NJSA 18A:22-44.2 provides that in the
event a state school aid payment is not made until the following school budget year, districts must record these delayed state
aid payments as revenue, for budget purposes only, in the current school budget year. The statute provides legal authority
for school districts to recognize this revenue in the current budget year. GASB Statement No. 33, “Accounting and Financial
Reporting for Nonexchange Transactions”, requires that intergovernmental transactions (revenue, expenditure, asset,
liability) should be recognized in symmetry (i.e., if one government recognizes an asset, the other government recognizes a
liability). Since the State of New Jersey is recording certain 2010/2011 budgeted state aid payments in the subsequent fiscal
year, the school district cannot recogpize such payments on the GAAP (fund) financial statements until the year the State
records the payable. Due to the timing difference of recording these delayed state aid payments, the General Fund balance
deficit does not alone indicate that the District is facing financial difficulties; however, unless the State of New Jersey
budgets the delayed payments in future years, the District may also report fund balance deficits in the future.

Pursuant to NISA 18A:22-44.2, any negative unreserved, undesignated (i.e., unassigned) general fund balance that is
reported as a direct result of a delay in the payment of state aid until the following fiscal year, is not considered as a violation
of New Jersey Statute or regulation and is not considered an item in need of corrective action. The District deficit(s) in the
GAAP (fund) financial statements of $3,024,225 in the General Fund is less than the delayed state aid payment.

D. Capital Reserve

A capital reserve account was established by the District on October 5, 2005, The accumulation of funds will be used for
capital outlay expenditures in subsequent fiscal years. The capital reserve is maintained in the general fund and its activity
is included in the general fund annual budget.

Funds placed in the capital reserve are restricted to capital projects in the district’s approved Long Range Facilitics Plan
(LRFP). Upon submission of the LRFP to the Department, a district may increase the balance in the capital reserve by
appropriating funds in the annual general fund budget certified for taxes or by transfer by board resolution at year end of any
unanticipated revenue or unexpended line-item appropriation amounts or both. A district may also appropriate additional
amounts when the express approval of the voters has been obtained either by a scparate proposal at budget time or by a
special question at one of the four special elections authorized pursuant to N.J.S.A. 19:60-2. Pursuant to NJAC 6:23A-
14.1(g), the balance in the reserve cannot at any time exceed the local support costs of uncompleted capital projects in its
approved LRIP,

The balance at June 30, 2011 is $1. There was no activity in the capital reserve fund for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2011.

E. Transfers to Capital Outlay

During the 2010/2011 school year, the district transferred $302,241 to the capital outlay facilities acquisition and
construction services accounts. The transfer was made from available appropriation balances in current expense budget
accounts. The transfer was not approved by the County Superintendent as required by N.J.A.C. 6A:23A-13.3(h).

34




GARFIELD BOARD OF EDUCATION
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

NOTE 2 STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE AND ACCOUNTABILITY (Continued)

F. Calculation of Excess Surplus

In accordance with N.J.S.A. 18A:7F-7, as amended, the restricted fund balance for Reserved Excess Surplus is a required
calculation pursuant to the New Jersey Comprehensive Educational Improvement and Financing Act of 1996 (CEIFA).
New Jersey school districts are required to reserve General Fund fund balance in excess of 2% of budget expenditures at
the fiscal year end of June 30 if they did not appropriate a required minimum amount as budgeted fund balance in their
subsequent year’s budget. The excess fund balance at June 30, 2011 is $67,127. This amount will be appropriated in the
2012/2013 original budget certified for taxes.

NOTE 3 DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS

A. Deposits and Investments

Depeosits

The Board's deposits are insured through cither the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC), Securitics Investor
Protection Corporation (SIPC) or New Jersey's Governmental Unit Deposit Protection Act (GUDPA). The Board is required
to deposit their funds in a depository which is protecting such funds pursuant to GUDPA. The New Jerscy Governmental
Unit Deposit Protection Act requires all banks doing business in the State of New Jersey to pledge collateral equal to at least
5% of the average amount of its public deposits and 100% of the average amount of its public funds in excess of 75% of its
capital funds or $200 million for all deposits not covered by the FDIC,

Bank balances are insured up to $250,000 in the aggregate by the FDIC for each bank. SIPC replaces cash claims up to a
maximum of $250,000 for each failed brokerage firm. At June 30, 2011, the book vatue of the Board's deposits was
$856,205 and bank balances of the Board's cash and deposits amounted to $4,094,792. The Board's deposits which are
displayed on the balance sheets and statement of net assets as "cash™ or “cash and cash equivalents” are categorized as:

Depository Account

Insured $ 4,094,792

Custodial Credit Risk — Deposits — Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of a bank failure, the government’s
deposits may not be returned to it. The Board does not have a policy for custodial credit risk. As of June 30, 2011 none
of the Board’s bank balances were exposed to custodial credit risk.

Investments

The Board is permitted to invest public funds in accordance with the types of securities authorized by N.J.S.A. 18A:20-37.
Examples of the allowable investments are bonds or other obligations of the United States or obligations guaranteed by the
United States of America, Government Money Market Mutual Funds, bonds or other obligations of the school district or
bonds or other obligations of the Jocal unit or units within which the school district is located, Local Government investment
pools, and agreements or the repurchase of fully collateralized securities, if transacted in accordance with the above statute.

As of June 30, 2011, the Board had no outstanding investments.

Interest Rate Risk — The Board does not have a formal investment policy that limits investment maturities as a means of
managing its exposure to fair value losses arising from increasing interest rates.
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NOTE 3 DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (Continued)

A. Deposits and Investments (Continued)

Investments (Continued)

Credit Risk — State law limits investments as noted above (N.J.S.A. 18A:20-37). The District does not have an
investment policy that would further limit its investment choices.

Concentration of Credit Risk — The Board places no limit in the amoust the District may invest in any one issuer.

B. Receivables

Receivables as of June 30, 2011 for the district’s individual major funds in the aggregate, including the applicable
allowances for uncoliectible accounts, are as follows:

Special Capital Food
General Revenue Projects Service Total
Receivables:

Intergovernmental $ 12289 § 1,806,930 $ 534468 $ 120,872 § 2,585,166
Gross Receivables 122,896 1,806,930 534,468 120,872 2,585,166
Less: Allowance for

Uncollectibles - - - - -
Net Total Receivables $ 122,896 § 1,806,930 $ 534,468 § 120,872 § 2,585,166

Governmental funds report deferred revenue in connection with receivables for revenues that are not considered to be
available to liquidate liabilities of the current period. Governmental funds also defer revenue recognition in connection
with resources that have been received, but not yet earned. At the end of the current fiscal year, the various components
of deferred revenue reported in the governmental funds were as follows:

Unearned
General Fund

Unencumbered Restricted Formula Aid $ 2,069

Special Revenue Fund
Unencumbered Grant Draw Downs 573,344
Grant Draw Downs Reserved for Encumbrances 322,264
895,608

Capital Projects Fund
Unrealized State School Facility Grants 60,448
Total Defetred Revenue for Governmental Funds $ 958,125
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NOTE 3 DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (Continued)

C. Capital Assets

Capital asset activity for the year ended June 30, 2011 was as follows:

Governmental Activities:
Capital Assets,Not Being Depreciated:

Land
Construction in Progtess

Total Capital Assets, Not Being Depreciated

Capital Assets, Being Ddepreciated:
Land Improvements
Buildings
Building Improvements
Machinery and Equipment
Total Capital Assets Being Depreciated

Less Accumulated Depreciation for:
Land Improvements
Buildings
Building Improvements
Machinery and Equipment

Total Accumulated Depreciation

Total Capital Assets, Being Depreciated, Net

Government Activities Capital Assets, Net

Business-Type Aectivities:
Capital Assets, Being Depreciated:

Machinery and Equipment
Total Capital Assets Being Depreciated

Less Accumulated Depreciation for:
Machinery and Equipment

Total Accumulated Depreciation

Business-Type Activities Capital Assets, Net

Balance,
Juiv 1, 2010 Increases

Balance,

June 30, 2011

$ 7,661,618 $ 7,661,618
5791003 $ 193,147 5,084,150
13,452,621 193,147 13,645,768
231,440 231,440
91,721,723 8,756 91,730,479
15,443,825 862,437 16,306,262
4,018,286 944,422 4,962,708
111415274 1,815,615 113,230,889

(84,186) (11,570) (95,756)
(3L,177,050)  (1,657,326) (32,834,376)
(10,463,946)  (416,297) (10,880,243)
(2,162,144)  (493,092) (2,655,236)
(43,887,326)  (2,578,285) (46,465,611)
67,527,948 (762,670) 66,765,278

$ 80,980,569 $ (569,523) $ 80,411,046

$ 456429 $ 62,565 $§ 518,994
456,429 62,565 518,994
(248,098) (36,919) (285,017)
(248,098) (36.919) (285,017)

$ 208331 § 25,646 $ $ 233977
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NOTE 3 DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (Continued)

C. Capital Assets (Continued)

Depreciation expense was charged to functions/programs of the primary government as follows:

Governmental Activities:

Instruction
Regular

Total Instruction

Support Services
Students and Instruction Related Services
General Administration
School Administration
Operations and Maintenance of Plant

Student Transportation
Central Services

Total Support Services

Total Depreciation Expense - Governmental Activities

Business-Type Activities:
Food Service Fund

Total Depreciation Expense-Business-Type Activities

Construction Commitments

The District has the following active construction projects as of June 30, 2011:

-Project

Garfield High School Science Labs and Sports Room Renovations
Garficld High School Cafeteria Renovations

Total

38

§ 278,832

278,832

26,455

5,105

54,956

2,110,740

99,912

2,285

2,299,453

$ 2578285

$ 36,919

$ 36,919

Remaining
Commitment

$ 762,150
413,000
$ 1,175,150
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NOTE 3 DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (Continued)

D. Interfund Receivables, Payables, and Transfers

The composition of interfund balances as of June 30, 2011, is as follows:

Due To/From Other Funds

Receivable Fund Payable Fund Amount
General Fund Special Revenue Fund $ 424,135
General Fund Capital Projects Fund 474,020
General Fund Unemployment Trust Fund 8,118
General Fund Agency Fund 2,962
Enterprise Fund General Fund 386,662
Enterprise Fund Special Revenue Fund 54,564
51350461

The above balances are the result of revenues earned in one fund which are due to another fund and expenditures paid by
one fund on behalf of another fund and to cover cash balances which were in an overdraft position.

The District expects all interfund balances to be liquidated within one year.

Interfund Transfers

Transfer In:
(zeneral
Fund
Transfer Out:
Special Revenue Fund § 581,401

The above transfer is the result of revenues earned in one fund to finance expenditures in another fund.
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NOTE 3 DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (Continued)
E. Leases

Operating Leases

The District leases telecommunications wiring services and school facilities under noncancelable operating leases. Lease
payments for the year ended June 30, 2011 were $155,525. The future minimum lease payments for these operating
leases are as follows:

Year Ending June 30 Amount !
2012 $ 312,000 |
2013 325,000
2014 174,000
2015 180,000
2016 186,000
$ 1,177,000

Capital Leases and Lease Purchase Agreements

The District is leasing buses, vehicles and security systems totaling $743,758 under capital leases. The leases are for
terms of 3 to 5 years.

The capital assets acquired through capital leases are as follows:

Governmental

Activities
Building Improvements $ 324,479
Machinery and Equipment 419,279
Total $ 743,758

The District is also leasing computers (general supplies) totaling $270,315 under a lease-purchase agreement. This lease
is for a term of 3 years.
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NOTE 3 DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (Continued)

E. Leases (Continued)

The future minimum lease obligations and the net present value of these minimum lease payments as of June 30, 2011

were as follows:

Year Ending June 30

2012
2013

Total minimum lease payments
Less: Amount representing interest

Present value of minimum lease payments

F. Long-Term Debt

Statutory Borrowing Power

Governmental Activities

Capital Lease-Purchase
Leases Agreements Total
$ 167,329 § 94477 §$ 261,806
93,573 - 93,573
260,902 94,477 355,379
(16,615) (4,442) {21,057)
3 244287 § 90,035 § 334,322

The Board's remaining borrowing power under N.I.S. 18A:24-19, as amended, at June 30, 2011 was as follows:

4% of Equalized Valuation Basis (Municipal)
Less: Net Debt

Remaining Borrowing Power

Changes in fong-term liabilities

Long-term liability activity for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2011, was as follows:

$ 102,392,607

$ 102,392,607

Due
Balance, Balance, Within
July 1. 2010 Additions Reductions June 30,2011  One Year
Governmental Activities:
Capital leases $ 458,323 $ 214036 $§ 244287 § 155,152
Iease-Purchase Agreements 268,446 178,411 90,035 99,035
Compensated absences 8,363,612 § 432,884 1,530,890 7,265,606 360,000
Governmental activity
Long-term liabilities $ 9,090381 $ 432,884 $ 1,923337 §$§ 7,599,928 § 614,187
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NOTE 4 DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (Continued)
G. Shorxt-Term Debg

Loans Payable

The Board issues toans to temporarily finance the deferred state aid payment received subsequent to the fiscal year end. The
Board’s short-term debt activity for the year ended June 30, 2011 was as follows:

Beginning Ending
Purpose Balance Increases Decreases Balance
Delayed State Aid Payments $ 4807325 % - $ 4807325 § -

NOTE 5 OTHER INFORMATION

A. Risk Management

The District is exposed to various risks of loss related to property, general liability, automobile coverage, theft of, damage to
and destruction of assets; errors and omissions; injuries to employees; student accident; termination of employees and
natural disasters. The Board has obtained commercial insurance coverage to guard against these events to minimize the
exposure to the District should they occur. A complete schedule of insurance coverage can be found in the statistical section
of this Comprehensive Annual Financial Report.

The District is a member of the New Jersey School Boards Association Insurance Group (NJSBAIG). The Group is a risk
sharing public entity pool, established for the purpose of insuring against various types of coverages.

The relationship between the Board and the insurance fund is governed by a contract and by-laws that have been adopted by
resolution of each unit's governing body. The Board is contractually obligated to make all annual and supplementary
contributions to the fund, to report claims on a timely basis, cooperate with the management of the fund, its claims
administrator and attorneys in claims investigation and settlement, and to follow risk management procedures as outlined by
the fund. Members have a contractual obligation to fund any deficit of the fund attributable to a membership year during
which they were a member,

NISBAIG provides its members with risk management services, including the defense of and settlement of claims and to
establish reasonable and necessary loss reduction and prevention procedures to be followed by the members. Complete

financial statements of the insurance fund are on file with the School's Business Administrator.

There has been no significant reduction in insurance coverage from the previous year nor have there been any settlements in
excess of insurance coverage’s in any of the prior three years.
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NOTE 4 OTHER INFORMATION (Continued)
A. Risk Management (Continued)

The District has elected to fund its New Jersey Unemployment Compensation Insurance under the “Benefit Reimbursement
Method”. Under this plan the District is required to reimburse the New Jersey Unemployment Trust Fund for benefits paid
to its former employees and charged to its account with the State. The District is billed quarterly for amounts due to the
State. The following is a summary of District contributions, employee contributions, reimbursements to the State for
benefits paid and the ending balance of the District’s fiduciary trust fund for the current and previous two years:

Year Ended District Employee Amount Ending

June 30 Contributions  Contributions  Reimbursed Balance
2011 $ 1,099,000 $ 62,096 $ 671,751 § 561,751
2010 80,000 64,957 107,506 72,239
2009 None 60,377 90,451 34,707

B. Contingent Liabilities

The District is a party defendant in some lawsuits, none of a kind unusual for a school district of its size and scope of
operation. In the opinion of the Board's Attorney the potential claims against the District not covered by insurance policies
would not materially affect the financial condition of the District.

Federal and State Awards — The Board participates in a number of federal and state programs that are fully or partially
funded by grants received from other governmental units. Expenditures financed by grants are subject to audit by the
appropriate grantor government, If expenditures are disallowed due to noncompliance with grant program regulations, the
Board may be required to reimburse the grantor government. As of June 30, 2011, significant amounts of grant expenditures
have not been audited by the various grantor agencies but the Board believes that disallowed expenditures, if any, based on
subsequent audits will not have a material effect on any of the individual governmental funds or the overall financial position
of the District.

C. Federal Arbitrage Regulations

The District is subject to Section 148 of the Internal Revenue Code as it pertains to the arbitrage rebate on all tax-exempt
obligations, both long and short-term debt. Under the 1986 Tax Reform Act, the Internal Revenue Service (IRS) required
that all excess earnings from investment proceeds be rebated to the IRS. Arbitrage, for purposes of these regulations, is
defined as the difference between the yield on the investment and the yield on the obligations issued. If there are excess
earnings, this amount may be required to be rebated to the IRS. At June 30, 2011, the District had no estimated arbitrage
earnings due to the IRS.
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NOTE 4 OTHER INFORMATION (Continued)

D. Employee Retirement Systems and Pension Plans

The State of New Jersey sponsors and administers the following contributory defined benefit public employee retirement
systems (retirement systems) covering substantially all eligible Board employees:

Public Employees’ Retirement System (PERS) — Established in January 1955, under the provisions of N.J.S.A. 43:15A to
provide coverage, including post-retirement health care, to substantially all full time employees of the State or any county,
municipality, school district, or public agency provided the employee is not a member of another State-administered
retirement system. Membership is mandatory for such employees and vesting occurs after 8 to 10 years of service for
pension benefits and 25 years for post-retirement health care coverage.

Teachers’ Pension and Annuity Fund (TPAF) — Established in January 1955, under the provisions of N.J.S.A. 18A:66 to
provide coverage including post-retirement health care to substantially all full time certified teachers or professional staff of
the public school systems in the State. Membership is mandatory for such employees and vesting occurs after 10 years of
service for pension benefits and 25 years for post-retirement health care coverage.

The State of New Jersey sponsors and administers the following defined contribution public employee retirement
program covering certain state and local government employees which include those Board employees who are eligible
for pension coverage.

Defined Contribution Retirement Program (DCRP) — established under the provisions of Chapter 92, P.L. 2007 and
Chapter 103, P.I.. 2008 to provide coverage to elected and certain appointed officials, cffective July 1, 2007.
Membership is mandatory for such individuals with vesting occurring after one (1) year of membership.

Ofther Pension Funds

The State established and administers a Supplemental Annuity Collective Trust Fund (SACT) which is available to active
members of the State-administered retirement systems to purchase annuities to supplement the guaranteed benefits provided
by their retirement system. The state or local government employers do not appropriate funds to SACT.

The cost of living increase for PERS and TPAF, are funded directly by each of the respective systems and are considered in
the annual actuarial calculation of the required State contribution for the system.

According to state law, all obligations of each retirement system will be assumed by the State of New Jersey should any
retirement system be terminated.

The State of New Jersey, Department of the Treasury, Division of Pensions and Benefits, issues publicly available financial
reports that include the financial statements and required supplementary information of each of the above systems. The
financial reports may be accessed via the New Jersey, Division of Pensions and Benefits, website at
www,state.nj.us/treasury/pensions.

Basis of Accounting
The financial statements of the retirement systems are prepared on the accrual basis of accounting. Employer contributions

are recognized when payable to the retirement systems. Benefits or refunds are recognized when due and payable in
accordance with the terms of the retirement systems.
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NOTE 4 OTHER INFORMATION (Continued)

D. Emplovee Retirement Systems and Pension Plans (Continued)

Investment Valuation

Investments are reported at fair value. Securities traded on a national or international exchange are valued at the last
reported sales price at current exchange rates. Mortgages are valued on the basis of future principal and interest payments,
and are discounted at prevailing interest rates for similar instruments. The fair value of real estate investments is based on
independent appraisals. Investments that do not have an established market are reported at estimated fair values.

The State of New Jersey, Department of the Treasury, Division of Investment, issues publicly available financial reports that
include the financial statements of the State of New Jersey Cash Management Fund, Common Pension Fund A, Common
Pension Fund B, Common Pension Fund D and Common Pension Fund E. The financial reports may be obtained in writing
to the State of New Jersey, Department of the Treasury, Division of Investment, P.O. Box 290, Trenton, New Jersey 08625-
0290,

Significant Legislation

P.I. 2010, c. 1, effective May 21, 2010, made a number of changes to the State-administered retirement systems
concerning eligibility, the retirement allowance formula, the definition of compensation, the positions eligible for service
credit, the non-forfeitable right to a pension, the prosecutor’s part of the PERS, and employer contributions to the
retirement system.

This new legislation changed the membership eligibility criteria for new members of TPAF and PERS from the amount
of annual compensation to the number of hours worked weekly. Also, it returned the benefit multiplier for new members
of TPAF and PERS to 1/60 from 1/55, and it provided that new members of TPAF and PERS have the retirement
allowance calculated using the average annual compensation for the last five years of service instead of the last three
years of service, New members of TPAF and PERS will no longer receive pension service credit from more than one
employer. Pension service credit will be earned for the highest paid position only. This law also closed the prosecutor’s
part of the PERS to new members and repealed the law for new members that provided a non-forfeitable right to receive a
pension based on the laws of the retirement system in place at the time five years of pension service credit is attained.
The law also requires the State to make its full pension contribution, defined as 1/7"™ of the required amount, beginning in
Fiscal Year 2012,

P.L. 2010, ¢.3, effective May 21, 2010, replaced the accidental and ordinary disability retirement for new members of the
TPAF and PERS with disability insurance coverage similar to that provided by the State to individuals enrolled in the
State’s Defined Contribution Retirement Program.

Funding Status and Funding Progress

As of June 30, 2009, the most recent actuarial valuation date, the aggregate funded ratio for all the State administered
retirement systems including TPAF and PERS, is 66.0 percent with an unfunded actuarial accrued liability of $45.8 billion.
The aggregate funded ratio and unfunded accrued liability for the State-funded systems is 62.0 percent and $30.7 billion,
and the aggregate funded ratio and unfunded accrued liability for local PERS and Police and Firemen’s Retirement
System (“PFRS”) is 72.1 percent and $15.1 billion.
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NOTE 4 OTHER INFORMATION (Continued)

D. Employee Retirement Systems and Pension Plans (Continued)

Funding Status and Funding Progress (Continued)

The funded status and funding progress of the retirement systems is based on actuarial valuations which involve estimates of
the value of reported amounts and assumptions about the probability of events far into the future. These amounts are subject
to continual revision as actual results are compared to past expectations and new estimates are made about the probability of
future events.

Actuarial calculations reflect a long-term perspective and are based on the benefits provided under the terms of the
retirement systems in effect at the time of each valuation and also consider the pattern of the sharing of costs between the
employer and members at that point in time. The projection of benefits for financing reporting purposes does not explicitly
incorporate the potential effects of legal or contractual limitations on the pattern of cost sharing between the employer and
members in the future.

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions

In the June 30, 2009 actuarial valuation, the projected unit credit was used as the actuarial cost method, and the five year
average of market value was used as the asset valuation method for the retirement systems. The actuarial assumptions
included (1) 8.25 percent for investment rate of return for the retirement systems and (2) 5.45 percent for projected salary
increases for the PERS and 5.74 percent for TPAF.

Employer and Employee Pension Contributions

The contribution policy is set by laws of the State of New Jersey and contributions are required by active members and
participating employers, Plan member and employer contributions may be amended by State of New Jersey legislation with
the amount of contributions by the State of New Jersey contingent upon the Annual Appropriations Act. As defined, the
retirement systems require employee contributions based on 5.5% for PERS, 5.5% for TPAF and 5.50% for DCRP of the
employee’s annual compensation.

Annual Pension Costs (APC)

Per the requirements of GASB Statement No. 27 for the year ended June 30, 2011 for TPAF, which is a cost sharing plan
with special funding situations, annual pension cost differs from the annual required contribution. For PERS, which is a cost
sharing multi-employer defined benefit pension plan, the annual pension cost equals contributions made. TPAF employer
contributions are made annually by the State of New Jersey to the pension system on behalf of the Board. PERS employer
contributions are made annually by the Board to the pension system in accordance with Chapter 114, P.L. 1997. In the
DCRP, which is a defined contribution plan, member contributions are matched by a 3% employer contribution.
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NOTE 4 OTHER INFORMATION (Continued)

D. Emplovee Retirement Systems and Pension Plans (Continuned)

Annual Pension Cosis (APC) (Continued)

During the years ended June 30, 2011, 2010 and 2009 the Board was required to contribute for PERS and the State of New
Jersey was required to contribute for TPAF for normal cost pension and accrued liability contributions including non-
contributory group life insurance {NCGI) the following amounts:

Year Ended On-behalf
June 30 PERS TPAF
2011 $ 919935 $ 101,450
2010 652,888 104,533
2009 580,109 102,956

During the last three fiscal years the State of New Jersey did not contribute to the TPAF for normal cost and accrued
liability. The State contributed $101,450, $104,533 and $102,956 during 2010/2011, 2009/2010 and 2008/2009,
respectively, for the NCGI premium only.

Also, in accordance with N.J.S.A. 18A:66-66 the State of New Jersey reimbursed the Board $2,401,067 during the year
ended June 30, 2011 for the employer’s share of social security contributions for TPAF members as calculated on their base
salaries. This amount, along with the on-behalf TPAF pension contribution, has been included in the district-wide financial
statements and the fund financial statements as a revenue and expenditure in accordance with GASB No. 24,

E. Post-Retirement Medical Benefits

The State of New Jersey sponsors and administers the post-retirement health benefit program plans for school districts. The
Plans are cost sharing multiple employer defined benefit plans.

As a result of implementing Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 43, Financial Reporting for
Post-employment Benefit Plans Other than Pension Plans (OPEB), effective for Fiscal Year 2007, the State Health Benefits
Program (SHBP), and the Prescription Drug Program (PDP), and Post-Retirement Medical (PRM) of the PERS and TPAF
are combined and reported as Pension and Other employee Benefit Trust Funds in the State’s Comprehensive Annual
Financial Report (CAFR). Specifically, SHBP-State, PDP-State, and the PRM of the PERS are combined and reported as a
Health Benefits Program Fund — State classified as a single employer plan. The SHBP-Local, PDP-Local, and the PRM of
the TPAF are combined and reported as Health Benefits Program Fund —Local Government classified as a cost-sharing
multiple-employer plan in the State’s CAFR. The post-retirement benefit programs had a total of 514 state and local
participating employers and contributing entities for Fiscal Year 2010.

The State of New Jersey sponsors and administers the following health benefit programs covering certain state and local
government employees, including those Board employees and retirees eligible for coverage.
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E. Post-Retirement Medical Benefits (Continued)

Health Benefits Program Fund (HBPF) — Local Education (including Prescription Drug Program Fund) — The State of
New Jersey provides free coverage to members of the Teachers” Pension and Annuity Fund who retire from a board of
education or county college with 25 years of service or on a disability retirement. Under the provisions of P.L. 1992, ¢.126,
the State also provides free coverage to members of the Public Employees’” Retirement System and Alternate Benefits
Program who retire from a board of education or county college with 25 years of service or on a disability retirement if the
member’s employer does not provide this coverage. Certain local participating employers also provide post-retirement
medical coverage to their employees. Retirees who are not eligible for employer paid health coverage at retirement can
continue in the program if their employer participates in this program or if they are participating in the health benefits plan of
their former employer and are enrolled in Medicare parts A and B by paying the cost of the insurance for themselves and
their covered dependents, Also, education employees are eligible for the PDP coverage after 60 days of employment.

The State of New Jersey, Department of the Treasury, Division of Pensions and Benefits, issues publicly available financial
reports that include the financial statements and required supplementary information of the above Fund. The financial
repotts may be accessed via the State of New Jersey, Department of the Treasury, Division of Pensions and Benefits, website
at www state.nj.us/treasury/pensions.

Basis of Accounting

The financial statements of the health benefit programs are prepared on the accrual basis of accounting. Employer
contributions are recognized when payable to the health benefit programs. Benefits or refunds are recognized when due and
payable in accordance with the terms of the health benefit programs.

Significant Legislation

P.L. 2010, c.2 effective May 21, 2010, makes changes to the SHBP-State/Local Government/Local Education concerning
eligibility, cost sharing, choice of a plan, the application of benefit changes, the waiver of coverage, and multiple coverage
under such plans. It also requires contributions toward the cost of health care benefits coverage by public employees and
certain retirees.

Investment Valuation

Investments are reported at fair value. Investments that do not have an established market are reported at estimated fair
values.

Funded Status and Funding Progress

As of June 30, 2009, the most recent actuarial valuation date, the State had a $56.8 billion unfunded actuarial accrued
liability for other post-employment benefits (OPEB) which is made up to $20.5 billion for state active and retired members
and $36.3 billion for education employees and retirees that become the obligation of the State of New Jersey upon
retirement.

The funded status and funding progress of the OPEB is based on actuarial valuations which involve estimates of the value of
reported amounts and assumptions about the probability of events in the future. These amounts are subject to continual
revision as actual results are compared to past expectations and new estimates are made about the probability of future
events.
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E. Post-Retirement Medical Benefits {Continued)

Funded Status and Funding Progress (Continued)

Actuarial calculations reflect a long-term perspective and are based on the benefits provided under the terms of the OPEB in
effect at the time of each valuation and also consider the pattern of the sharing of costs between the employer and members
at the point in time. The projection of benefits for financial reporting purposes does not explicitly incorporate the potential
effects of legal contractual funding limitations on the pattern of cost sharing between the employer and members in the
future,

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions

In the June 30, 2009, actuarial valuation, the projected unit credit was used as the actuarial cost method, and the market
value was used as asset valuation method for the OPEB. The actuarial assumptions included 4.50 percent for investment rate
of return for the OPEB.

Post-Retirement Medical Benefits Contributions

P.L. 1987, c. 384 and P.L. 1990, c.6 required the Teachers’ Pension and Annuity Fund (TPAF) and Public Employees’
Retirement System (PERS), respectively to fund post-retirement medical benefits for those State employees and education
employees who retire after accumulating 25 years of credited service or on a disability retirement. As of June 30, 2010,
there were 87,288 retirees receiving post-retirement medical benefits and the State contributed $883.8 million on their
behalf. The cost of these benefits is funded through contributions by the State and in accordance with P.L. 1994, ¢.62.
Funding of post-retirement medical benefits changed from a pre-funding basis to a pay-as-you-go basis beginning in fiscal
year 1994,

The State is also responsible for the cost attributable to P.L. 1992, ¢.126, which provides free health benefits to members of
PERS and the Alternate Benefit Program who retired from a board of education with 25 years of service. The State paid
$126.3 million toward Chapter 126 benefits for 14,050 eligible retired members in fiscal year 2010.

The State sets the contribution rate based on a pay as you go basis and not on the annual required contribution of the
employers (ARC), an amount actuarially determined in accordance with the parameters of GASB Statement 45. The ARC
reptesents a level of funding that, if paid on an ongoing basis, is projected to cover normal cost each year and amortize any
unfunded actuarial liabilities (or funding excess) of the plan over a period not to exceed thirty years. The State’s
contributions to the State Health Benefits Program Fund for TPAF retirees’ post-retirement benefits on behalf of the School
District for the years ended June 30, 2011, 2010 and 2009 were $2,154,791, $1,963,277 and $1,964,134, respectively, which
equaled the required contributions for cach year. The State’s contributions to the State Health Benefits Program Fund for
PERS retirees’ post-retirement benefits on behalf of the School District was not determined or made available by the State of
New Jersey.
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EXHIBIT C-1

GARFIELD BOARD OF EDUCATION
GENERAL FUND
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

Variance
Original Budget Final Final to
Budget Transfers Budget Actual Actual
REVENUES
Local sources
Property Tax Levy b 23,641,953 % 23641953 % 23,641,953
Miscellaneous - Unrestricted 350,000 - 350,000 522,101 % 172,101
Total Local Sources 23,991,953 - 23,991,953 24,164,054 172,101
State sources
Special Education Aid 945251 § 1,582,593 2,527,844 2,527,844
Equalization Aid 43,842,406 (1,582,593} 42,259,813 42,259 813 -
Extraordinary Aid 237,657 - 237,657 397,345 159,688
Non-Public Transportation Aid - - 9,337 9,337
On Behalf TPAF Contributions (NonBudget)
Pension Benefit Contribution - NCGI 101,450 101,450
Post Retirement Medical Benefit Contribution 2,154,791 2,154,791
Reimbursed TPAF Social Security Contribution
(Non Budgeted) - - - 2 401,067 2,401,067
Total State Sources 45,025314 - 45,025,314 49,851,647 4,826,333
Federal Sources
Medicaid Reimbursement 38,035 " 38,035 87,959 49,024 '
Totat Federal Sources 38,035 - 38,035 87.959 49,924
Total Revenues 69,055,302 - 69,055,302 74,103,660 5,048,358
EXPENDITURES
CURRENT EXPENDITURES
Instruction - Regular Programs
Salaries of Teachers
Preschool 25,000 (25,000) - - -
Kindergarten 1,029,833 {126,819) 903,014 881,583 21,431
Grades -5 9,072,725 {188,932) 8,883,793 §,787.921 95,872
Grades 6-8 4,059,357 108,857 4,168,214 4,160,581 7,633
Grades 9412 5,000,242 (351,500} 4,658,342 4,628,898 29,444
Home Instruction
Salaries of Teachers 5¢,000 43,650 93,650 93,650 -
Regular Programs - Undistributed Instruction
Other Salaries for Instruction 50,400 - 50,400 35,661 14,739
Purchased Professional Educational Services 37,700 {6,867) 30,833 22,143 8,690
Other Purchased Services - 186,393 186,393 186,393 n
General Supplies 656,350 (23,426) 632,924 623,267 9,657
General Supplies Acquired Under Lease Purchase
(Non Budgeted) - -
Textbooks 276,180 (38,516) 237,664 231,498 6,166
Other Ohjects 88,894 {38,650} 50,844 44,046 6,798
Total Regular Programs 20,356,681 (460,610) 19,896,071 19,695,641 200,430
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EXPENDITURES
CURRENT EXPENDITURES (Continued)
Special Education
Learning and/or Language Disabilities
Salaries of Teachers

Other Salaries for Instruction
General Supplies

Textbooks

Totaf Learning and/or Language Disabilities

Multiple Disabiiities
Salaries of Teachers
Other Salaries for Instruction
General Supplies
Textbooks

Total Multiple Disabilities

Resource Room
Salaries of Teachers
Other Salaries for Instruction
General Supplies
Texthooks

Other Objects

Totzl Resource Room

Preschool Disabilities- Full Time
Purchased Professional/Educational Services

Total Preschool Disabilities
Total Special Fducation

Bilingual Education

Sataries of Teachers
General Supplies

Textbooks
Other Objects

Total Bilingual Education

GARFIELD BOARD OF EBUCATION

GENERAL FUND

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

EXHIBIT C-1

Variance
Original Budget Final Final to
Budget Transfers Budget Actual Actual

$ i,635,969 144,176  $ 1,780,145 1,749,794 % 30,351
483,554 237,659 721,213 698,196 23,017
82,900 (19,537) 63,363 54,925 8,438
15,750 (1,000) 14,750 12,324 2,426
2,218,173 361,298 2,579,471 2,515,239 64,232

189,620 3,185 192,805 192,805 -
60,825 (29,936) 30,889 29,117 1,772
11,600 - 11,600 11,437 163
1,000 - 1,000 80 20
263,045 (26,751) 236,204 234,339 1,955
2,044 961 83,459 2,128,420 2,098,533 29,887
47,150 (13,637} 33,513 30,453 3,060
14,800 {4,750} 10,050 6,618 3,432
2,106,911 65,072 2,171,983 2,135,604 36,379
4,588,126 399,619 4,987,748 4,885,182 102,566
1,593,302 166,075 1,759,377 1,584,343 175,034
21,315 (2,010) 19,305 5,652 13,653
8,206 (4,700) 3,506 39 3,417
1,622,823 159,365 1,782,188 1,590,084 192,164
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EXPENDITURES
CURRENT EXPENDITURES (Continued)
School Sponsored Co-Curricular Activities
Salaries
Other Purchased Services

Supplics and Materials
Other Objects

Total Schoo! Sponsored Athletics

School Sponsored Athletics
Salaries
Other Purchased Services

Supplies and Materials
Other Objects

Total School Sponsored Co-Curricular Activities

Other Instructional Programs
QOther Objects

Total Other Instructional Programs

Totat - Instruction

Undistributed Expenditures
Instruction
Tuition fo Other LEAs Within the State- Regular
Tuition to Other LEAs Within the State- Special

Tuition to County Vocational School District-Reg,

Tuition to County Vocational School/Dist.-Spec.

Tuition to County Special Services - School
Districts & Regional Day Schools

Tuition to Private Schools for the Disabled
Within the State

Tuition to Private Schools for the Disabied
Qutside the State

Tuition - State Pacilities

Tuition - Other

Day Training Eligible

Total Undistributed Expenditures - Instruction

Astendance and Social Work Services
Salaries
Other Purchased Services

Suppiies and Materials
Other Objects

Total Attendance and Social Work Services

GARFIELD BOARD OF EDUCATION
GENERAL FUND
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

EXHIBIT C-1

Variance
Original Budget Final Final to
Budget Transfers Budget Actual Actaal

$ 340,591 $ (21,186} $ 319,405 192877 §% 126,528
1,500 - 1,500 - 1,500
13,000 (8,000) 5,000 4,500 100
300 - 300 - 300
355,391 (29,186} 326,205 197,777 128,428
310275 (16,227) 294,048 263,560 488
131,550 {1,630) 129,920 101,638 28,282
49,050 867 49917 49,690 227
19,890 {1,500) 18,350 16,403 1,987
510,765 {18,490) 492 275 461,291 30,984
27,433,789 50,698 27,484,487 26,829,975 654,512
- 30,299 30,299 30,298 1

551,302 (413,786} 137,516 137,516 -
504,000 87.853 591,853 591,321 532
1,232,970 49,123 1,282,093 1,281,287 806
2,803,460 456,079 3,259,539 3,259,500 39
3,597,977 (149,860} 3,448,117 3,448,090 27
63,967 - 63,967 61,692 2,275

59,732 - 59,732 59,732 -
- 149,441 149,441 147,769 1,672
8,813,408 209,149 9,022,557 9,017,205 5,352
315,229 (12,056) 303,179 296,104 7.075
744 - 744 170 574
315973 (12,050} 303.923 256,274 7.649
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EXHIBIT C-1

GARFIELD BOARD OF EDUCATION
GENERAL FUND
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

Variance
Original Budget Final Final to
Budget Transfers Budget Actual Actual
EXPENDITURES E—
CURRENT EXPENDITURES {Continued)
Undistributed Expenditures (Continued)
Health Services
Salaries $ 647,703 § 33,166 § 680,869 $ 679,853 % 1,016
Other Purchased Services 2,700 (200) 2,500 535 1,965
Supplies and Materials 64,859 {26,187) 38,672 32,479 6,193
Other Objects 4,000 2,988 6,988 5,524 1,464
Total Health Services 719,262 9.767 725,029 718,391 10.638
Speech OT, PT and Related Services
Purchased Professional - Educational Services 11,260 (6,100) 5,100 5,100 -
Total Speech OT, PT and Refated Services 13,200 (6,100} 5.100 5,100 - |
Other Support Services - Students - Extra Services |
Salaries 324.000 295,335 619335 619335 -
Total Other Support Services Stud. - Extra Services 324,600 295,335 619,335 619335 -
Other Support Services - Guidance
Salaries of Other Professional Staff 921,174 (38,385) 882,789 858,376 24,413
Salaries of Secretarial and Clerical Assistants 61,980 - 61,980 61,980 -
Other Purchased Services 58,444 (£8,000) 40,444 34 429 6,015
Suppiies and Materials 49,351 {10,107 39,244 31,841 7,403
Other Objects - - - - -
Total Other Support Services - Guidance 1.090.94% {66.492) 1,024,457 986,626 37.831
Other Support Services ~ Child Study Team
Salaries of Other Professional Staff 1,210,851 18,141 1,228,992 1,228,992 -
Salaries of Secretarial and Clerical Assistants 180,758 - 180,758 186,179 579
Other Salaries 82,595 (40,585) 42,010 37,645 4,365
Purchased Professional Educational Svcs. 445,500 119,355 564,855 520,299 44 556
Misceltaneous Purchased Services 13,500 - 13,500 13,274 226
Supplies and Materials 30,000 288 30,288 30,148 140
Other Objects 2.060 - 2,000 1,689 311
Total Other Support Services -
Child Study Team 1,965,204 97,199 2,062,403 2012226 50,177
Improvement of Instruction Services
Salaries of Supervisors of Instruction 427,450 101,411 528,861 527,800 1,061
Salaries of Other Professional Staff 89,639 - 89,639 29,639 -
Other Salaries - - - - -
Purchased Professional Educational Svcs. 186,300 (15,000) 171,300 167,668 3,632
Other Purch. Professionai and Technical Services 106,660 4,986 111,646 90,609 21,037
Other Purchased Services 18,000 - 18,000 13,355 4,645
Supplies and Materials E87,625 {72,419) 115,206 112,476 2,730
Other Objects - - - - -
Total Improvement of Instruction Services 1,015,674 18,978 1,034,652 1,001,547 33,105
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EXHIBIT C-1

GARFIELD BOARD OF EDUCATION
GENERAL FUND
BUBGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

Variance
Original Budget Finak Final to
Budget Transfers Budget Actual Actuai
EXPENDITURES

CURRENT EXPENDITURES (Continued)

Undistributed Expenditures (Continued)

BEducational Media Services/School Library
Salaries $ 10,325 % 200,603 % 210928 % 209413 % 1,515
Supplies and Materials 110,900 (18,165) 92,735 77,41 15,624
Other Objects - - - - -
Total Educational Media Services/School Library 121,225 182 438 303,663 286,524 17.139

Instructional Staff Training Services
Purchased Professional Educational Sves. 154,000 {154,000) - - -
Other Purchased Services - - - - -
Total Instructional Staff Training Services 154,000 (154,060) - - -

Support Services General Administration
Salaries 611,785 (125,951 485,834 485,833 1
Legal Services 150,600 (24,900) 125,100 123 98¢ 1,120
Audit Fees 56,600 50,000 100,000 44,197 55,803
Other Purchased Professional Services 100,000 51,600 151,060 $50,903 97
Communications/Telephone 120,000 1,131 121,131 112,990 8,141
BOE Other Purchased Services 9,000 - 9,000 6,218 2,782
Misc. Purchased Services 76,000 {7,973) 68,027 68,026 1
General Supplies 8,000 1,873 9,873 6,530 3,343
BOE In-Home Training/Meeting Supplies 1,500 - 1,500 . 1,500
Judgements Against the School District - - - - -
Miscellaneous Expenditures 10,000 - 16,600 9,197 803
Totai Support Services General Administration 1,136,285 (24,8201 1,081,465 1.007.874 73,591

Support Services School Administration
Salaries of Principals/Asst. Principals 1,817,050 {106,200) 1,710,850 1,704,500 6,350
Salaries of Other Professional Staff 266,160 20,000 286,100 284,550 1,550
Salaries of Secretarial and Clerical Assistants 776,845 {1,034) 715,811 173,401 2410
Other Purchased Services 148,375 (31,406} 116,969 109,380 7.589
Supplies and Materials 260,225 (38,819} 221,406 201,062 20,344
Other Objects 72,861 (15,316) 57,545 471,577 9,968
Total Support Services School Administration 3.341,456 (172,775} 3,168,681 3.120470 48,211

Support Services Central Services
Salaries 533,555 (46,312) 487,243 456,360 30,883
Purchased Professional Tech Sves. 110,000 (30,969) 79,031 75,350 3,681
Misc. Purchased Services 110,000 (55,000) 55,000 51,698 3,302
Supplies and Materials 25,000 - 25,000 15,559 9,441
Interest on Loans - - . - -
Misc. Expenditures 12,000 - 12,000 6,484 5,516
Other Objects - - - - -
Total Support Services Central Services 790,555 (£32.281) 658,274 605,451 52.823

Required Maintenance For School Facilities
Salaries 754,101 {137414) 616,687 616,686 1
Cleaning, Repair, and Maintenance Services 125,000 76,908 201,908 200,374 1,534
General Supplies 115,000 (79,640) 35,360 33,784 1,576
Other Obiects 7.060 (2,700) 4,300 488 3412
Total Required Maintenance For Schooi Facilities 1,001,101 {142,846} 858,255 851,732 6,523
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BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

EXPENDITURES

CURRENT EXPENDITURES {Coatinued)

Other Operation and Maintenance of Plant
Salaries
Purchased Professional & Technical Services
Cleaning, Repair, and Maintenance Services
Ren. of Land and Build Other than Lease Pur. Agree.
Other Purchased Property
Insurance
Miscelianeous Purchased Services
General Supplies

Energy (Efectricity)
Other Objects

Taotal Other Operation and Maintenance of Plant

Student Transpertation Services

Salaries of Non-Instructional Aides

Salaries for Pupil Transportation (Other Than Between
Home and School) - Regular

Salaries for Pupil Transportation (Between
Home and School} - Special

Cleaning, Repair and Maintenance

Lease Purchase Payments - School Buses

Contracted Services (Spec Ed. Students) - Vendors

Contracted Services (Between Home & School)-Vendors

Coniracted Services - Aid in Lieu of Payments
Supplies and Materials

Total Student Transportation Services

Unallocated Benefits - Employee Benefits
Social Security
T.P.A.F, Contributions - ERIP
Other Retirement Contributions-PERS
Unemployment Compensation
Workmen's Compensation
Health Benefits

Tuition Reimbursement
Other Employee Benefits

Total Unallocated Benefits

On Behalf TPAF Contributions (Non Budget)
Pension Benefit Contribution - NCG}
Post Retirement Medical Benefit Contribution

On Behalf TPAF Social Security Contribution
(Non Budgeted)

Total Undistributed Expenditures

Total! Expenditures - Current Expense

GARFIELD BOARD OF EDUCATION

GENERAL FUND

EXHIBIT C-1

Variance
Original Budget Final Final to
Budget Transfers Budget Actual Actual
$ 1,818,776 263,215 §% 2,081,991 2,081,044 § 947
200,000 (31,363} 168,637 167,324 1,313
150,000 (48,3903 [01,610 98,651 2,959
287,600 53,500 341,100 340,840 260
30,000 - 30,000 29915 85
350,000 - 350,000 350,000 -
15,000 (5,100 9,900 9,881 19
175,000 53,932 228,932 223,133 5,799
1,450,000 (171,450} 1,278,550 1,278,547 3
75,006 {20,526) 54,474 54,474 -
4,551,376 93,818 4,645,194 4,633,809 11,385 |
285,849 70,759 356,608 356,545 63
32,500 278 32,778 32,778 -
93,575 - 93,575 93,573 2
1,551,600 91,746 1,643,346 1,643,346 -
42,520 (8,275) 34,245 29,890 4,355
100,000 [6,512 116,512 116,511 1
18,000 10,950 28,950 28,067 883
2,124,044 181,970 2,306,014 2,300,710 5,304
893,800 21,450 915,250 914,061 1,18%
137,000 (137.000) - - -
788,360 131,575 919,935 919,035 -
624,000 475,000 1,099,000 1,099,000 -
400,000 - 400,000 400,000 -
8,844,682 {1,070,315) 7,174,367 7,729,811 44,556
164,000 (70,165) 93,835 58914 34,921
526,145 13,925 540,070 1,530,890 (990,820)
12,377,587 (635,530) 11,742,457 12,652,611 (910,154)
- - - 104,450 {101,450)
2,154,791 {2,154,791)
- - - 2,401,067 {2,401,067)
39,853,699 (288,240) 39,565,459 44,773,193 (5,207,734)
67,287.488 {237,542) 67,049,946 71,603,168 (4,553,222)
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EXHIBIT C-1

GARFIELD BCARD OF EDUCATION
GENERAL FUND
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

Variance
Original Budget Final Final to
Budget Transfers Budget Actual Actual
CAPITAL OUTLAY
Equipment
Regular Programs - instruction
Preschool/Kindergarten
Grades 1-5 $ 90,300 % 34400 § 124700 § 122,894 % 1,806
Grades 6-8 12,900 1,390 14,290 14,290 -
Grades 9-12 - 126,844 126,844 45,197 81,647
School Sponsored and Other Instructional Programs - - - -
Special Education - Instruction
Resource Room - - - |
Undistributed Expenditures |
General Administration - - - - ) -
Operation of Maintenance and Plant - - - - -
Non-Instructional Serv. 130,000 (86,922} 43,078 42,936 142
Special Schools (All Programs) - 154,441 154,441 154,441 -
Total Equipment 233,200 230,153 463,353 379,758 83,595
Facilities Acquisition and Construction Services
Construction Services - 748,614 52,241 800,855 38,705 762,150
Architectural/Engineering Services - 250,000 250,000 124,217 125,783
Lease Purchase Agreements - Principal 261,345 (261,345} - - -
Total Facilities Acquis. and Const, Services 1,009,959 40,896 1,050,855 162,922 887,933
Assets Acquired Under Capital Leases (Nonbudgeted)
Equipment
Scheol Instruction - - - - -
Total Assets Acquired Under Capital Leases - - - - -
Total Capital Qutlay £,243,159 271,045 1,514,208 542 680 971,528
SPECIAL SCHOOLS
Salaries of Teachers 148,641 {30,000) 118,641 118,223 418
‘Total Summer School 148,641 (30,000) 118,641 118,223 418
CHARTER SCHOOLS
Transfer of Funds to Charter Schools 2,405,393 (5,100) 2,460,293 2,395,803 4,490
Total Transfer of Funds to Charter Schools 2,405,393 (5,100} 2,400,293 2,395 803 4,490
Total Expenditures - General Fund 71,084,681 (1,593) 71,083,088 74,659,874 (3,576,786)
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
QOver (Under) Experdituess (2,025,379 1,593 {2,027,786) {556,214 1,471,572
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GARFIELD BOARD OF EDUCATION
GENERAIL FUND

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
FORR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

EXHIBIT C-1

Variance
Original Budget Final Final to
Budget Transfers Budget Actual Actual
Other Financing Sources(Uses)
Transfers In-SBB $ 39,926,636 (731,823) $ 39,194,813 § 38395953 % (798,860)
Transfers In-5BB-Special Revenue Fund 739,139 {144,72%) 594,410 581,401 (13,009)
Transfers Out-SBB (39,926,636) 731,823 {39,194,813) (38,395,953) 798,860
Total Other Financing Sources(Uses) 739,139 {144,729) 594 410 581,401 {13,009
Excess(Deficiency) of Revenues and Other
Financing Sources Over{Under) Expenditures
and Other Financing tises (1,290,240) (143,136) {1,433,376) 25,187 1,458,563
Fund Batances, Beginning of Year 2,784 065 - 2,784 065 2,784,065 -
Fund Batances, End of Year $ 1,493,825 (143,136) % 1,350,689 % 2,809,252 % 1,458,563

Recapitalation:

Restricted Fund Balance
Legaily Restricted - Register Audit Recoveries
Capital Reserve
Reserved Excess Surplus

Committed Fund Balance
Year End Encumbrances

Assigned Fuad Balance
Year End Encumbrances

Designated for Subsequent Year's Expenditures
Unassigned Fund Balance

Reconcifiation to Governmental Fund Statements (GAAP):
Less: State Aid Revenue not recognized on GAAP basis

Fund Balance (Deficit) per Governmental Funds (GAAP)
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$ 6,112
1

67,127

812,150

50,889

315,525
1,557,448

2,809,252
{4,581,673)
$ (1,772421)




(penunuoD)

¥I-D LI9IHXE

1I0Z ‘0F AN GIANT AVAA TVOSLE AL 904
FTIAAHIS NOSHIVINOD AdV1LINUNE ONINIFINOD
ANAT TVEINTD
NOLLYOQE 0 qVOE dTILF VD

1+9°669°61 SFYZSTET $66LT0°1 LL0'968 61 LLTEST 8T PEYTHOT JEIERET (FO8PEL) 6T PLT [89°95E°07 3078861 009892 suesiold wmay o),
SHOFY Kt - +FR0S ¥PEOS - (os0'ge) {054°8e) - ¥68°88 3§33 - 0qQ o0
S61'1ET 85H°Sr 0b0'981 H99°LET FOHIS Q0T981 (915'8€) {o15"18) {000'2) 081922 08678 00Z'E61 Spogxa],
- (passBipng vong
eseyamy-oseeT Jepup) parehoy safddng
497529 L9T°ET9 PTEIES ¥I6269 (92°eT) {zr'er) - 0$£°959 G5€°959 serddng [ima0
£6£'981 £6E'981 £6£981 £6£°981 60931 - £6£°981 $IAMDG PASBUNG ISHI()Y
£PI'TT 1T £E80E £E8°0E (298'9) {298'0} - 00LZE O0LLE $30IAIRG [BUORPIDS [EUOISHOLY POSTING
199'st - 199°6€ 00F g - 00508 - - - 00¥°G$ - 0e#'0s BOBINARM 10 SRS SHO
volaSU] PAINGLASTRA() - SwRIR0L] remEy
0§5'¢6 059°€6 059°¢6 05966 0§9°E 059°Ey 000°08 000°05 SIAL3, 30 salereg
ﬂcﬁuﬂ.ﬂmﬂ.— H_H-Dm
268375 258975 TGO THEBE0F {0a6'15€) (205°15£) - oI’y fazaniing T1-6 PRI
185091 18091 FITEY PITRITY L58°80L £68'201 - LEEGS0' L5E550° §-9 sepeisy
126°28L°8 0491978 152926 E6L°E88"8 THELsEs 152°9%8 (ze6'381) (£81°592) =473 STLTLOG CTLTTY'Y 000°08F §-1 SopeIy
£857I88 £35°188 % +10°E06 PLO'E06 {e18'9z1) Gerg'oz)  § - £E8°670'T £ER°520°1 8 adLrRIIopy
- (000D - (0o0's?) 000°6T 000'sT {oonosalg
SIMEEI| JO SOUR[ER
swesfos se[nifoy - vonsRISU]
STINLIANEDE LNTRND
STANLIANIIXNA
0997E0 T FL - D99 E0TFL ZOTEE0 65 - TOE 5S0°69 - B B TOECE069 - T0£$56 69 SSUIAY [FIOL
65623 - 65618 CEGBE - SE03E B b - SEUSE - SE08E TNCILIRGESY PRI
$30M0F [EOP3]
L90°105°T L50°10%°T - (po1oBpag woN)
TORRQLRUOT UMS3G [P100F L, PASInquy
16L°051T T6LF51°T - WOTMQLIUOY) 3t [POPAJY WIWRIRY 1504
0$H'101 05101 - UODNQLILOT) TGAUSY B0
(pataSpng TON) "qLRUD]) UOISEI] SV AL JIPHSE WO
LEE'6 LEE'G - - - pry wodeuadsuess, olqnd-uoy
ShE'L6E SEELGE LSYLET LS9 LET - - LEILET LSGLEE Pry Amaproazxy
£18°652TH 3ty ivarad SIR'65TTH £18'652°TL (€65°786°D) (£66°785' D) S0V ZHEEY 0¥ THEEL Pry vogvznbsy
bPe'LTST FILTET LIS PELIET 657850 § £65'78°1 § [52'¢98 TEE Py woeonpg [eloadg
E3aInes u.ﬁ.—m
101728 6 ey 00008E 00005 00005 000°0SE PeIOLISAINL] ~ STOSMARISHA
£56'179°ET [ SCE'THA'ET & £56'THY'E E56'THET S 240 T A E56'THIET § Asay s [eoo]
SIMOT —NUD\H
SHONTATY
puy ST parLy [y ey piag STPang FriTpaeg pang SEpong T pung pang STPng £ ping
[LAEL S5 ) 1RGERY puny [eadudny 3210053y puny TRIMT) IM0EIY ponyg eI AINOsFY pung
meL papadg ELULECE ] EoL papadg Suyesxdg telog papuatg Bapsaadg L0 8 papus(g Bupesadp
[BBIdY 1dpeg 133pag 138pag
BNy .wﬁu—ﬂ [CLTE] RETEL LY uwmn:um vDMm.:ﬂ _wﬁ.m_.—o

58



(pomumsosy}

¥S0065 1 FE0065 T - B8TCHL 1 FEIRLAN - B COE5E1 - £Z8TLI 1 [FFicy] - woneanp {endumg (e,
g . g 7 T v B - - T - N s9{00) N0
68 48 908's 905°e 00L') (ooL't) 9078 9T'e Sjooqma],
o' F224 SOE'6E SOE61 (o1} 010°7) S1E'1T SIETT sayddng [essussy
EFEPES’ EFEHSS LLE'6EL'T LLEGELT $L0°991 SL0'99T - T0EE6S°T 70E'€65°1 SISSE3 ] JO SRS
wofeonpy enduig
TRTE88 FIE595°F bog'alz SPLLEE T IR L0 POREIT BIGEEE §IT96t P6EE 611935 T 65T LLEY [ uozEanpy [R1aadg [P,
B B - - = B - - - - - - SOMEQEstC] [PONIS33 [MOL
- B - - - - - - - . B - S30IAISG [FUODEDNPT-[EUORS01] POSEUOI g
2wy {{A ~S2H[IGesi(] [0oosaL]
FOTSELE LT (r A T TR T EROTITT AR 808921 T FFF 209 TI6901Z  I{IL0S61T 00T 521 OO B0IMOSEY {BI0L,
- - - - - - - - - - - - SO 1O
8159 859 050°0T 050°01 {ost'n) {05 0081 008°¢[ S[oogixal
£51'0E £SH0E £18°eC £I5°sE {(LEg'en) (es'en) asT'Lk 012t sandng esanan
- - - - - - - - wonoRgsL 9) SIS LD
£E5°860T STL1LET 30891 0ZY'RI1T TI9°100°7 208'971 6SHES 15378 809 196°¥P0°T 19L°816°T 00T'9Tl SI9GITL JO SIS
TOOOY SomEsTy
EEEFEL EEEFEL - ¥6T 95T P67 957 - {i€i98 (Ise’7) - SPOEIT SHE9Z = SOUGESL( SR [0
[ 036 - 000'T 06671 - - - - 0001 it - PfooqIaL
LEVIT LEFTT 009°11 005°1% y - 00911 00511 sauddag [pasusg
LIT6L LIT'6E 688°0¢ 683°0 (5€6°27) (9£6'67) $T8°08 $78°09 TOTORRSI 10] SATETRS JC)
508761 508761 S08'T61 508'261 $8I°E S3I°E 079°681 05681 SxIoRd ], 30 SaLwleg
saniqesiy idampy
ST A (4 EBIZIFL 950 E6 TZV6IST STHSEFEC 550°EG RETI9E TIEEEE ST £L181TT OB LEL T 0706 saUTTiqeste] aBendoe] Jo/0ue SuTeeee] (RO
B - g g z - - - = - - - 539300 =RQ
$RETI +2ETL [N 0541 0o0°T) (poo‘n) - 05461 G5L°S1 SOOI,
ST6'S STETS £9E°E9 £9£'€9 essn) (Les'st) - 00678 00678 SIdng [Reusny
961°869 951°369 3t at) SIT1L 689°LET 659'LET - (32314 PSSE8Y UOKIRASI] 10] SALLERS LT]
P6LGHLT $ BLUSPT § 9S0'EE [ SET'0RL' § 630281 & 950°6 EI 1A 6 | § O05ETHE § 98T $  696EST  § 669rst  § 0LT06 3 S1300E3Y, JO SSLM[EY
seniiqesK] sFenfury so/pue Hunue]
aogeonpy [Eoeds
(pommuon)) STEMLINSENS INGHHNT
STUNLIANIINE
[0 i £ peng PaRg ST FrTTpong laurd Sipaig ET-TLpIng Fong FTpang ErTTPied
[LAELED] Jumosay pang [EELED] MO puty (L2512 AIN0SIY PELE FLIELET) 14nosay pueg
0L papEIlg Supesadyy moy p3puARg Bapeaadgy ™oL popusg Zaywsadg fezox, papuIlg Bupead
ey wEpng 18pog 18pag
TEnnY [EETFRLEE D NEL T Eg TevEng

1107 ‘0 ANAF AIANT A¥IA TVISLI AHL 404
TAINATHIS NOSTIVINGD AVIIDANE DNINIIINOD
AN TVHANTD
NOLLYDOAE 40 QEV0d TTII VD

Y10 LI9IHXH

59



(panuyucg)

¥LT96T PO ISE OLTSH €76 £0E GLIBSE prLSE {0s0ZT) (os0zT} - Bl STTOLT TR
oLl - 0Lt L - HL - - - [ - i
+01°962 FOTIST a60'sr 6LI°€0E 6L1°85T 000'St {oso'zn) {oso'el) - 627518 6ZZ0LT 000°s
S0ELI0G - CGTLI08 LS5TT0s - LS5T06 Y1607 B 6¥160T 20K 188 - 20HI8'S
89L°L¥1 69L'LYL IrFarl I#t'61 #6811 ItFsET -
TEL'GS ZEL'58 TELGS L6 - - 2SN TEL'6S
z69'19 769'15 L96'ED L96°E9 - - L96'€9 LOE'EY
060°REE'E 060°8¢H°E LIUSHE LTTSHS ©98°651) {098'6¢1) LEGLES'E LLBLES'E
008°657°C 005'6$2°¢ 6E§°66T'E GEST6ST'E 6L0°95F 6L0°95F A9P°E0RT 09F'€08°T
L8TTRT] L8T18T1 £60°T9T'1 £60°28T1 [ran 441 OL6TETT 0LETETT
128168 126166 £58°I66 ESEI68 £48°L9 £58°48 000°+06 000°r08
GIELEL 915 LEL SISLET 9IS LET (ORL°EIY) {982°¢1%) 7057166 0e'1s¢
$67°0¢ R6T0E 66708 66T0E 667°0E 66T0E -
SL66I8 9L [R5 658 TFTT L3V PEFLT 614110 9¢ [N ZE4 B8505 (866°922) R89LLT 68L°€LT LT BIURHST 020586
16T 159 16T o7 - CLTTEY CIETEY - {06t'sT) [CTZTY] B SRR ToLtE -
ETEN el - [2% T (=X - 00sD @ty - 068 61 06861 -
069°67 0696t 166k LIGSE 198 198 050°6F 056'6%
REGTOT $€9°T01 0z6'621 0zT6'62t {ogo'n) ©e5'7) 088" LET 085 1€L
096°E6E 095°€6T N BHPST zesn $ zTsn SLT01E SLTOIE
LLETEET LLLLGT - COZ9TE S0T'5TE - (58762} (981°57) B I6E5SE T6ESSE -

- - - 00€ 00% - - - - 00 008 -
006 006 000°¢ 000's ©00°8) 000°8) 000'€1 090°€1

- . 005°1 0051 - - 008°T 0851
LL3'T61 £ LL8761 SOF6IE S0t'61€ (58110 § (98110 $ 166°0PE §  I650FE %

pang [Lr ECIT Py pong Spung [AgEyoes LCr] Srpung ETTr pung pang sTFang T Pang
Tesanany JXHNOSIY ponyg TEa3URr) IN03IY pEn [BI3MA) INAN0ERY pung 81303y AIR0EIY posg
o) papua[g Sunesad(y {5101 papuapg Boprasdy ELTA R papayg SayerM(y [B10L papusgyg Sugesady
[En3yy ylpng 103pay 128png
TERITY spag By TSENELY, Ropie Ve3png FOBUO

¥1-J LI9IHXA

TEOT ‘0 ANML AZANT AVEA TVISIS AHL HOA
TINGIAIS NOSTHVIWOD XY VLAMINE SNINIFINOD
AN TVIINTD
NOLLVONQE 40 G v0d 4 TIIEVD

SILAIIE YO [0S Pk SOUEPUSY 2L

RN FGO
SELSUpY pue safddng
S{aL0g PSP IR0
SIS
2014195 IO [PIDOS PUE INTPUIALY

1~ P H pauqLasipu [mo]

S[qiByE S, Auc

1nQ - vewng,

SORI[OE SIS - Topm],
G A FPRIQ

PRIqESI(] S 107 S[EOGRE eAll] 21 hon]
BTG AU IR

PAIGESIC SR 0 S[OASS SIBALI OF BORIRY,
sfooyag Keq] enctEny @ wetasiq

100q2S - 39014205, fRI0RdS Aumar) o) ORMY,

3o -1SICL/PoNPS [RUODE0A AN O BOKL

MﬂMtﬁEmma TOOURS [RUDHEXIA bﬁgu Quonmy,

pesond§ -01EIS B4 ITALAY ST SO 0 ORm Y,
Tequfny TS S WA SYE] SHIG 01 VoBm ],
uoyangsay
samrpusdig FANGISTULY

ToTRRLS] - [ee),

$152090 =00
sureISol] FOCGINNSU] IS

SIALDY [EILAL)-0)) Patosucds [00yog [T0L,

G B0

s{eLepy poe sanddng
SOLALLG PISEYDIR] JE()
SILITES

SR patosiodg 100yps
SORSQYTY parosuadg [00Y9S [#10L,

HRE0 #H0
sjesajegy pue sddng
SINAIG PISEYIR JANG
saLmeg
SIHAHY BAOLLIT)-07) PalosUDds {90405
{penanac)) STYLIGNIIXE LNTHAIND
STANLKINGINH

60



LYEI00L ZEE RS SETELY EEEO0N I50°0ES STSPOS 3E68E e (r1000) FLYCTOT SLO'TY 665 FLo
SLFEIT 786007 pT6 L 90TSIL 50T°101 000°FL B1HTL} (515°'79) (00001} STY'LEL sr9'est 000°FT
13931 SSE'EL 00031 00031 - - - 00081 00081
60906 609°06 b9 1L ELNE 988 - 986'y 099'901 095901
£99°291 859'291 00C 14T 00E'1L1 (coas1} - {000°sT) 00E'981 00£°981
6£5°68 - 6£9'68 6E9°68 - 6E968 - - - 6£9'68 - 6E9'68
008°LZS 008°L2F 000°001 198'878 198'8TF 000001 IIFI01 #7101 - [=kag 0§H'LTE 000001
FEETIOT - SELTI0Y r a0t - Wr0T BETL - 8T LH b3y - FOLTH
5391 - 689°1 0007 - 0007 B - - 6007 - 082
3r1°0E gr1'0e $370€ FETA 387 387 000°0€ 000°0€
FLTEL pLTET 00$°€1 GOS'ET - - 0051 006°ET
§67°0¢8 662°07¢ $S8°795 $58H9¢ SE6IT $SE'6IL Q0$°SHt 0085kt
SHY'LE SH9'LE 010z oLy (535°0F) {sg5°0%) $66°Z8 6678
SLT°08T 6L1°081 252081 854087 M - 25208t 864087
Z66'8IT'T 66371 266871 69T T+1°81 181 1680121 158%02°T
579'5%6 59936 - ISFFenT EFFET - (761557 {ZeHoaT - BFG060 T ST -
e 1#91E HHT6E PHT6E {tar'o1) {zot'on) 1556t £33
6TH'PE 6THYE 0P FPHOF {006'81) (00’813 [ YRS
08619 08619 03619 08619 - - - 086°19 036°19
9LE'868 9LE'8E8 48,788 S8L7C8% {s8£°80) [(1:%33] - BLI'ITE FLI'TLE
FECEY ¥ TECGIT CEERI B FEC6I9 SEETET ; TEECT 000 FCE i 000
TETEI - TE619 SECHIY - ST SECE6T B CEETEZ V00¥EE - [ingres
TS - Ty [ = oINS G = Warsy [T = [ty
i - [oind s - 0oty {001 - {oor'sy GOTTT - 00T
TEERIL BEFTE (L] BI06LL TH599 $36.€9 rE GILC 8867 TTRIL 9719% BO0EE
¥Igs 168 €86 F 4863 000'1 386 836'C (000°E) 386°C 000°F 100 E
BLYTE BLVTE ZL9'3E TLYSE (81°52) (L8I'9T) - 658°F 65879
=39 539 08T 005°7 G4 002} - 0027 0047
£58°6L9 $ ESE1Z9 § 00088 698°089 698'2TY 5 000°8$ E ] 2 § 991 5 - EOLLbY £ £027698 $  000'88 $
g sTpmg €T poig paiy SEPIRg ET-IT panyg PR ST pung ET-TT P pung FTpang FrITpand
Te13m35) IMURGEIY pang [Ba3ur)y JIN0SIY panyg [eLau3) IN0SIY poeny pLaelie ) IN0SIY paeg
L papuajg Soperady 1B10F papuayg Suneaxd(y EnL papug Boywradg [s10L papaayg Sugeasdgy
[endy a8png 1dpag 13pag
I3V TSRpEE R TIETGL), WepIE ISy EaEug

YD LIFIHXA

TE0Z 'O ANAF AZANT IVIA TVISI AHE HO0A

TINATAIS NOSTHVINOD AYVIASANE ONINIEWOD
AN TVHINTD

NOLLVII]E 40 qav0d QTIITdvD

$0UIFG TOLIRDRT J0 Joawrasoxdu 1210,

9300 2GG

SRS puk saLjddng

SOAAIDG PASEIIMY JBPO

“FOAG FIRK[RAL PU [FUCISS3J03d GO IO

'SIAG [PUOGRITR [RISSJ0N] PRSEURT]

SALIE[ES JAHO

BYIS [RUCISSIJ0Ig 39910 JO STHBERS

UORONTISU] JO SIOSIALAING 30 SIMEES
S0 TONORASAL JO JaACIdm]

uzay, Apmg Py
- saagtag woddag 5q1Q) B0,

swafg0 BRo
sfenapEpy pe sanddng
SN PISEYR SHONRTRSIN
5043 [FUOTRONDE 1BV0ISsaJo] PosTPmg
SOLEES 20
RUISISTY [EOLS]) PUB (SIS JO SA(ES
EOI5 [EUOISSRIuad SSIRQ JO SaLiies
SHIED] APRAg PIEL) « S20RARS Woddng 10

ooEping - ssalaleg Hoddng Iag() [0y,

S99y 1BHO

S[eLISIRp Pt saddng

SAMATIG POSERING SR

SIEHISISEY [VOLO[) PUE [FURIAIDag 30 SRRy

RIg TRUOISSRJ0L] I5Y)) O SRR
SoTEpmE) - s0talsg Hoddng ramg

ARG BINT - PRI - $AORUSS oddng S0 [BeL

g
3014105 BOXF ~ SIEPRG - S0pAIRg LOGANG J9N0

Sa0LIeg paRIS 2 14 \LO WO

S30LAISG [CUOIROND - [PUOISSSJOL] PRSI
SOMPS PATRY 7 Ld L0 Y7dG

SNALSS PRI [BI0L

[ REO
SR pov sorddng
$IAIG PISEHUR] IR0
SIUEES
SIS YIFRIH
paaozincs) sasnppusdy pnqusIpar)
(panuio])) STICLLL X INTHHD
SHENLKINAING

6l



(panayacr)

15F 509 - 15509 (xR - ¥LT 859 MTen - {TETED $E506L - $EC0AL san1AIag Baus]) $30MG Hoddng [el0],
- - < = - = - - - - - - sl 100
#8179 89 000°Z1 000'71 - - - 000°71 000°T1 samyfpuaiied ISt
. - - - - - SOSET WO JSIIR
665°S1 66551 000°SZ 0007 - - - 000°5T 000'5T s[eusiely pue sanddng
869°1¢ 269°1 000°5% 000°5¢ {000°cg) - 000'55) 00001 060011 SAIBG PoTEYAINg IS
0SESL 0SE'SE 160°6L 1E0°6L (696'05) - (6950} QO0°GIT 00°'el1 $OAS DI, TRUOISSIIOI] PSRRI
09£'95% 0995t ErTISk EFULSF Tig'sr) - (Z1£°96) SEE°EES $56'5€8 seuzeg
SOOLASIS [PRUR]) Soataeg poddng
QLFOLLE GiFoTi'e - 186°99T% 1897991 B {CLITLT [T - WFTITT 9P IPEE B SOHRYSIUTIRY (000G S30LAIaG Hoddng o],
LES LY LLELY - SHELS SHEIL - {1eet) BTEen) - 19822 9% - w0 2P0
200°102 290°10T 20612 0¥ 1TT {618'3€) (618°8E) STT09T §22097 - SEEHEW pue snddng
G8€'60T 08€'601 586911 696°911 {oat'1£) (90¢"1£} - SLERYT SLEBYFT Sacleg PRsRgORd SO
[o¥'¢LL I0FELL {83974 1U8°sLL &0’ (£0'D) . SPROLL SH8'9LL SIS [BIL[) PUL [EHRIADG JO SALRIES
05547 055487 001°987 01987 00007 00007 - 001997 001997 BEIS [PUOISEI0LT M) JO SILRIES
008 +0L'T 005502 D5EOILT 058°01LT {oaT'901) (0oz'90D) 0S0°418'T 050°218°T - S[RAIMLL ISSY/SEdIony 30 SRy
LoRENSIIpY [0S S0ctaig Hoddag
FIETO0T = FLTIOOT SFTE0 T - SOFIR0°T WEFE) B [Foeka) [SEATN - TETOELT UOYRISUIWPY [505L) So0ALag HOddNG F10)
616 - L6T6 50001 - [ELCH - B - 00001 . . Q06T SammyIpuadxg S0SUe] [0S
- - - - - LS 0090 SV ISRy spswafpny
- 005°1 0051 - - 0051 005" sonddag Fumsaj/Sutra], esnoH-u[ FOH
€59 0E5"9 £28'6 £18°6 £8T €28°1 00’ 000°8 sonddag [esuag)
97089 970'89 L20'99 L7089 (€62} (€26't) 00092 000°9L SIS PRSEINE STOAUT(|SIN
8179 fita] 000°6 0006 - - 000°6 000 $90LAI2G PASRYATLJ I FIOE
066°TIT 966°TIT 11zl €11 'L TE0T 00001 O000ZL auayda[o | SUcgESUNuImO )
£06'051 £06°05T 000°1€1 000°151 000°1$ [l 0007001 000001 SSOIAIRY [RUOISSR0N] PASERIM SHIR0
6Lt 6l'rt 000001 0007001 000705 000'0% 00008 00008 5291 HPOY
0B6'ECE 0BEETE aot'sel 001521 (006'¢7) {006'¢7) 000°05t 00°05t sao12g (597
£E4°CHY £E8°SEP s reS'esy 5 ee'ser s (1sg'szn {iseszly  § ST 84119 % SSLRERS
UONRHSAIEDY [2IR0eD) 53 Hoddng
- - - - - - ©O0FET {00051 - 0007FST 000 5T - Ssorasag BULrel), OIS [EUOTOnnSu] [RI0],
- - - - i - - = - v - - , s19fg) 20
- - - - - SO PISRPAL IO
- - - . 0oe'psT) {oo0'ss1) 000°5T 00051 S04 TRUOLIEINPY [EUOISSIJOL] Paseyamy
301G BUIIBL], LS [RUQEINISU]
FIT98T 225 A EI5TOE £99°E0€E E FISE FIzE B BRI Tl B ATBIGET [OOPS/S0MIRG BIPII [PRONBORPT (M0 L
- - - - - B - = - B - B 5120040 B0
' 'L $EL'T6 SEL'TE {so1'g1) {s91°81) 066°0T1 066011 sieuae|y pue saddng
LH°60T § £ir'e0T 5 RTE'BIT § sze'olT $ £09'007 $  €0900T 3 STEDL % gze'or $ saue[Eg
AmIqU [00G35/s001AIag BPAIA [EUOREINPH
(poumru0)) SsunypLadyg paingLusTpE(]
(panume)) STHNLIANIIXE LNFHACED
STAMLLIANTIXI
Pl ST pong ET-TI pong puiy §rpiag EOTT pung P STpRng EFTTpiRg puny Frpeag FETT pang
[BIIT5) J2AN0SIY pEnE [BI3UWID) ANNOSIY pung [LAELES) 21008 [LULY: § [LARLE S A0S pong
[e10], pIpug Bugrad( [Lat papuajg Sunyaad(y moL papang Sugeixd(y [FIOL papeajg Bunesady
By ey 103pug ripng
FEY Adpag @uty RSUETL 195pna ToSpug [CUWLG

[T0T '0F ANILL TIANT AVIA TVISLI THL WOI
FINTTAIS NOSTEVANOD ASV.LIOANE ONINIEINOD)
QNN TYIENTD
NOLLYDCE £0 QUVOS A TIAAYY

VI-D LISIHXI

62



{porugue)

O ——

FOTEGT L STEP6L BE Tr8 90% £ SHE6P0LI SHE 008 6 et {ZosLET) (38T%58) vEORTL SEFLIL L9 SITTICOF SIGHIL S
T6TELL FF DIZFIZEL E863CETE BEFEI56E PR ET 66L081'9T (rTe30) (BETEELY 956 0ty 665 £Ca 6%, SCTETL bL EPi6EL <L
LI0°TOFE - LITTOFE - - - - - - = - -
16L°FS1'T I6£+51°T
0SF' 101 05t 101
TIFeesTr SFETHTL TOTLOF ISFZRLTT FEEBETL [T ) RETTES) TEEET BFLLETI 6L THRSEFY
068 0L | - CE30ES 1 [ - [ ST6EL - SZRE SFT9EE - SPTIIs
$16'86 FI68S SER'ES S£8'ES {sor'0£) (591°0L) 000791 000°t91
[I8'67LL 96£°696'9 SIFO9L LSERLLL SE6°EI0L 6THOSL €106} (789°¢1L) (€99°95¢) Z39°rHE'E 066°LTLL [ AR
00000 000°C0F 96000k 000°00% - - 000°00% 000°007
000°660'T Q00°660°T 000°660°T 000°660°T 000°6L¥ 000'sLy 000°F29 000°429
$E6'616 CE6'6L6 SE6°616 SE6'6L6 SLSIEL SESTEL 09E°88L 09¢'382

- - (0002£1) (o00'L€1} 000°LET 00G"LET
19016 056°522 117888 0$7°516 0S6'6L7 00£'6¢9 0SHIT 00F°T9 (og6'or) 009568 05$°€12 057’089
CIITOET #6381 6L T3C T FI090EC SETEL GILTITT CLG 18T 7] 581 102 FHITLIT [457 ¥eE18G ¢
29082 - 1508 056'8T - 0$6°8C 056707 - 08601 000°ET - 000°8T
115°911 Tsort FAAE 215911 TISSL Ti5'91 000001 000001
06867 17681 6+6°01 SHT'bE S6T'ET 056°01 ($42°9) (szz's0) 066'01 0TS'TH 0Tty g
OPEERST 9PE'EF9’] oFETHIT IPEERY'L 916 oL'16 009'1£8°1 009°185°1
£15°E6 £L5°€6 £L5'E6 $L8'EH - - $LE'E6 L6
SLLTE SLLTE BLLTE 8LL'7E 87 754 006°7E 00578
SP595E - SHE9SE 309968 - 809°95€ 65L°0L 654704 Gt8°58T - G858
GOFEET T 684121 0TFTIS b EAREEE 68E°1T1 S0 L §19'56 €8E 121 [(573) UTIEEY - LETLS Y
PLFYE - TLYFE bLbTE - [ {oz8'07) E {5z5°08) A00°CL - 000°CL
L¥S'8L2' LPE'SLTL 0$5°8LTT 05$°822°% Qsr1Ln - QsE1LT) 00005+ 00005
£51'527 - 23 pxad TE6'RZT - TE6'RTT TE6'ES - TE6'ES 000°SLT 000'6L1
1886 188% 0066 0066 {001°5) - (o015 006°¢1 000°51
000'0SE Q00'0SE A000SE 000°05€ - - - 000°0$€ 096°05€
$16'67 s16%6Z 000°0€ 000°0% - - - 006'08 000°0€
GYE'OYE 0PYOFE BOL'THE I 17 008°ES - 005°ES 009287 009°L8T
1£9'36 159°86 019161 015'101 (06£°8E) - (06£°8k) 090°0§1 Q0001
YZELOT +ZEL91 LEY'SS LE9'891 (goc'1E} - (£9¢'1€) 000007 200°00%
FROTIR0'T 68 12E § 5596561 166'1807 68E1T1 $ 7050961 SIE'E97 68€°1T1 § 9za'1vl 9LL'BIRL - 9443181
L5 B TELI5 SST 888 - [ creyaan] B {Or8TrI) 1071007 - TGt 06T
[ - 882 [T - 0E ¥ Q0L - LTy 60077 - 000°t
FBL'EE - P8L'ES 09£'5E - 09E6E (or'6L) - {ov9'6L) 000°11 - 000's1{
$LE00T PLEOT 306107 205'107 306°9L 306'9L G00°5TE 0007521
989919 989919 £89'919 489918 I U4V [CAUE B L0T'¥62 TOT'HS4 $

pang STung EI-1T pong Pt STPmy FTTTpang ur Srpung ET-T pung. puiy FTpang FrTTpNeg
[LEDE] AIEN05IY pang [E13030) JLINOSIY puity [8L2035) AXIN0EIY prng -.F-oﬂuu ERRCLIES | pang
=0y papua(g Sopesadey moL papuarg Sugesadg LA Ppapulg Fuyread(y [el0L papudg SupedQ
Lates 4 wapng 193png 1wipag
[ 1apag ey TUBLT, WepRg 33png [BAEHO

VI J14IHXE

110Z "0 AN GIANT IVIA TVISIL AHL H0d
TINAFAIS NOSTHVINOD AFVIESANE DNINITWOD
AN TVHANTD
NOILVONQY 40 (I V04 GTILIIYD

25uadx 1aLmy) - sazmypusdxg [IOL
samjipuay PANGIRSTOAr] [EIAL

(p1ofipng wopd

BORNQUIE0)) AILN03G |21008 VAL FGRE W)
HORROLIUT) YGRS [P DAY 804
HOUNQINEOT) 1GAUSY UOIESE

(pe1eBpng ToN) "qUINC)) BOISTR] JVL1 JRGAE U

sigpouag pEoO[[Eur] (B

sigsusg o940y 10
CAIAS QU FOYRL],
Sigeusy W
yonusuxino) 5 uaEryIo A
uonesuadmor) TemAojdmany
SAFJ-FUOTNGLING]) REMAGS L)
AT - SRDAqLane]) I'V'd'L
Apmsag [R10g

sy Koy - spouag porEsoEy

530LAag uonELIdsTRz] TSP (610

S[eURIRjY PiE Sayddng
stuicdied Jo DAL Ul Pry - SeolATag pajoenuos)
S10pUBA-(J0GUSS 7P SO USanIag) SHTIIg papenuad
I0pEa, - (STWRPIIS TORESRPY [eraadS) $A0LAISS poIoRqNO])
S030gY [QOYSG - SUAIAE SSEUII 50
SomsuarEyy g stedyy Funes[)

[e2dg - (;904pS pue Swol
U23AG() uoyessodsuRl [, [idug 0f SR eg

Temny - {J00YoF Pue SOL]
Taangag e, JSM) uoheuodsimL] [idng 1of soeEs
SOPTY [EUOLODNSU]-TAN JO SMreeg

$20rAng voneundsieL] Juapug

W] JO SOURESIUIR) pue wopsd() S 101

S03A() 190
(Amatnao[) Afouy
sanjddag esecany
SS0LAISG PRSRLRI STOSUEIIOSL
SnueImSH]
Aurdolg PasEqamE RO
SUR0BY "N 25837 UeI 1310 Faprreg pue pukry 3o [ERY
SEOLATSG SOMRITERAL pre “Redsy “Bunres))
304 TEIHN{S ], 3P RUOISSAYAL] paseqamy
seuRes

AR JO STEUIEN Ut BORwI() 20O

So1oey [0S J0 FHIRUSTRIN pasmbary [ei0].

s132fqQ) 2P0
ssnddng [esonay
S00IAIRE SOURUNITEy pue “eday Fommar)
saLjeg
S0P (0RPF Jo] 3UruaniEly porrnbay

ponanacsy) saauruadxy panqLIsIpUr)
(ponurua0) STROLIANTDE INTHUND
STUNLIANIIXT

63



T5'608°T 5 - § SU608E S 68570581 § - T oevoseT § 0 (Gererl) 8 - § fcror)  § STSEGH L - $ sTEEeFl  § Tea ), 30 puy “ssoum[eq put

SAFILT - $0VBLT $90%8LT - UWLT B - - SO0F8LT - SO0FSLT TRy, jo Supourdag ‘ssowelee pimyg

L81'6T - L815T (SLe'eer' ) - GLeEEr ) (9ELEFD) - (6E1°87) {orz'osT’D) - orrose ) s8] Smoueny] 12H0 puz
sanpusdyy (1PPU[])RAQ seamog Fuoweaig
IS PUE SOMEAATY JO (AQUSILR{{)SsaNT

[oF i FSELLESE (E56°56E 357 [EET EZC 68L G (€861 6E) Gelvel) (T659LE) €8 [EL GET6EL CLLE9T0F (5E55T668) (sas)saamog JurduruLy SGQ FIOL
(€566 85) - (E367C8E 8L (er8'vel'se) - (518761600 L8 (6L - €I8 TEL ({GE59%668) B [OEEHYS) GESMQ SRYSRLL
Tk 18¢ 10V 188 aLd'es ALHes {szL'vb1) [Gan] - 6ET°6EL 6ET'6EL ) PpUmg eREaATY UG -HHS-I] SIS
£E6S66°8E £56'56E'3E EIHET6E £18'P61°6E (ez8°1£2) (E28I£L) 9£6°976'6% 9£5°9T6°6€ PR {BI9620) -] §-0] SIS
(s3sp7)ss0mog Buidueun] 2000
[EIFR 3] (PEE'LL6'3E) [N (O8IZT0T) (STT 8L 6L) LEFTSLLE €661 FA3E0E] (656'4L8) {BLEGET ) {&ircas'or) 96£9ES $E semypuadicg {13pur)) KA
sanusATY Jo (Aousionag]) ssaoxy
LB ESI YL FEELLETE 075 739'SE 286°ER0°TL £TT68L°6E SOFESTIE (€651 (zggorg} 656 7.8 8978017 SLLCS T 90681+ 0E panf {BI2URE) - SAMYPUNDIE [FIOL
€05 CeeT - TR LEE T €67 00KC - £6T00F T (00TEY - 0TSy THECOF T - TEESOF T SI00UR SSLITL) OF SPUTY JO J3SUBIL [RIOL
€08 S6ET - €09 56E T 6T 00K T - T6T08FT Qor's) B [{0i45) EOESOF T - EEESOFT $00GS5 AOLRY) OF SPLELY JO ISIEI],
STOOHDS ¥FLYVHD
€L 8L - €22 811 [CEE - 2518 (000°0€) B {000°0g) 1¥9°8F1 - 150801 {o0l2g JaEmmg o],
EZT L - £ZTRIL TF311 - [ (G6a0e) - {00607 [REETH = [T SI9YRLR T, JO SITLG
$T00HIS TYIDH4S
0857EFS 370131 89 19% SOTHIS T PESTRI VIETEET [T YE96L STk 16! ST ERT T 00Z €01 BT Aepng) fende) el
- . B . - B . = - B - - sosuor] [eade)) £opuf) pasmbay s1assy [B10L
- - - - - - - - - - . = TOULATST] [00g35

(B1aBpnquong} 82887 Teside)) sopuy) panubay s16sy

106251 - TE5 291 CEEO50°T - C38°050°( 6T 0V - 368CF 6S6'600'T - 6566001 SCOAIBS 5K0]) PUR "SIbIY S [IOL

- - - - - - GPETSE) - (cye 190} SPET9T - SPE 9T [edfous] - 5)0eMAUEY SSTIOM] 50T

LITYTE LITHE1 000°057 006'0sz 000'05T 000'057 - s301ATRG FURSmERE eI Y

$04°3% S0L'8E ££8°008 $61°008 rais W'z ¥19'8PL ¥I9'8PL SS0MAJGS UOHORSSTOT)

S530[AIE VOLINNSUO]) PUE UUIISTEDOY SSHTIOR]

8SL°6LE ENE 0EL'86T £5E E9F PEYIET 615087 £CT0ET [T 615051 Q0Z°EET 00T E0L 000701 wsmdrby proL
TP psl - T FET st - TrF Pl ST - [l - - - {swresBasd 1y} S[00YDg [eLedg
ST - 9E6TH L0'sr - U0'Ek (zz6'98) - {zz6'98) 000°0¢] - 000°051 5 “AJ3G [PUORONDSIT-UON,
N - - - - - - - - B[] PUR SITRESIIERY 3O WoneId0)
- - - - - - - - - TONENSIUTIRY (21050

- sanmyzpuiedxy paimqLosTpr
- - - - - - - - WOOY JUTOSTY

- QoIS - TOREPT [ERG
- . - - - - - - surgzfong [FUGNoRGSa] () fue Parosuads (0oyag
L61'sE PHEY 251 $ FREIZI F8'ER 000°€8 §  PP89L1 #HR'Er 000°€8 $ - - TI-6 53pes0)
062l W6TEL 0671 6T ¥1 0657 06E'T 00671 00671 89 $3PWH
p68'TTI § 68T $ 00291 § 0oL%el g 00¥'bE § oot're H 00E°06 $ 00£°06 $ -1 sopiD)
LI P omosaL]

wonsnnsy - sweidol] remisy

.UQBE.:_QN
AVILOO TYLIAVD
P YT E1-T8 pung piny FTpung Hgiycixd Dot St pueg ET-TIPang PanY FTpang ETTroway
[LACLESY WINSTY punyg [LAELE ] ERELTCEY pung jLatl e INN0SIY ponyg TeIdU3H 220053y pung
oL, Ppapealg Buperadg [sleL papualy Bupessd [E10L papuapy Sopendg 1510 L popualg Bugesadp
fELEAY 1wipng jadpayg PEpeg
[EIEL] Fafpig g T3SATAL 390PRE 133pRg (EUEI0

1107 “0£ NI GAINT HVEA TVISIL THL H0d
AIATAIS NOSHVINOD KIVIEDANE DNINITHOD
INAT TVHINED
NOLLYONOE 40 G VOd O TALIAVD

YI-O LI4IHX3

64



REVENUES
State Sources

Federal Sources
Other

Total Revenues

EXPENDITURES
Instruction
Salaries of Teachers

Other Salaries for Instruction

Purchased Professional Education Services
Other Purchased Prof. Ed. Services

Other Purchased Services

Generzl Supplies
Textboeks
Other Objects

Total Instruction

Support Services

Saiaries of Supervisors of Instruction
Sataries of Program Directors

Salaries of Other Professional Staff
Salaries of Secretarial and Clerical Asst,

Other Salarics

Salaries of Community Parent Involvment Spec
Salaries of Master Teachers

Indirect Costs

Purchased Ed. Services-Contracted Pre-K
Purchased Professional Education Services
Other Purchased Prof. Ed. Services

Other Purchased Prof. Services

Cleaning Repait and Maintenance
Contracted Services - Transportation

Travel

Supplies and Materials

Energy
Other Objects

Total Student and Instruction Related Services
Unsilocated Employee Benefits

Facilities Acquisition and Construction

Services

Construction Services
Instruction Equipment
Noninstruetional Equipment

Tatal Facilities Acquisition and Construction

Tatal Expenditures

Exeess (Defiviency) of Revenues
Over (Under} Expenditures

Other Financing Sources {Uses)
Transfer Out - Contribution
To School Based Budgets (SBB)

Totat Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues and
Other Financing Sources Gver/(Under)
Expenditures and Other Financing (Uses)

Fund Balances, Beginning of Year

Fund Batances, End of Year

GARFIELD BOARD OF EDUCATION

SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED FUNE 30, 2011

EXRBIBIT C-2

Original Budget Final Variance
Budget Transflers Budget Actunl Final to Actual
3 8,290,659 43,529 3 8,334,188 7,500,033 (834,155)
2,348,683 1,508,904 3,857,587 3,531,556 (326,031)
- 28,869 28,869 28 869 -
10,639,342 1,581,302 12,22¢,644 11,060,458 {1,160,186)
2,747,340 {304,410) 2,442,930 2,190,274 252,656
850,683 446,208 1,296,296 1,221,842 74,454
£,279 {163) L1186 - LIlG
4,932 {238) 4,694 - 4,694
1,289,339 981,540 2,270,885 2,192,696 78,189
140,475 195,969 336,445 277,457 58,988
3,255 (1,152) 2,103 1,705 398
5,000 2,856 7,856 1,858 -
5,641,705 1,320,616 6,362,325 5,891,830 470,485
173,108 70,323 243,423 232,159 11,264
281,100 - 281,100 269,100 12,000
348,005 - 348,005 334,548 13,457
188,617 - 188,617 188,617 -
330,468 - 330,468 220,269 110,199
143,211 - 143,21t 86,165 31,046
261,234 8,000 269,234 263,260 5,974
32,589 53,448 86,037 §1,933 4,104
1,053,110 - 1,053,110 968,909 84,201
5,660 34,878 40,538 29,563 [0.977
86,500 {53,605) 32,895 - 12,895
86,587 42,861 126,448 118,602 10,846
71,465 25,000 96,465 54,288 2,177
7,500 - 7,500 4,639 2,861
7,500 - 7,500 1,357 6,143
69,243 8,506 71,749 74,905 2,844
- 35,283 133,283 135,283 -
3,000 {283) 2,717 2,547 170
3,148,889 324411 3,473,300 3,106,142 167,158
1,473,371 {268,935) 1,204,936 897,865 367,067
- 28,869 28,869 28,869 -
209,734 291,886 501,620 499,164 2456
26,000 29,184 55,184 55,183 1
215,734 349,939 585,673 583,216 2,457
9,900,203 1,726,031 1,626,234 10,479,057 1,147,197
739,139 (144,729) 594410 581,40% {13,009)
{739,130 144,726 (594,410} (581,401) 13,009
{739,139) 144,729 (594,410) (581,401) 13,009
$ - - 3 - - -
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EXHIBIT C-3

GARFIELD BOARD OF EDUCATION
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
NOTES TO THE REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
FOR THE, FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

Formal budgetary infegration into the accounting system is employed as a management control device during the year. For
governmental funds there are no substantial differences between the budgetary basis of accounting and accounting principles
generally accepied in the United States of America, with the exception of the legally mandated revenue recognition of certain
state aid payments for budgetary purposes only and the treatment of encumbrances in the special revenue fund as described
below. Encumbrance accounting is alse employed as an extension of formal budgetary integration of the governmental fund
types. Unencumbered appropriations lapse at fiscal year end.

The accounting records of the Special Revenue Fund are maintained on the grant accounting budgetary basis. The grant
accounting budgetary basis differs from GAAP in thai the grant accounting budgetary basis recognizes encumbrances as
expenditures and also recognizes the related revenues, whereas the GAAP basis does not, Sufficient supplemental records
are maintained to allow for the presentation of GAAP basis financial reports.

The following presents a reconciliation of the General and Special Revenue Funds from the budgetary basis of accounting
as presented in the Budgetary Comparison Schedule - General Fund and Special Revenue Fund to the GAAP basis of
accounting as presented in the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance - Governmental Funds.

Special
General Revenue
Fund Fund

Sources/inflows of resources
Actual amounts {budgetary basis) "revenue”

from the budgetary comparison schedule (Exhibits C-1, C-2) $ 74,103,660 § 11,060,458
Difference - Budget to GAAP:

Grant accounting budgetary basis differs from GAAP in that

encumbrances are recognized as expenditures, and the related

revenue is recognized.

Encumbrances, June 30, 2010 284,971
Encumbrances, June 30, 2011 (322,264)

State Aid payments recognized for GAAP purposes not recognized
for Budgetary statemenis (June 30, 2010) 4,644,592 172

State Aid payments recognized for Budgetary purposes not recognized
for GAAP statements (Fune 30, 2011) (4,581,673) -

Total revenues as reporied on the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures
and Changes in Fund Balances - Governmental Funds (Exhibit B-2) $ 74,166,579 § 11,023,337

Uses/outflows of resources
Actuat amounts (budgetary basis) "total outflows™ from the
budgetary comparison schedule $ 74659874 § 10,479,057

Differences - Budget to GAAP
Encumbrances for supplies and equipment ordered but
not received are reporied in the year the order is placed for
budgetary purposes, but in the year the supplies are received
for financial reporting putposes,

Encumbrances, June 30, 2010 284,971
Encumbrances, Tune 30, 2011 - (322,264)

Total expenditures as repotted on the Statement of Revenues,
Fxpenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances - Governmental Funds (Exhibit B-2) $  74,659.874 3 10,441,764
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EXHIBIT D-1

GARFIELD BOARD OF EDUCATION

GENERAL FUND
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
AS OF JUNE 30, 2011
Operating Blended Total
Fund Resource General
Fund 11-13 Fund 15 Fund
ASSETS
Cash $ 70,766 $ 70,766
Receivables
Intergovernmental
State 122,896 122,896
Due from Other Funds 11,080 $ 898,155 909,235
Other Current Assets 8,333 - 8,333
Total Assets $ 213,075 $§ 898,155 § 1,111,230
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities
Accounts Payable $ 535179 $ 898,155 $§ 1,433,334
Compensated Absences Payable 990,821 990,821
Due to Other Funds 386,662 386,662
Deferred Revenue 2,069 2,069
Other Liabilities 70,765 - 70,765
Total Liabilities 1,985,496 898,155 2,883,651
Fund Balances
Restricted Fund Balance
Legally Restricted - Register Audit Recoveries 6,112 6,112
Capital Reserve Account 1 1
Reserved Excess Surplus 67,127 67,127
Committed Fund Balance
Year End Encumbrances 812,150 812,150
Assigned Fund Balance
Year End Encumbrances 50,889 50,889
Designated for Subsequent Year's Expenditures 315,525 315,525
Unassigned Fund Balance/(Deficit) (3.024,225) - (3,024,225)
Total Fund Balances {Deficit) (1,772,421} - {1,772,421)
Total Liabilities and Fund Balances $ 213075 $ 898,155 § 1,111,230
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EXHIBIT D-2

GARFIELD BOARD OF EDUCATION
BLENDED RESOURCE FUND 15
COMBINING STATEMENT OF EXPENDITURES ALLOCATED BY RESOURCE TYPE-ACTUAL
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 34, 2011

Districtwide Total

Resouree Distriet-Wide Expeaditures

Amount Blended Allocated as a

(Final % of Total % of Total Total/Surplus
Budget) Resotirces Resources Carryover
Resources
General Fund Contribution b 39,128,865 $ 38,330,005 § 798,860
General Fund Encumbrances - June 30, 2010 65,948 65,948 -
39,194.813 38,395,953 798.860

Other State Resources

Other State Resources - - - |

Combined General Fund Contribution and State Resources 39,194 813 98.51% 38,395,953 798,860

Restricted Federal Resources

Title I, Part A 492,314 481,388 10,926
492 314 1.24% 481,388 10,926
Title I Part A 102,096 100,013 2,083
Title I, Part A -June 30, 2010 Deferred Revenues - - -
102,096 0.26% 100,013 2,083
IDEA ARRA - - -
- 0.00% - -
Restricted Federal Resources Total 594,410 1.49% 581,401 13,009
Totals s 39,789,223 100.00% § 38,977354 § 811,869
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EXHIBIT D-2.1

GARFIELD BOARD OF EDUCATION
BLENDED RESOURCE FUND 15
STATEMENT OF EXPENDITURES ALLOCATED BY RESOURCE TYPE-ACTUAL
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

School 2 - Garfield High School

Total Total/Surplus
Expeaditures Carryover
Resource % of Total % of Total % of Total
Amount Resources Resources Resources
Resources
General Fund Contribution $ 10,612,650 $  10,457909 § 154,741
General Fund Encumbraaces - June 30, 2010 16,252 16,252 -
10,628,902 10,474,161 154,741
Other State Resources
Other State Resources - - -
Combined General Fund Contribution and State Resources 10,628,902 98.37% 10,474,161 154,741
Restricted Federal Resources
Title I, Part A 124,759 122,943 1.816
124,759 1.15% 122,943 1,816
Title T Part A 51,048 50,305 743
Title 11, Part A -June 30, 2010 Deferred Revenues - - -
51,048 0.47% 50,305 743
IDEA ARRA - - “
- 0.00% - -
Restricted Federal Resources Total 175,807 1.63% 173,248 2,559
Totals $ 10,804,709 100.00% $  10,647409 § 157,300
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EXHIBIT D-2.2

GARFIELD BOARD OF EDUCATION
BLENDED RESOURCE FUND 15
STATEMENT OF EXPENDITURES ALLOCATED BY RESOURCE TYPE-ACTUAL
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

School 4 - Washingion frving

Total Total/Surplus
Expenditures Carryover
Resource % of Total % of Total % of Total
Amount Resources Resources Resources
Resources
General Fund Contribution b 3,006,508 b 2,975,320 % 31,188
General Fund Encumbrances - June 30, 2010 783 783 -
3.007.291 2,976,103 31.188
Other State Resources
Other State Resources - - -
Combined General Fund Contribution and State Resources 3,007,291 98.92% 2,976,103 31,188
Restricted Federal Resources
Title L, Part A 32,893 32,552 341
32,893 1.08% 32,552 341
Title 1T Part A - R -
Title II, Part A -June 30, 2010 Deferred Revenues - - -
- 0.00% - -
IDEA ARRA - - -
- 0.00% - -
Restricted Federal Resources Total 32,893 1.08% 32,552 341
Totals $ 3,040,184 100,00% $ 3,008,655 § 31,529
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EXHIBIT D-2.3

GARFIELD BOARD OF EDUCATION
BLENDED RESOURCE FUND 15
STATEMENT OF EXPENDITURES ALLOCATED BY RESOURCE TYPE-ACTUAL
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

School 5 - Woodrow Wilson

Total ~ Total/Surplus
Expenditures Carryover
Resource % of Total % of Total % of Total
Amount Resources Resources Resources
Resources
General Fund Contribution % 2,831,846 $ 2,776,721 § 55,125
General Fund Encumbrances - June 30, 2010 12,167 12,167 -
2.844.013 2,788,888 55,125
Other State Resources
Other State Resources - - -
Combined General Fund Contribution and State Resources 2,844,013 98.82% 2,788,888 55,125
Restricted Federal Resources
Title I, Part A 34,054 33,394 660
34,054 1.18% 33,394 660
Title I Part A - -
Title If, Part A -June 30, 2010 Deferred Revenues - - -
- 0.00% - -
IDEA ARRA - - -
- 0.00% - -
Restricted Federal Resources Total 34,054 1.18% 33,394 660
Totals 3 2,878,067 100.00% § 2,822,282 § 55,785
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EXHIBIT D-2.4

GARFIELD BOARD OF EDUCATION
BLENDED RESOURCE FUND 135
STATEMENT OF EXPENDITURES ALLOCATED BY RESOURCE TYPE-ACTUAL
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

School 6 - Abraham Lincoln

Total Total/Surplus
Expenditures Carryover
Resource % of Total % of Tetal % of Total
Amount Resources Resources Resources
Resources
General Fund Contribution $ 3,715,204 3 3,652,433 § 62,861
General Fund Encumbrances - June 30, 2010 1,872 1,872 -
3.717.166 3,654,305 62.861
Other State Resources
Other State Resources - - -
Combined General Fund Coniribution and State Resources 3,717,166 98.58% 3,654,305 62,861
Restricted Pederal Resources
Title I, Part A 53,685 52,777 908
53,685 1.42% 52,777 508
Title If Part A - -
Title IE, Part A -June 30, 2010 Deferred Revenues - - -
- 0.00% - -
IDEA ARRA - . .
- 0.00% - -
Restricted Federal Resources Total 53,685 1.42% 32,777 908
Totals $ 3,770,851 100.00% $ 3,707.082 § 63,765
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EXHIBIT D-2.5

GARFIELD BOARD OF EDUCATION
BLENDED RESOURCE FUND 15
STATEMENT OF EXPENDITURES ALLOCATED BY RESOURCE TYPE-ACTUAL
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

School 7 - Roosevelt

Total Total/Surplus
Expenditures Carryover
Resource % of Total % of Total % of Total
Amount Resources Resources Resources
Resources
General Fund Contribution $ 2,668,545 3 2,575,982 % 92,563
General Fund Encumbrances - June 30, 2010 8,804 8,804 -
2,677,349 2,584,786 92.563
Other State Resources
Other State Resources - - -
Combined General Fund Contribution and State Resources 2,677,349 98.32% 2,584,786 92,563
Restricted Federal Resources
Title {, Part A 45,825 44 241 1,584
45,825 1.68% 44241 1,584
Title I Part A . .
Title Ii, Part A -June 30, 2010 Deferred Revenues - - -
- 0.00% - -
IDEA ARRA ' . . .
- 4.00% - -
Restricted Federal Resources Total 45,825 1.68% 44,241 1,584
Totals $ 2,723,174 100.00% $ 2,629,627 3% 94,147
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EXHIBIT D-2.6

GARFIELD BOARD OF EDUCATION
BLENDED RESOURCE FUND 15
STATEMENT OF EXPENDITURES ALLOCATED Y RESOURCE TYPE-ACTUAL
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

School 8 - Columbus

Total Total/Surplus
Expenditures Carryever
Resource % of Total %% of Total % of Total
Amount Resources Resources Resources
Resources
General Fund Contribution $ 3,831,390 $ 3,581,788 % 249,602
General Fund Encumbrances ~ June 30, 2010 6,118 6,118 -
3,837,508 3.587.906 249,602
Other State Resources
Other State Resources - - -
Combined General Fund Contribution and State Resources 3,837,508 98.10% 3,587,906 249,602
Restricted Federal Resources
Tifle I, Part A 58,004 54,231 3,773
58,004 1.48% 54,231 3,773
Title If Part A 16,335 15,273 1,062
Title 11, Part A -June 30, 2010 Deferred Revenues - - -
16,315 0.42% 15,273 1,062
IDEA ARRA - - -
- 0.00% - -
Restricted Federal Resources Total 74,339 1.90% 69,504 4,835
Totals b 3,911,847 100.00% $ 3,657,410 § 254,437
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EXHIBIT D-2.7

GARFIELD BOARD OF EDUCATION
BLENDED RESOURCE FUND 15
STATEMENT OF EXPENDITURES ALLOCATED BY RESOURCE TYPE-ACTUAL
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

School 9 - Thomas Jefferson Middie School

Total Total/Surplus
Expenditures Carryover
Resource % of Total % of Total % of Total
Amount Resources Resources Resources
Resources
General Fund Contribution $ 8,776,879 b 8,706,720 % 70,159
General Fund Encumbrances - June 30, 2010 9,627 9,627 -
8.786.506 8716347 70,159
Other State Resources
Other State Resources - - -
Combined General Fund Contribution and State Resources 8,786,506 98.53% 8,716,347 70,159
Resiricted Federal Resources
Title I, Part A 96,167 95,399 768
96,167 1.08% 95,399 768
Title 11 Part A 34,713 34,436 277
Title 11, Part A -Tune 30, 2010 Deferred Revenues - - -
34,713 0.39% 34,436 277
IDEA ARRA - - -
- 0.00% - -
Restricted Federal Resources Total 130,880 1.47% 129,835 1,045
Totals 3 8,917,386 100.00% § 8,846,182 § 71,204
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GARFIELD BOARD OF EDUCATION
BLENDED RESOURCE FUND 15

STATEMENT OF EXPENDITURES ALLOCATED BY RESOURCE TYPE-ACTUAL

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

School 10 - Madison School 10

Resource
Amount
Resources
General Fund Contribution $ 2,198,034
General Fund Encumbrances - June 30, 2010 7,668
2,205,702
Other State Resources
Other State Resources -
Combined General Fund Contribution and State Resources 2,205,702
Restricted Federal Resources
Title 1, Part A 23,974
23,974
Title 1§ Part A
Title I1, Part A -June 30, 2010 Deferred Revenues -
IDEA ARRA -
Resiricted Federal Resources Total 23,974
Totals 3 2,229,676
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EXHIBIT D-2.8

Total Total/Surplus
Expenditures Carryover
% of Total % of Total % of Total
Resources Resources Resources
$ 2,154,526 $ 43,508
7,668 -
2,162,194 43,508
93.92% 2,162,194 43,508
23,501 473
1.08% 23,501 473
0.00% - -
0.00% - -
1.08% 23,501 473
100.00% 3 2,185,695 § 43,981




GARFIELD BOARD OF EDUCATION
BLENDED RESOURCE FUND 15

STATEMENT OF EXPENDITURES ALLOCATED BY RESOURCE TYPE-ACTUAL

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 34, 2011

School 4 - Washington Irving - Annex

Resource
Amount
Resources
General Fund Condribution $ 1,487,719
General Fund Encumbrances - June 30, 2010 2,657

1,490,376

Other State Resources

Other State Resources -

Combined General Fund Contribution and State Resources 1,490,376
Restricted Federal Resources
Title I, Part A 22,953
22,953
Title T Part A .
Title II, Part A -June 30, 2010 Deferred Revenues -
IDEA ARRA -
Restricted Federal Resources Total 22,953
Totals $ 1,513,329

T

EXHIBIT D-2.9

Total Total/Surplus
Expenditures Carryover
% of Total % of Total % of Total
Resources Resources Resources
$ 1,448,604 § 39,115
2,657 -
1,451,261 39,115
98.48% 1,451,261 39,115
22,351 602
1.52% 22,351 602
0.00% - -
0.00% - -
1.52% 22,351 602
100.00% § 1,473.612 § 39,717




EXHIBIT D-3
GARFIELD BOARD OF EDUCATION
BLENDED RESOURCE FUNI} 15
COMBINING STATEMENT OF BLENDED EXPENIHTURES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

Variance
Original Budget Final Final to
Budget Transfer Budget Actual Actual
EXPENDITURES
CURRENT EXPENDHTURES
Districtwide
Regular Programs-Instriction
Salaries of Teachers
Kindergarten 3 1,029,833 § (126,819 $ 903,014 % 881,583 § 21,431
Grades 1-5 8,622,725 {263,183) 8,357,542 8,261,670 95,872
Grades 6 - 8 4,059,357 108,857 4,168,214 4,160,581 7,633
Grades 9 - 12 5,010,242 {351,900} 4,658,342 4,628,898 29,444
Total 18,722,157 (635,045) 18.087.112 17,932,732 154.380
Regular Programs - Undistributed Instruction
Other Salaries for Instruction - " - - -
Purchase Professional Educational Services 37,700 (6,867) 30,833 22,143 8,690
General Supplies 656,350 (23,426) 632,924 623,267 9,657
Textbooks 82,980 (31,516) 51,464 45458 6,006
Other Objects 88,894 (38,050) 50,844 44,046 6,798
Total 865.924 (99,859} 766,065 734,914 3t,15%
Tetal Regular Programs - Instruction 15,588.081 (734.904) 18.853.177 18.667.646 185,531
Special Education - Instructicn
Learning and/or Disabilities
Salary of Teachers 1,545,699 141,390 1,687,089 §,656,738 30,351
Other Salary for Instructors 483,554 237,659 721,213 698,196 23,017
General Supplies 82,906 {19,537) 63,363 54,925 8438
Textbooks 15,750 (1,600) 14,750 12,324 2,426
Other Objects - - - - -
Total 2,127.903 358512 2486415 2422183 64,232
Multiple Disabifities
Salaries of Teachers 189,620 3,185 192 805 192,805 -
(Hher Salaries for Instruction 60,825 (29,936) 30,889 29,117 1,772
General Supplies 11,600 - 11,600 11,437 163
Textbooks 1,000 - 1,000 080 20
Total 263,045 (26,751) 236,294 234,339 1,955
Resource Room
Salaries of Teachers 1,918,761 82,851 2,001,612 1,971,725 29,887
Other Salaries for Instruction - - - - -
General Supplies 47,150 (13,637) 33,513 30,453 3,060
Textbooks 14,800 {4,750) 10,050 6,618 3,432
Other Objects - - - - -
Total 1.980,7i1 64,464 2045 175 2,008.796 36,379
Total Special Education - Instruction 4371659 396,225 4,767,884 4,665,318 102,566
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EXHIBIT D-3
GARFIELD BOARD OF EDUCATION
BLENDED RESOURCE FUND 15
COMBINING STATEMENT OF BLENDED EXPENDITURES - BUPGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 38, 2011

Variance
Original Budget Final Tinsl to
Budget TFransfer Budget Actual Actual
EXPENDITURES
CURRENT EXPENDITURES
Districtwide
Bilingual Education
Salaries of Teachers $ 1,593,302 % 166,075 $ 1,759,377  § 1,584,343  § 175,034
General Supplies 21,315 {2,010) 19,305 5,652 13,653
Textbooks 8,206 {4,700) 3,506 8% 3417
Other Objects - - " - -
Total 1,622,823 159,365 1,782,188 1,590,084 192,104 |
Schaol Sponsored Cocurricular Activities
Salaries 340,591 {21,186} 319,405 192,877 126,528
Other Purchased Services 1,500 - 1,500 - 1,500
Supplies and Materials 13,000 (8,000} 5,000 4,900 160
Other Objects 300 - 300 - 300
Total 355.391 {29,186) 326205 197,777 128,428
School Sponsored Athletics - Instruction
Salaries 310,275 (16,227) 294,048 293,560 488
Other Purchased Services 131,550 (1,630) [29,920 101,638 28,282
Supplies and Materials 45,050 867 49917 49,690 227
Othter Objects 15,850 (1,500) 18,390 16,403 1,987
Total 510,765 (18.490) 492275 461.291 30984
Other Instructional Programs
Gther Objects - - - - -
Totai - - - R -
Total Insteuction 26448719 (226 990} 26,221,729 25582116 638613
Attendance and Social Work
Salaries 270,229 (12,050) 258,179 251,104 7,075
Other Objects - - - “ -
Total 270,229 {12,050} 258,179 251,104 71075
Health Services
Salaries 589,703 33,166 622,869 621,833 1,016
Other Puechased Services 2,700 {200} 2,500 535 1,965
Supplies and Materials 64,859 (26,187} 38,672 32,479 6,193
Other Objects 4,000 (3,000% 1,600 591 409
Total 661,262 3779 665,041 655458 9.583
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COMBINING STATEMENT OF BLENDED EXPENDITURES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

EXPENDITURES
CURRENT EXPENDITURES

Districtwide

Other Support Services - Students - Guidance
Salaries of Other Professional Staff
Salaries of Secretarial and Clerical
Other Purchased Services
Supplies and Materials
Qther Objects

Total

Improvement of Enstructional Services
Salaries Supervisors of Instruction
Salaries of Other Professional Staff
Supplies and Materials
Other Objects

Total

Educational Media/School Library
Salaries
Supplics and Materials
Other Objects

Total

Instruciional Staff Training Services

Purchased Professional Educational Services
Other Objects

Total

Support Service ~ School Administration
Salasies of Principals/Assistant Principals
Salaries of Other Professional Staff
Salaries of Sec't and Clerical Assistants
Other Purchased Services
Supplics and Materials
Other Objects

Total

Other Operation & Maintenance of Plant Services
Salaries
Supplies and Materials

Total

GARFIELD BOARD OF EDUCATION
BLENDED RESOURCE FUND 15

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

EXHIBIT D-3

Variance
Original Budget Final Final to
Budget Transfer Budget Actual Actual

$ 921,174 (38,385) 882,789 858376 % 24,413

61,980 - 61,980 61,980 -
58,444 (18,000) 40,444 34,429 6,015
49,351 (10,107) 39,244 31,841 7,403
1,090,949 (66,492) 1.024.457 986,626 37.831
327450 101,411 428,861 427,800 1,061
163,625 (62,419 101,206 100,552 654
491.075 38.992 530,067 528352 1.715
10,325 200,603 210,628 209413 1,515
110,900 (18,165) 92,735 77,111 15,624
121,225 182,438 303.663 286.524 17,139

154,000 (154,000) - - .

154,000 {154,000) - . -
1,817,050 (106,200} 1,710,850 1,764,500 6,350
266,100 20,600 286,100 284,550 1,550
776,845 (1,034) 775,811 773,401 2410
148,375 (31,406) 116,969 109,380 7,589
260,225 {38,819 221,406 201,062 20,344
72,861 {15316) 57,545 47,577 9,968
3.341.456 (172.715) 3,168,681 3,120,470 48211

- 121,389 £21,389 121,389 -
- 121,389 121,389 121,389 -
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EXHIBIT D-3
GARFIELD BOARD OF EDUCATION
BLENDED RESOURCE FUND 15
COMBINING STATEMENT OF BLENBED EXPENDITURES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2611

Yariance

Original Budget Final Final ¢o
Budget Transfer Buodget Actugl Aciual

EXPENDITURES

CURRENT EXPENDITURES

Districtwide

Student Transportation Services

Contracted Services (Between Home & School) -

Veadors $ 42520 % (19,225 § 23295 % 18941 § 4,354
Total 42,520 (19,225) 23,205 18,941 4,354
Unallocated Employee Benefits

Sociaf Security 213,550 62,400 275,950 275,950 -
Health Benefits 7,727,590 (713,652) 7,013,938 6,969,396 44,542
Total 7.541.140 (651,252) 7.289.888 7.245,346 44 542
Total Undistributed Expenditures 14.113.856 (729,196} 13,384,660 13.214.210 170,450
Total $chool Based Budgst Current Expense 40,862 575 {956.186) 39,606,389 38796326 310,063
Capitai Outlay
Equipent
Kindergarten - - - . -
Equipment Grades 1 -5 90,300 34,400 124,700 122,804 1,806
Equipment Grades 6-8 12,900 1,390 14,290 14,290 -
Equiptient Grades 9-12 - 43,844 43,844 43,844 -
School-Sponsored and Other Instructional Programs - - - - -
Leaming and/or Language Disabilitics - - - - -
Bagic Skills - - - - -
Bilinngual ‘ - - - - -
Resource Room - - - - -
Support Staff - Instructional - B - - -
School Administration - - - . B
Undistributed Expenditares - Support Services « Students ~ Regular n - - - -
{ndistributed Expenditures - Operation of Plant Services - - - - -
Total Capital Outlay 103,200 79,634 182,834 181,028 1,806
TOTAL SCHOOL BASED EXPENDITURES 40,665,775 {876,552 39,789,223 38,977,354 811,869
(ther Financing Sources:

Operating Transfer In 40,665,775 {876,552) 39,789,223 38,977,354 811,869

Total Other Financing Sources: 40,665,775 {876,552) 39,789,223 38,977,354 811,869

Excess (Deficiency) of Other Financing Sources Over
{Under) Expenditures and Other Financing (Uses) - - - - -

Fund Baiance , Beginning of Year - M - - -

Fund Balance, End of Year $ - $ - $ - $ - $ .
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EXPENDITURES
CURRENT EXPENDITURES

Schaol 2 - Garfield High School
Regular Programs-Instruction
Salaries of Teachers
Kindergarten
Grades 1 - 5
Grades 6 - 8
Grades 9 - 12

Total

Regular Programs - Undisteibuted Enstruction
Other Salaries for fnstrction
Purchase Professional Educational Services
General Suppiies
Textbooks
Other Objects

Total
Total Regular Programs - Instruction

Spaocial Education - Instrugtion
Leaming and/or Disabifities
Salaries of Teachers
Other Salaries for Instruction
General Supplies

Texthooks
Other Chjects

Total

Multiple Disabilities
Salaries of Teachets
Other Sajaries for Instruction

General Supplies
Texthooks

Total

Rescurce Room
Salaries of Teachers
Other Salaries for Instruction
General Supplies

Textbooks
Other Objects

Total

Total Special Education - Instruction

GARFIELD BOARD OF EDUCATION

BLENDSD RESOURCE FUND 15
STATEMENT OF BLENDED EXPENDITURES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE FISCAI YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

EXHIBIT D-3.1

Variance

Origing| Budget Final Final to

Budget Transfer Budget Actual Actual
$ 5,010,242 (351,900) 4,658,342 4,628,898 $ 29,444
5,010.242 (351,900) 4,658,342 4.628.898 29,444
9,400 - 9,400 4,941 4,459
165,750 (4,214) 161,536 158,356 3,180
22,100 - 22,100 21,937 163
18,000 (8,008) 10,000 5,900 100
215,250 (12,214 203,036 195,134 7.902
5.225492 {364.114) 4,861,378 4824032 37,346
338,156 25,000 363,156 362,991 165
67,581 59,984 127,565 121,141 6,424
24,250 (11,984) 12,266 11,271 995
5,000 - 5,600 4,654 346
434,987 73,000 507,987 500,057 7,930
508,381 62,000 570,381 569,754 627
£3,650 (8,000 5,650 4,987 663
6,500 - 6,500 5,127 1,373
528,531 54,000 582,531 579,868 2,663
963,518 127.000 1,090,518 1.079.925 10,593
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EXHIBIT D-3.1
GARFIELD BOARD OF EDUCATION
BLENDED RESOURCE FUND 15
STATEMENT OF BLENDED EXPENDITURES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

Variance
Original Budget Final Final to
Budget Transfer Budget Actual Actual
EXPENDITURES
CURRENT EXPENDITURES

School 2 - Garfield High School
Bilingual Education

Salaries of Teachers $ 262,790 - 262,190 262,192 598
General Supplies 4,752 - 4,752 1,270 3,482
Texthooks 476 - 476 476
Other Objects - - - - -
Total 268,018 - 268.018 263.462 4.556
School Sponsored Cocurricular Activities
Salaries 82,000 (£,335) 80,665 49,033 31,632
Other Purchased Services 1,500 - £,500 1,500
Supplies and Materials 13,000 {8,000} 5,000 4,900 106
Other Gbjects - - B - -
Total 96,500 {9.335) 87,165 53933 33332
School Sponsored Athletics - Instruction
Salaries 267,200 £9.335 286,535 286,535 -
Other Purchased Services 115,050 8,370 123,420 100,117 23,303
Supplies and Materials 47,050 867 47,917 47,690 227
Other Objects 16,890 - 16,850 16,403 487
Total 446,190 28.572 474,762 450,745 24017
Other Instructional Programs
Other Objects - - - - -
Total - - - - -
Total Instruction 6,969,718 {217,877} 6,781,841 6,672,097 109,744
Attendance and Sociat Worl
Salaries 177,089 300 177,389 177,368 21
Other Objects - - - - -
Total 177689 300 177,389 177.368 21
Health Services
Salarics 99,525 15,000 114,525 113,510 1,015
Other Purchased Services 300 - 300 [95 105
Suppties and Matezials 13,260 {4,000) 9,260 8,956 304
Other Objects - - - - -
Total 113,085 11,000 124.085 122,661 1,424
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EXPENIDMTURES
CURRENT EXPENDITURLES

School 2 - Garfield High Schoot

Other Support Services - Students - Guidance
Salaries of Other Professional Staff
Salaries of Sccretarial and Clerical
Other Purchased Services
Supplies and Materials
Other Objects

Total

Improvement of instructional Services
Salaries Supervisors of Instruction
Salaries of Other Professional Staff

Supplies and Materials
Other Objects

Total

Educational Media/School Library
Salaries
Supplies and Materials
Other Objects

Total

Inatructional Staff Training Services

Purchased Professional Educational Services
Other Objects
Tatal

Support Service - Schoof Administration
Salaries of Principals/Assistant Principals
Salaries of Other Professional Staff
Salaries of $ec't and Clerical Assistants
Other Purchased Services
Supplies and Materials
Other Objects

Total

Security

Salaries
Suppties and Materials

Total

GARFIELD BOARD OF EDUCATION

BLENDED RESOURCE FUND 15
STATEMENT OF BLENDLD EXPENDITURES - BUDGET AND ACTUAIL
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

EXHIBIT D-3.1

Variance
Original Budget Final Final to
Budget Transfer Budget Actual Actual

$ 494,338 300 464,638 494632 % 6

61,980 - 61,980 61,980 -
25,000 (10,000} 15,000 14,801 199
5,000 - 5,000 4,999 1
586318 (9.760) 576,618 576412 206
33,250 (30,719) 2,531 2,489 42
33,250 (30,719 2,531 2,489 42

103,950 103,950 103,950 -
27,625 350 27,975 21,454 6,521
27,625 104,300 131,925 125,404 6,521

42,000 {42,000) -

42,000 {42,000) - - -
422,600 560 433,160 423,006 100
266,100 20,000 286,100 284,550 1,550
180,367 500 180,867 180,616 251
22,150 22,150 21,038 1,112
75,600 (9,345) 65,655 56,347 9,308
30,600 (12,926} 17,074 16,544 530
996,217 {1.271) 994 546 982.085 12,851

80,926 80,926 80,926 -

- 80,926 80,926 80,926 -
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EXHIBIT D-3.1
GARFIELD BOARD OF EDUCATION
BLENDED RESQURCE FUND 15
STATEMENT OF BLENDED EXPENDITURES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

Variance
Original Budget Final Final to
Budget Transfer Budget Actusal Actual

EXPENDITURES
CURRENT EXPENDITURES

School 2 - Garfield High School
Student Transportation Services
Contracted Services (Other than Between Home & Schoof) -
Vendors $ 11,050 § (10,000) % 1,050 % - $ 1,050

Total 11,050 {10,0060) 1,050 - 1,050

Unallocated Empioyee Benefits

Social Security 66,400 15,500 81,900 81,900 -
Heaith Benefits 2,069,705 (262,051} 1,807,654 1,782,243 25,441
Total 2,136,105 (246,551) 1,889,554 1,864,113 25441

Total Undistributed Expenditurcs 4,122,739 (143.715) 3979024 3,931,468 47,556

Total School Based Budget Current Expense 18,122,457 (361.592) 10,760,865 10,603,565 157,300

Capital Outlay
Equiptment
Kindergarten
Equipment Grades 1 -5
Equipment Grades 6 -8
Eeuipment Grades 9-12 43,844 43,844 43,844 -
School-Sponsored and Other Instructional Programs
Learning and /or Eanguage Disabilities
Basic Skills
Bilingual
Resource Room
Support Staff - Instructional
Schoof Admiristration

Undistributed Expenditures - Support Services - Students - Regular .
Undistribured Expenditures - Operation of Plaat Services - - - - R

‘Total Capital Outlay - 43 844 43,844 43 844 -

TOTAL SCHOOL BASED EXPENDITURES 11,122,457 (317,748) 10,804,709 10,647,409 157,300

Other Financing Sources:
Operating Transfer In 11,122 457 (317,748) 10,804,709 10,647,409 157,300

Totai Other Financing Sources: 11,122,457 (317,748) 10,804,709 10,647,409 157,300

Excess (Deficiency) of Other Financing Sources Over
{Under) Expenditures and Other Financing (Uses) “ - - - -

Fund Balance , Beginning of Year - - - - -

Fuad Balance, Ead of Year 3 - $ - % - $ - $ -
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EXPENDITURES
CURRENT EXPENDITURES

Scheol 4 - Washington lvving
Regufar Programs-Instruction
Sataries of Teachers
Kindergarten
Grades 1 -5

Grades 6- 8
Grades 9- 12

Total

Regular Programs « Undistributed Instruction
Other Salaries for Instruction
Purchase Professional Educational Services
General Supplics
Textbooks
Othier Objects

Total

Total Regular Programs - Instruction

Special Education - [nstruction
Leaming and/or Disabilities
Salaries of Teachers
Other Salaries for Instruction
General Supplies
Textbooks
Other Objects

Total

Multiple Disabilities
Salaries of Teachers
Other Salaries for Instruction

General Supplies
Texthooks

Total

Resource Room
Salaries of Teachers
Other Salaries for Instruction
General Supplies

Textbooks
Other Objects

Total

Total Special Education - Instruction

GARFIELD BOARD OF EDUCATION

BLENDED RESQCURCE FUND 15
STATEMENT OF BLENDED EXPENDITURES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 39, 2011

EXHIBIT D-3.2

Variance
Original Budget Tinal Final to
Budget Transfer Budget Actual Actual

$ 1,332,062 % (46,660) £,285.402 1,2759717  § 9,425
1,332,062 (46,660} 1,285,402 1,275,977 9,425
2,600 - 2,600 1,339 1,261
42,000 249 42,249 41,896 353
5,600 46 5,646 5,645 1
8,160 (46) 8,114 6,321 1,793
58,360 249 58,609 55,201 3,408
1,390,422 {46,411) 1,344,011 1,331,178 12,833

47,355 3472 50,827 50,827 -

20275 62,661 82,936 82,936 -
3,950 - 3,950 3,677 273
1,000 - 1,000 998 2
72,580 66,133 138,713 138,438 275

189,620 3,185 192,805 192,805 -
60,825 (29,936) 30,889 29,117 1,772
11,600 - 11,600 11,437 163
1,000 u 1,000 980 20
263,045 (26,751} 236,294 234,339 1,955

72,140 - 72,140 72,140 -

2,500 - 2,500 2,498

£, 0G0 - 1,800 997 3
75,640 - 75,640 75,635 5
411,265 39,382 450,647 448412 2,235




EXPENDITURES
CURRENT EXPENDITURES

School 4 - Waghington Irying
Bilingual Education
Salaries of Teachess
General Supplies
Textbaoks
Other Objects
Totat

Schoal Sponsored Cocurricular Activities
Salaries
Other Purchased Services

Supplies and Materials
Other Objects

Total

School Sponsored Athletics ~ Instruction
Salaries
Other Purchased Services
Supplies and Materials
Other Objects
Total

Othier Instructional Programs
Other Objects
Tatal

Total Instruction

Attendance and Social Werk

Salaries
Other Objects
Tatal

Heaith Services
Salaries
Other Purchased Setvices

Suppiies and Materiats
Other Objects

Total

GARFIELD BOARD OF EDUCATION
BLENDED RESOURCE FUND 15

EXHIBIT D-3.2

STATEMENT OF BLENDED EXPENDITURES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

Variance
Original Budget Final Final ¢o
Budget Transfer Budget Actual Actual
$ 200,260 82,428 282,688 282,688 -
1,089 1,089 1,083 §$ 6
169 10¢ 89 20
201,458 82,428 283,886 283,860 26
21,647 - 21,647 16,921 4,726
21,647 - 21,647 16,921 4,726
300 300 300
300 - 300 - 360
20250972 75.399 2,100,491 2,080,371 20.120
37,897 - 37,897 37,897 -
306 (200} 100 160
3,360 (187) 3,173 3,161 12
41,557 (387) 41,170 41,058 112,00
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EXPENDITURES
CURRENT EXPENDITURES

School 4 - Washington Irving

Other Support Services - Students - Guidance
Salaries of Other Professional Staff
Salaries of Secrotarial and Clerical
Other Purchased Services

Supplies and Materials
Other Objects
Total

Improvement of [astructional Services
Safaries Supervisors of Instruction
Salaries of Other Professional Staff

Supplies and Materials
Other Objects

Total

Educational Media/Schoat Library
Salaries

Supplies and Matetials
Other Objects

Total

Instructional Staff Training Servicss
Purchased Professional Educational Services
Other Objects

Total

Support Service - School Administration
Salaries of Principals/Assistant Principals
Salaries of Other Professional Staff’
Salaries of Sec't and Clerical Assistants
Other Purchased Services

Supplies and Materials
Other Objects

Tatal

Security

Salaries

Supplies and Materials
Total

GARFIELD BOARD OF EDUCATION

BLENDED RESOURCE FUND 15
STATEMENT OF BLENDLD EXFENDITURES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

EXHIBIT D-3.2

Variance
Original Budget Final Final to
Budget Transfer Budget Actual Actual
$ 27,353 - 27,353 22,802 % 4,551
3,324 - 3,324 2,383 941
5,836 (2,252) 3,544 3543 I
36,513 (2,292) 34,221 28,728 5,493
53,675 53,675 53,525 150
20,850 (13,607} 7,243 7,238 5
74,525 {13.,607) 60,918 60,763 i55
7,000 (515) 6,485 6,485 -
7,000 (515} 6,485 6,485 -
9,000 (9,000} -
9,600 (9,000) R R R
141,900 n 141,900 141,960 -
60,414 250 60,664 60,664 -
12,550 (2,406) 10,144 9,938 206
22,400 (1,600) 20,800 20,546 254
4,200 534 4,734 4,711 23
241 464 (3,222) 238,242 237,759 483
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EXHIBIT D-3.2
GARFIELD BOARD OF EDUCATION
BLENDED RESOURCE FUND 15
STATEMENT OF BLENDED EXPENDITURES - BUDGET ANP ACTUAL
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 34, 2011

Yariance
Original Budget Final Finai to
Budget Transfer Budget Actual Actual

EXPENDITURES
CURRENT EXPENDITURES

Schoal 4 - Washington Irving
Student Transportation Services
Contracted Services (Other than Between Home & Schoot) -
Vendors 3 2,800 - $ 2,800 § 2,800 -

Total 2,800 - 2,800 2,800 -

Unallocated Employee Benefits

Social Security 13,000 % 7,400 20,400 20,400 -
Health Benefits 616,550 (107,400) 509,150 504,230 § 4,920

Totat 629,550 (100,000) 529,550 524,630 4,920

Total Undistributed Expenditures 1.042.409 {122.023} 913.386 902 223 11,163

Totat School Based Budget Current Expense 3.067.501 (53,624} 3.013.877 2,982,594 31,283

Capital Qutlay
Equipment
Kindergarten
Equipment Grades 1 -5 12,5900 13,407 26,307 26,061 246
Equipment Grades 6 -8
Equipment Grades 9-12
School-Sponsored and Other [nstructional Programs

Learning and /or Language Disabilities
Basic Skills
Bitingual

Rescurce Roorn
Support Staff - Instructional
School Administration

Undistributed Expenditures - Support Services - Stadents - Regular
Undistributed Expenditures - Operation of Plant Services - - - - -

Total Capital Outlay 12,900 13,407 26,307 26,061 246

TOTAL SCHOOL BASED EXPENDITURES 3,080,401 (40,217 3,040,184 3,008,655 31,529

Other Financing Sources:
Operating Transfer In 3,080,401 462177 3,040,184 3,008,655 31,529

Total Other Financing Sources; 3,080,401 {40211 3,040,184 3,008,655 31,529

Excess (Deficiency) of Other Firancing Sources Over
{Under) Expenditures and Other Financing (Uses) - - - - -

Fund Balance , Beginning of Year - - - - .

Fund Balance, End of Year $ - $ - $ - $ - $ -
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EXPENIMTURES
CURRENT EXPENDITURES

School 5§ - Woodrow Wilson
Regular Programs-Instruction
Salaries of Teachers
Kindergarten
Grades 1 -5
Grades 6 - 8
Grades 9 - 12

Total

Regular Programs - Undistributed Instruction
Other Salaries for Instruction
Purchase Professional Educational Services
Generaf Supplies

Textbooks
Other Objects

Tatal

Total Reguiar Progrars - Instruction

Special Education - Instruction
Loarning and/or Disabilities
Salaries of Teachers
Other Salaties for Instruction
General Supplies
Textbooeks
Other Objects
Total

Multiple Disabilities
Sataries of Teachers
(ther Salarics for Fnstruction

General Supplies
Textbooks

Tatal

Resource Room
Salaries of Teachers
Other Salaries for Instruction
General Supplies

Texibooks
Other Objects

Total

Total Special Education - Instruction

GARFIELD BOARD OF EDUCATION

BLENDED RESOURCE FUND 15
STATEMENT OF BLENDED EXPENDITURES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

EXHIBIT D-3.3

Variance
Original Budget Finai Final to
Budget Transfer Budget Actual Actual
$ 145749  § (20,0000 3 125,749 118,654 § 7,695
1,596,367 {166,000) 1,430,367 1,425,294 5,073
. - - - . |
1,742,116 {186,060} 1,556,116 1,543,948 12,168 |
2,800 {1,000) 1,800 1,750 50
41,250 3,077 44,327 44,024 303
5,500 - 5,500 4,843 657
6,125 - 6,125 6,065 60
55,675 2,077 57,752 56,682 1,070
1,797,791 (183,923) 1,613,868 1,600,630 £3,238
114,466 114,466 114,466
3,000 - 3,000 2,983 17
500 - 560 494 6
117,966 - 117,966 117,943 23
117,966 - 117,966 117,943 23
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EXHIBIT D-3.3
GARFIELD BOARD OF EDUCATION
BLENDED RESOURCE FUND 15

EXPENDITURES
CURRENT EXPENDITURES

School 5 - Woodroyw Wilson
Bilingual Education
Salaries of Teachers
General Supplies
Texthooks
Other Objects

Total

School Sponsored Cocusricular Activities
Salaries
Other Purchased Services
Supplies and Materials
Other Objects

Total

School Sponsared Athleties - Instruction
Salaries
Other Purchased Services

Supplies and Materials
Other Objects

Total

Other Instructional Programs
Other Objects

Total

Total Instruction

Attendance and Social Work

Sataries
Other Objects
Total

Health Services
Salaries
Other Parchased Services

Supplies and Materials
Other Objects

Total

STATEMENT OF BLENDED EXPENDITURES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 39, 2011

Original
Budget

Budget

Transfer

Final

Budget

Actual

Variance
Final to
Actual

% 164,800
2,079
208

164,800
2,079
208

157,856
623

$ 6,944
1,456
208

167,087

167.087

158479

8.608

31,200

31,200

13,509

17,691

31.200

31,200

13,509

17,691

3060

300

300

360

300

300

2,114,344

3

(£83.923)

§.930.421

1,890,561

39,860

44,162
300
3,300

44,162
300
3,300

44,162
85
2,449

215
851

47,762

47,762

46,696

1,066
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EXPENDITURES
CURRENT EXPENDITURES

School § - Woodrow Wilson

Other Support Services - Students - Guidance
Salaries of Other Professional Staif
Salaries of Scoretarial and Clerical
Other Purchased Services

Supplies and Materials
Other Objects

Total

Imgprovement of Instructional Services
Salaries Supervisors of Instruction
Safaries of Other Professional Staff

Supplies and Matesials
Other Objects

Total

Edycational Media/School Libeary
Salaries

Supplies and Materials
Other Objects

Total

Instructional Staff Training Services

Purchased Profassional Educational Services
Other Obiects

Total

Support Service - School Administration
Salaries of Principals/Assistant Principals
Salaries of Other Professionat Staff
Salaries of Sec't and Clerical Assistants
Other Purchased Services

Supplies and Materials
Other Objects

Total

Security

Supplies and Materials
Tatal

GARFIELD BOARD OF EDUCATION

BLENDED RESOURCE FUND 15
STATEMENT OF BLENDED EXPENDITURES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

EXHIBIT D-3.3

Variance
Original Budget Final Final to
Budget Transfer Budget Actual Actual
$ 27,353 27,353 22,802 % 4,551
3,213 - 3,213 2,973 240
4760 % 485 5,245 2,472 2,773
35326 485 35811 28,247 7.564
53,675 - 53,075 53,675

12,850 - 12,850 12,832 18
66,525 - 66,525 66,507 i8
6,875 - 6,875 5,436 1,439
6,875 - 6,875 5,436 1,439

9,000 (9,000) -

9,000 9.000 - - -

141,900 - 141,900 141,900 -
62,983 (3,500) 59,483 57,329 2,154
23,980 (14,000) 9,980 9,746 234
22,000 (5,395) 16,605 15,488 1,117
2,560 - 2,500 1,046 1,454
253,363 {22,899 230,468 225,509 4,959
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EXHIBIT D-3.3
GARFIELD BOARD OF EDUCATION
BLENDED RESOURCE FUND 15
STATEMENT OF BLENDED EXPENDITURES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE. 30, 2011

Variance
Original Budget Final Final to
Budget Transfer Budpet Actual Actual

EXPENDITURES
CURRENT EXPENDITURES

School 5 - Woodrow Wilson
Student Transportation Services

Contzacted Services (Other than Between Home & School) -
Vendors $ 2,750 (500) § 2250 0§ 2,189 % 61

Total 2,750 (300) 2,250 2,189 61

Unallocated Employee Benefits
Social Security 10,650 4,500 15,150 15,150 -
Health Benefits 521,405 8,500 529,905 529,333 572

Total 532,055 13,000 545,055 544,483 572

Total Undistributed Expenditures 953656 § {18.910) 934 746 919,067 15,679

Total School Based Budget Current Expense 3,068,000 (202.833) 2,865,167 2,809,628 55,539

Capital Outlay
Equipment
Preschool/Kindergarten
Equipment Grades 1 -5 12,900 - 12,900 12,654 246
Equipment Grades 6 -8
Equipment Grades 9-12
School-Sponsored and Other Instructional Programs
Learning and /or Language Disabilities
Basic Skills
Bilingual

Resource Room

Support Staff - Instructional

Scheol Administration

Undistributed Expenditures - Support Services ~ Students - Regular

Undistributed Expenditures - Operation of Plant Services u - - - -
Total Capitat Outlay 12,900 - 12,900 12,654 246

TOTAL SCHOOL BASED EXPENDEITURES 3,080,900 (202,833) 2,878,067 2,822,282 55,785

Other Financing Sources;
Operating Transfer In 3,080,900 {202,833} 2,878,067 2.822.282 55,785

Total Other Financing Sources: 3,080,900 {202,833) 2 878,067 2.8227282 55,785

Excess {Deficiency) of Other Financing Sources Over
(Under) Expenditures and Other Financing (Uses) - “ - - -

Fund Balance , Beginning of Year - - - - -

Fund Balance, End of Year 3 - 3 - 3 - $ - 5 -
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EXPENDITURES
CURRENT EXPENDITURES

School 6 - Abraham Lincoln
Regular Programs-Instruction

Salaries of Teachers
Kindergarten
Grades 1 -5

Grades 6- 8
Grades 9- 12

Totat

Regular Programs - Undistributed Instruction
Other Salaries for Instruction
Purchase Professional Educational Services
General Supplies
Textbooks
Other Objects

Total

Total Regular Programs - Instruction

Special Education - Enstriction
Learning and/or Disabilities
Salasies of Teachers
Other Salacies for Instruction
General Supplics
Textbooks
Other Ghjects

Total

Multiple Disabilities
Sataries of Teachers
Other Salaries for Instruction

General Supptics
Textbooks

Tatal

Rescurce Room
Salaries of Teachers
Other Salaries for Instruction
General Supplies

Textbooks
Other Objects

Total

Total Speciat Education - Instruction

GARFIELD BOARD OF EDUCATION

BLENDED RESQURCE FUND 15
STATEMENT OF BLENDED EXPENDITURES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

EXHIBIT D-3.4

Variance

Originaf Budget Final Final to

Budget Transfer Budget Actual Actual
$ 148,550 % (29,804) § 118,746 118,745 % 1

1,562,085 24,014 1,586,089 1,586,099 -
1,710,635 (5,790) 1,704,845 1,704,844 1
3,400 (937 2,463 1,044 1,419
51,450 {28) 51,422 51,030 392
6,860 {6,000) 860 860
5,145 {5,000y 145 - 145
66,855 (11,965) 54,890 52,074 2,816
1,777,490 {37.755) 1,759,735 1,756,918 2,817
264,875 {23,077) 241,798 241,797 1
77,450 10,000 87,450 86,316 1,134
11,500 (1,738} 9,762 9,644 118
2,450 (1,000} I,450 1,36% 81
356,275 (15.815) 340,460 339,126 1,334
213,326 (10,000} 203,326 179,356 23,970
3,950 - 3,950 3,547 403
300 - 300 300
217.576 (16.000) 207,576 182,903 24,673
573,851 {25.815) 548,036 522,029 26,007
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EXHIBIT D-3.4
GARFIELD BOARD OF EDUCATION
BLENDED RESOURCE FUND 15
STATEMENT OF BLENDED EXPENDITURES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

Variance
Original Budget Final Final to

EXPENDITURES
CURRENT EXPENDITURES

School 6 - Abraham Lincoln
Bilinguaf Education
Salaries of Teachers
General Supplies

Textbooks
Other Objects

Total

School Sponsored Cocurricular Activities
Salaries
Other Purchased Services

Supplies and Materials
Gther Objects
Total

School Sponsored Athiletics - Tnstruction
Salaries
Other Purchased Services

Supplies and Materials
Other Objects

Total

Other Instructional Proprams
Other Objects

Taotal

Total Instruction

Attendance and Social Work

Salaries
Other Objects

Total

Health Services
Salaries
Other Purchased Services

Supplies and Materials
Other Objects

Total

Budget

Budget

Actual

Actual

3 293 461
3,948
2,180

293,461
3,948
2,180

289,391
316

4,070
3,572
2,180

299,589

299,585

289,767

9,822

14,720

300

14,720

3G0

5,062

9,658

300

15,020

15,020

5,062

9,958

2.665.930

2.622.380

2573376

48,604

37,897
300
4,116

37,897
300
4,116

37,897
85
2,894

215
[,222

42313

42,313

40,876

1,437
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EXHIBIT D-3.4
GARFIELD BOARD OF EDUCATION
BLENDED RESOURCE FUND 15
STATEMENT OF BLENDED EXPENDITURES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

Yariance
Original Budget Final Final to
Budget Transfer Budget Actual Actual
EXPENDITURES
CURRENT EXPENDITURES

School 6 - Abraham Lincoln
Other Support Services - Students - Guidance

Salaries of Other Professionat Staff $ 27,085 - 27,085 26,497 588

Salaries of Secretarial and Clerical

Other Purchased Services 3,383 - 3,383 3,094 289

Supplies and Materials 2,501 - 2,501 2,448 53

Other Objects - - - - ~
Tetal 32,969 - 32,969 32,039 930
improvement of Enstrikctional Services

Salaries Supervisors of Instruction 53,675 - 53,675 53,525 150

Salaries of Other Professional Staff

Supplies and Materials 19,250 (18,093) §,157 1,100 57

Other Objects - - - - -
Total 72,925 (18,093) 54,832 54,625 207
Educational Media/School Library

Salaries

Supplies and Materials 8,575 8,575 7,003 1,572

Other Objects - - - - -
Tatal 8,575 - B,575 7,003 1,572
Instructional Staff Traming Services

Purchased Professionai Educational Services 9,000 (5,000) N

Other Objects - - - - -
Total 9,004 (9,000) - - -
Support Service - School Administration

Salaries of Principals/Assistant Principals 142,800 - 142,800 $42,800 -

Sataries of Other Professional Stafl’

Safaries of Sec't and Clerical Assistants 60,414 450 60,864 60,860 4

Other Purchased Services 12,870 {3,000) 9,870 9,746 124

Supplies and Matesials 16,265 1,422 17,687 14,768 2,919

Other Objects 4,958 - 4,958 2,050 2,908
Total 237,307 {1,128) 236,179 230,224 5,955
Security

Salaries

Supplics and Materials - - - - -
Total - - - - -
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GARFIELD BOARD OF EDUCATION
BLENDED RESOURCE FUND 15

STATEMENT OF BLENDED EXPENDITURES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

Original Budget
Budget Transfer

Final

Budget

Actual

EXHIBIT D-3.4

Yariance
Final to
Actual

EXPENDITURES
CURRENT EXPENDITURES

Schoaol 6 - Abrahag Lincoln
Student Transportation Services
Contracted Services (Other than Between Home & Schoot) -
Vendors $ 343 % (3,430)

Total 3,430 (3.430)

Unablocated Employee Benefits
Social Security 17,000 6,000
Health Benefits 684,610 35,000

$

23,000
719,610

$ 23,600
714,792

$ 4,818

Totai 701,610 41,000

742,610

737,792

4,818

Total Undistributed Expenditures 1,108,129 9,349

1,117,478

Total School Based Budget Cutrent Expense 3774079 (34,2213

3,739,858

1,102.55%

3.676.335

14.919

63,523

Capital Qutlay
Equipment
Kindergarten
Equipment Grades 1-3 12,900 18,093
Eguipment Grades 6 -8
Equipment Grades 9-12
School-Sponsored and Other tnstructional Programs
Learning and /or Language Disabilities
Basic Skilis
Bilingual
Resource Room
Support Staff - [nstructional
School Administration
Undistrihuted Expendijures - Support Services - Students - Reguiar
Undistributzd Expenditures - Operation of Plant Services - -

30,993

30,747

246

Total Capital Qutlay 12,900 18,093

30,593

30,747

246

TOTAL SCHOOL BASED EXPENDITURES 3,786,979 (16,128)

3,770,851

3,707,082

63,769

QOther Financing Sources:
Operating Transfer In 3,786,979 {16,128)

3,770,851

3,707,082

63,769

Total Other Financing Sources: 3,786,979 (16,128)

3,770,851

3,767,082

63,769

Excess (Deficiency) of Other Financing Sources Over
{Under) Expenditures and Other Financing (Uses) - -

Fund Balance , Beginning of Year - -

Fund Balance, £nd of Year 3 - $ -
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EXPENDITURES
CURRENT EXPENDITURES

Schaol 7 - Rooseyelt
Regular Programs-Instruction
Salaries of Teachers
Kindergarten
Grades 1 - 5
Grades 6 - 8
Grades 9 - 12

Total

Reguslar Programs - Undistributed Instruction
Other Salaries for Instruction
Putchase Professional Educational Services
General Supplics
Textbooks
Other Objects

Total

“Total Regular Programs - Instruction

Special Education - Instruction
Learning and/or Disabilitics
Salaries of Teachers
Other Salaries for Instruction
General Supplies
Textbooks
Other Objects

Total

Multiple Disabilities
Salaries of Teachers
Other Salaries for Instruction

General Suppfics
Textbooks

Totat

Resosrce Room
Salaries of Teachers
Other Salaries for Instruction
General Supplies

Textbooks
Other Oljects

Total

Total Special Education - Instruction

GARFIELD BOARD OF EDUCATION
BLENDED RESOURCE FUND 15

STATEMENT OF BLENDED EXPENDITURES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 39, 2011

EXHIBIT D-3.5

Yariance
Original Budget Final Final to
Budget Transfer Budget Actual Actual

§ 135803 % (1,015) 3§ 134,788 134,561 227
1,162,528 56,015 1,218,543 1,216,114 2,429
1,298.331 55,000 §.353.331 1,350,675 2,656
3,000 (1,930} £,070 1,069 1
57,900 8,092 65,992 63,260 2,732
5,720 {4,634) 1,086 689 397
8,848 {6,600) 2,848 2,250 598
75,468 (4.472) 70,596 67,268 3,728
1,373,799 350,528 1.424.327 1,417,943 6,384
53,055 - 53,055 23,959 29,096
20,275 10,500 30,775 28,569 2,206
4,600 (4,060} 660 44 556
800 800 800
78,730 6,500 85,230 52,572 32,658

140,173 19,851 160,024 160,024 -
4,250 (2,070} 2,180 1,300 880
1,000 - 1,600 1,000
145.423 17,781 163.204 161,324 1.880
224,153 24,281 248,434 213,896 34.538
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EXHIBIT D-3.5
GARFIELD BOARD OF EDUCATION
BLENPED RESOURCE FUND 15

EXPENDITURES
CURRENT EXPENDITURES

School 7 - Roosevelt
Bilingual Education
Salaries of Teachers
General Supplies
Textbooks
Other Objects

Total

School Speasered Cocurricular Activities
Salaries
Other Purchased Services
Supplies and Materials
Other Objects

Total

School Sponsored Athletics - Instmietion
Salarics
Other Purchased Services

Supplies and Materials
Other Objects

Tatal

Other Instructional Programs
Other Objects
Total

Total Instruction

Attendance and Social Work
Salaries
Other Objects

Total

Health Services
Salaries
Other Purchased Services

Supplics and Materials
Other Objects

Total

STATEMENT OF BLENDED EXPENDITURES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 38, 2011

Original
Budget

Budget

Transfer

Final

Budget

Actual

Variance
Final {0
Actual

$ 129,565
1,419
143

$ 275

128,565
1,694
143

94,219
403

$ 35346
1,291
143

131,127

275

131.402

94 622

36,780

35,747

(19,851)

15,896

15,243

653

35,747

(19,851}

15,896

15.243

653

300

300

300

300

300

300

1,765,126

55,233

1,820,359

1,741,704

78,655

53,055
300
4,632

53,055
300
4,632

53,055

3,961

300
671

57,987

57,987

57,016

971
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EXPENDITURES
CURRENT EXPENDITURES

School 7 - Roosevelt

Other Support Services - Students - Guidance
Salaries of Other Professional Staff
Sataries of Secretarial and Clerical
Other Purchased Services

Suppiies and Materials
Other Objects

Total

Improvement of [nstructional Services
Salaries Supervisors of Instruction
Salaries of Other Professional Staff
Supplies and Materfals
Other Objects

Total

Educational Media/School Library
Salaries

Supplies and Materiaks
Other Objects
Total

Instructional Staff Training Services

Purchased Professional Educational Services
Other Objects
Total

Supypott Service - School Administration
Salaries of Principals/Assistant Principals
Sataries of Other Professional Staff
Salaries of Sec't and Clerical Assistants
Other Purchased Services

Supplies and Materials
Other Objects

Total

Security
Salaries
Supplies and Materials

GARFIELD BOARD OF EDUCATION

BLENDED RESOURCE FUND 15

STATEMENT OF BLENDED EXPENDITURES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

EXHIBIT D-3.5

Variance

Original Budget Final Final to

Budget Transfer Budget Actual Actual
$ 27,085 - 27,085 26,497 % 588
6,792 n 6,792 3,556 3,236
2,851 - 2,851 2,304 547
36,728 - 36,728 32,357 4,371

53,675 53,675 53,675

16,850 » 10,850 10,804 46
64,525 - 64,525 64.479 46
9,650 - 9,650 6,078 3,572
9,650 - 9.650 6,078 3,572

9,000 (9,000) -
9.000 (9,000} - - M

142,800 - 142,800 142,800 -
60,714 - 60,714 60,713 1
12,230 - 12,230 9,977 2,253
28,950 {6,000) 22,950 21,838 1,112
3,600 71 3,071 1,659 1,412
247,694 (5,926) 241,765 236,987 4,778
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EXHIBIT B-3.5
GARFIELD BOARD OF EDUCATION
BLENDED RESCURCE FUND 15
STATEMENT OF BLENDED EXPENDITURES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

Variance
Original Budget Final Final to
Budget Transfer Budzet Actual Actual

EXPENDITURES
CURRENT EXPENIMTURES

Schoot 7 - Roosevelt
Student Transportation Services
Contracted Services (Other thar Betwoen Home & School) -
Vendors $ 3,860 - $ 380 § 3347 % 513

Total 3,860 - 3,860 3,347 513

Unallocated Employee Bensfits
Seciat Secucity 15,900 19,906 19,900 -
Health Benefits 556,000 % (160,500) 455,500 454,505 983
Tatal 571,500 {96,500) 475,400 474,405 995

Total Undistributed Expenditures 1,001,344 {111,429 889915 874,669 15,246

Tatal Schoot Based Budget Current Expense 2,766 470 (56,156} 2,710,274 2,616,373 93,901

Capital Outlay
Equipment
Kindergarten
Equipment Grades § -3 12,900 12,500 12,654 246
Equipment Grades 6 -8
School-Sponsored and Other Instructional Programs
Equipment Grades 9-12
Learning and /or Langunge Disabilities
Basic Skills
Bilingual
Resource Room
Support Seaff - Instructional
School Administration

Undistributed Expenditures - Support Services - Students - Regutar
Undistributed Expendinures - Operation of Plant Services = - - - -
Total Capital Gutlay 12,500 - 12,900 12,654 246

TOTAL SCHOOL BASED EXPENDITURES 2,779,37C (56,196) 2,723,174 2,629,027 94,147

Other Financing Sources:
Operating Transfer In 2,778,370 (56,196) 2,723,174 2,629,027 94,147

Total Other Financing Sources: 2,779,370 {56,196) 2,723,174 2,629,027 94,147

Excess (Deficiency) of Other Financing Sources Over
(Under) Expenditures and Other Financing (Uses) - - - - -

Fund Balance , Beginning of Year - - - . _

Fund Balance, End of Year $ - $ - $ - $ - $ -

101 {Continued)




EXPENDITURES
CURRENT EXPENDITURES

School 8 « Columbus
Reguiar Programs-Instruction
Salmries of Teachers
Kindergarten
Grades 1 -5

QGrades §- 8
Grades 9 - [2

Total

Regular Programs - Undistributed Instruction
Other Salaries for Instruction
Purchase Professional Educational Services
General Supplies

Textbooks
Other Objects

Total

Totat Regufar Programs - Instruction

Special Education - Instrnction
Learning and/or Disabilities
Salasies of Teachers
Other Salaries for Instruction
General Supplics
Textbocks
Other Gbiects

Total

Multiple Disabilitics
Salaries of Teachers
Other Salaries for Instruction

General Supplies
Textbooks

Total

Resaurce Room
Salaries of Teachers
Other Salaries for Instruction
General Supplies

Textbooks
Other Objects

Total

Total Special Education - Ingtriction

GARFIELD BOARD OF EDUCATION

BLENDED RESOURCE FUND 15

STATEMENT OF BLENDED EXPENDITURES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

EXHIBIT D-3.6

Variance
Original Budget Final Final to
Budget Transfer Budget Actual Actual

$ 235,455 $ 8000 % 243 455 234356  § 9,099
1,761,360 (252) 1,761,108 1,682,905 78,203
1,996,815 7,748 2,004,563 1,917,261 87,302
3,800 (3,000} 800 750 50
61,950 4,789 66,739 66,407 332
8,260 (6,000) 2,260 £,779 481
10,241 {3,500} 6,741 5,806 935
84,251 {7,710) 76,540 74,742 1,798
2,081.0066 37 2.081.103 1,992,003 85,100

299,247 1,155 300,402 300,402 -
77,673 40,500 118,173 113,726 4,447
16,500 - 16,5C0 10,986 5,514
600 - 600 600
394,620 41,655 435,675 425114 10,561
127,535 50,000 177,535 172,904 4,631
3,600 73 3,673 3,559 114
400 - 400 400
131,535 50,073 181,608 176,463 5,145
525,555 91,728 617,283 601,577 15,706
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EXHIBIT D-3.6
GARFIELD BOARD OF EDUCATION
BLENDED RESOURCE FUND 15

EXPENIMTURES
CURRENT EXPENDITURES

School 8 - Columbus
Bilingual Education
Safaries of Teachers
General Supplies
Textbooks
Other Objects

Total

School Sponsered Cocurricular Activities
Salaries
Other Purchased Services
Supplies and Materials
Other Objects

Total

School Sponsared Athletics - Enstriction
Satartes
Other Purchased Services

Supplies and Materials
Other Objects

Total

Other Instructional Programs
Other Objects
Total

‘Total Instruction

Attendance and Social Work
Salaries
Other Olbjects

Total

Health Services
Salaries
Other Purchased Services

Supplies and Materials
Other Objects

Total

STATEMENT OF BLENDED EXPENDITURES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 34, 2011

Original
Budgaet

Budget
Transfer

Final
Budget

Actual

Variance
Final to
Actual

$ 174,325
906
100

330

174,325
1,230
100

55,251
168

$ 119074
1,062
100

175,325

330

175,655

55419

120,236

27,247

27,247

3,882

13,365

22.247

27,247

13,882

13.365

300

300

300

300

306

300

2,809 493

92,095

2,901,588

2,662,881

238,707

104,150
300
4,956
4,000

5,289

(3,600)

109,439
300

4,956
1,600

109,439
85

4,547
591

215

409
409

113,466

2,289

115,695

114,662

1,033
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EXPENDITURES
CURRENT EXPENDITURES

School 8 - Columbus

Other Support Services - Studetts - Guidance
Salaries of Other Professionat Staff
Salaries of Secretarial and Clerical
Other Purchased Services

Supplies and Materials
Other Objects

Total

Emprovement of Instructional Services
Salaries Supervisors of Instruction
Salaries of Other Professional Staff

Supplies and Materials
Other Objects

Total

Educational Media/Scheol Library
Salaries

Supplies and Materials
Other Objects

Total

Instructional Staff Training Services
Purchased Professional Educational Services
Other Objects

Total

Support Service - School Administration
Salaries of Principals/Assistant Principals
Salaries of Other Professional Staff
Salaries of Sec't and Clerical Assistants
Other Purchased Services

Supplies and Materials
Other Objects

Total

Security

Salaries

Supplies and Magerials
Total

GARFIELD BOARD OF EDUCATION

BLENDED RESOURCE FUND 15
STATEMENT OF BLENDED EXPENDITURES - 8UDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

EXHIBIT D-3.6

Variance
Originat Budget Final Final to
Budget Transfer Budget Actual Actual

$ 48,405 48,405 43,996 § 4,409
9,039 (5,000) 4,039 3,798 241
8,421 (3,000) 5421 4,874 547
65,865 (8,000) 57,865 52,668 5,197
56,375 (5,289) 51,086 50,325 761
21,250 - 21,250 20,840 410
77,625 {5,289) 72,336 71,165 1,171
10,325 78 10,403 8,888 1,513
10,325 78 10,403 8,888 1,515

9,000 (9,000} -
9,000 (9,000 - - _

142,800 - 142,800 142,800 -

44,592 - 44,592 44,592 -
11,430 - 11,430 i1,142 288
33,040 {15,559) 17,481 17,077 404
9,873 5 9,878 9,104 774
241,735 {15,554) 226,181 224715 1,466
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GARFIELD BOARD OF EDUCATION

BLENDED RESOURCE FUND 15
STATEMENT OF BLENDED EXPENDITURES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2611

Original
Budget

Budget
Transfer

Final

Budget

Actual

EXHIBIT D-3.6

Variance
Final to
Actual

EXPENDITURES
CURRENT EXPENDITURES

School 8 - Columbus
Student Transportation Services
Conteacted Services (Other than Between Home & Schoof) -
Vendors $

4,130

4,130

3,050

$ 1,080

Total

4,130

4,130

3,050

1,080

Unallocated Employee Benefits

Social Security
Health Benefits

16,860
854,450

6,500
{367,001}

23,300
487,449

23,300
483,427

4,022

Total

871.250

{360,501}

510,749

506,727

4,022

Totat Undistributed Expenditures

1,393,336

{395,977)

597,359

981,875

15,484

Total School Based Budget Current Expense

4,202,829

(303,882)

3,898,947

3,644,756

254,191

Capital Outlay
Equipment
Preschool/Kindergarten
Equipment Grades 1 -5
Equipment Grades 6 -8
School-Sponsored and Other Instructional Programs
Equipment Grades 9-12
Learning and for Language Disabilities
Basic Skills
Bilingual
Regource Room
Support Staff - Instructional
School Adrinistration

Undistributed Expenditures - Support Services - Students - Regular
Undistributed Expenditures - Operation of Plant Services

12,900

12,900

12,654

246

Total Capitai Outlay

12,900

12,906

12,654

246

TOTAL SCHOOL BASED EXPENDITURES

4,215,729

(303,882)

3,911,847

3,657,410

254 437

Other Financing Seurces:
Operating Transfer In

4,215,729

(303,382)

3,911,847

3,657,416

254,437

Total Other Financing Sources:

4215729

(303,882)

3,911,847

3,657,410

254,437

Excess (Deficiency} of Other Financing Sources Over
(Under) Expenditures and Other Financing (Uses)

Fund Balance , Beginning of Year

Fund Balance, End of Year $
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EXHIBIT D-3.7
GARFIELD BOARD OF EDUCATION
BLENDED RESOURCE FUND 15
STATEMENT OF BLENDED EXPENDITURES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

Variance
Original Budget Final Finai to
Budget Transfer Budpet Actual Actual
EXPENDITURES
CURRENT EXPENDITURES

School 9 - Thomas Jefferson Middte School
Regular Programs-Instruction

Sataries of Teachers

Kindergarten
Grades [ -5
Grades 6« 8 $ 4,059,357 108,857 4,168,214 4,160,581 7,633
Grades §- 12 - - - - -
Total 4,059,357 108,857 4,168,214 4,160,581 7,633
Regular Programs - Undistributed Instruction
Other Salaries for Instruction
Purchase Professional Educational Services 9,300 - 9,300 9,300 -
General Supplies 160,050 (41,5023 118,548 i18,314 234
Texthooks 21,340 {135,600) 6,340 6,264 76
Other Objects 21,340 {8,500) 12,840 11,950 890
Tatal 212,030 (65.002) 147,028 145,828 1,200
Total Reguiar Programs - Instruction 4271387 43 855 4,315.242 4,306,409 8.833
Special Education - Instruction
[earming ard/or Disabilities
Salaries of Teachers 453,181 134,850 588,031 587,936 95
Other Salaries for Instruction 181,700 39,000 220,760 211,895 8,805
General Supplies 15,600 (1,815) 13,785 13,452 333
Textbooks 4,750 - 4,150 4,153 597
Other Objects - - - - -
Total 655.231% 172,035 827,266 817,436 9.830
Multiple Disabititios
Salaries of Teachers
Other Salaries for Instruction
General Supplies
Textbooks - - “ - -
Total " - - - -
Resource Room
Salaries of Teachers 699,610 (39,000) 660,010 659,351 659
Other Salaries for Instruction -
Geueral Supplies 15,550 {3,640} 11,910 18,021 889
Textbooks 4,750 {4,750y "
Other Objects - - - - -
Total 719,350 {47,390} 671.920 670,372 1,548
Total Special Education - Instruction 1,374,541 124,645 1,499,186 1,487,808 11,378
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EXHIBIT D-3.7
GARFIELD BOARD OF EDUCATION
BLENDED RESOURCE FUND 15
STATEMENT OF BLENDED EXPENDITURES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 36, 2011

Varlance
Original Budget Final Final to
Budget Transfer Budget Actusl Actual
EXPENDITURES
CURRENT EXPENDITURES
Schaol 9 - Thomas Jefferson Middle School
Bilingual Education
Salaries of Teachers 3 128,425 38562 % 166,987 166,986 1
General Supplies 4,152 (2,725) 2,027 1,096 931
Textbooks 4,752 (4,700) 52 52
Other Objects - - - - -
Total 137,929 31,137 169,066 168,082 984
School Sponsored Cocurricular Activities
Salaries 87,600 - 87,600 61,374 26,226
Other Purchased Services
Supplies and Materials
Other Objects - - - - -
Total 87.600 - 87.600 68,374 26,226
School Sponsored Athletics - Instruction
Salaries 42,775 (35,562) 7,213 7,025 i88
Other Purchased Services 16,500 {10,000) 6,500 1,521 4,979
Supplies and Materials 2,000 - 2,000 2,600 -
Other Objects £,500 (1,500) - - -
Total 62,775 (47,062) 15,713 10,546 5,167
Other Instructional Programs
Other Objects - - - - -
Total - - - - -
Total Instsucticn 5934232 152,575 6,086,807 6,034.219 52,588
Attendance and Social Work
Salaries 93,140 (12,350) 80,790 73,736 7,054
Other Objects - - - - -
Total 93,140 {12,350) 80,790 73,736 7,054
Health Services
Salaries 103,950 12,877 116,827 116,826 1
Other Purchased Services 300 - 300 300
Supplies and Materials 26,675 (22,000) 4,675 3,807 868
Other Objects - - - - -
Total 130,925 (9,123) 121,802 £20.633 1.169
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EXPENDITURES
CURRENT EXPENDITURES

School 9 « Thomas Jefferson Middie School
Other Support Services - Studeats - Guidance
Salaries of Other Profassional Staff
Salaries of Secretarial and Clerical
Other Purchased Services

Supplics and Materials
Other Objects

Total

Improvement of Tnstructional Services
Salaries Supervisors of Instruction
Salaries of Other Professionai Staff

Supplies and Materials
Other Objects

Total

Educational Media/Schoof Library
Salaries
Supplies and Matertals
Oiher Objects

Total

Instructicnat Staff Training Services
Purchased Professional Educational Services
Other Ohbjects

Total

Support Service - School Administration
Salaries of Principais/Assistant Principals
Salaries of Other Profossional Staff
Salaries of Sec't and Clerical Assistants
Other Purchased Services

Supplies and Materials
Other Objects

Total

Security

Salaries

Supplies and Materinls
Total

GARTIELD BOARD OF EDUCATION

BLENDED RESOURCE FUND 15
STATEMENT O BLENDED EXPENDITURES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

EXHIBIT D-3.7

Variance
Original Budget Final Final to
Budget Transfer Budget Actual Actual
$ 221,150 - 221,150 221,150 % -
9,634 $ (4,300) 5,334 5,175 159
230,784 {4,300) 226,484 226,325 159
106,700 106,700 106,700 -
17,250 " 17,250 17,243 7
17,250 166,700 123,950 123,943 7
96,575 96,575 96,575
41,675 (18,000) 23,675 22,195 1,480
41,675 78,575 120,250 118776 1.480
49,0600 (49,000) -
49,000 {49,000y - - -
397,550 (106,700) 290,850 284,600 6,250
167,408 1,266 168,674 168,674 -
28,865 (9,000) 19,865 15,238 627
31,010 - 31,010 30,519 491
10,800 - 16,800 10,285 515
635,633 {114.4349) 521,199 513,316 7,883
40,463 40,463 40,463 -
" 40,463 40.463 40,463 -
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EXHIBIT D-3.7
GARFIELD BOARD OF EDUCATION
BLENDED RESOURCE FUND 15
STATEMENT OF BLENDED EXPENDITURES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNF, 30, 21 1

Variance
Original Budget Final Final to
Budget Transfer Budget Actual Actual

EXPENDITURES
CURRENT EXPENDITURES

School 9 - Thomas Jefferson Middle Schaol
Student Transportation Services
Contracted Services (Other than Between Home & School) -
Vendors $ 10670 § {5,295) % 5,375 $ 5,375 -

Total 10,670 (5,295) 5375 5,315 -

Unallocated Employce Benefits

Social Security 45,700 13,500 59,200 59,200 -
Health Benefits 1,633,350 (116,574) 1,516,776 1,515912  § 864

Teotal 1,679,050 {103,074) 1,575,976 1,575,112 864

Total Undistributed Expenditures 2,888,127 (71,838} 2.816.289 2,797.673 18616

Total School Based Budget Current Expense 8,822,359 80,737 8,903,096 8.831.892 71.204

Capital Cutlay
Equipment
Kindergarten
Equipment Grades 1.5
FEquipment Grades 6 -§ 12,900 1,300 14,290 14,290 -
Equipment Grades 9-12
School-Sponsored and Other Instructional Programs
Learning and /or Language Disabilitics
Basic Skills
Bilingual

Resource Room
Support Staff - Instructional
Schoot Administraticn

Undistributed Expenditures - Support Services - Students - Regular
Undistributed Expenditares - Operation of Plant Services - - B - “

Total Capital Outlay 12,900 1,390 £4,290 14,280 -

TOTAL SCHOOL BASED EXPENDITURES 8,835,25% 82,127 8,917,386 8,846,182 71,204

Other Financing Sources:
Qperating Transfer In 8,835,259 82,127 8,917,386 8,846,182 71,204

Total Other Financing Sources: 8,835,259 82,127 8,917,386 8,846,182 71,204

Excess (Deficiency) of Other Financing Sources Over
(Under) Expenditures and Other Financing {Uses) - - - - .

Fund Balance , Beginning of Year - - - “ -

Fund Balance, End of Year $ - 3 - $ - $ - $ -
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EXPENDITURES
CURRENT EXPENDITURES

School 10 - Madison School 18
Regufar Programs-Iastruction
Sataries of Teachers
Kindergarten
Grades 1 -5
Grades 6 -8
Grades 9- 12
Totat

Regular Programs - Undistributed Instruction
Other Salaries for Instruction
Purchase Professional Educational Services
(eneral Supplies
Textbooks
Other Objects

Total
Total Regular Programs ~ Instruction

Special Education - Instruction
Leaming and/or Disabilities
Salaries of Teachers
Other Salaries for Instruction
General Supplies
Texthooks
Other Objects

Total

Multiple Disabilities
Satarics of Teachers
Other Salaries for [nstrsction

Generai Supplies
Textbooks

Total

Resource Room
Salaries of Teachers
Other Salaries for Instruction
General Supplies

Textbaoks
Other Objects

Tatal

Total Special Educaticn - Instruction

GARFIELD BOARD OF EDUCATION
BLENDED RESOURCE FUND 13

STATEMENT OF BLENDED EXPENDITURES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 34, 2011

EXHIBIT D-3.8

Variance
Oviginal Budget Final Final to
Budget Transfer Budgpet Actual Actual
$ 46,565 - $ 46,565 46,565 -
838866 § 38,685 877,551 877,550 % 1
885,431 38,685 924,116 924,115 1 |
2,000 . 2,000 950 1,050
43,600 6,111 49,711 48,754 957
4,360 72 4,432 4,301 £31
8,280 {5,604) 3,276 1,754 1,522
58,240 1,179 59419 55,759 3.660
943,671 39,864 983,535 979.874 3,601
89,830 (10) 89,820 88826 994
38,600 15,014 53,614 53,613 1
6,500 - 6,500 5,851 649
1,150 1,150 1,150 -
136,080 15.004 151.084 149.44C 1.644
136.080 15,004 151,084 149,440 1,644
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EXHIBIT D-3.8
GARFIELD BOARD OF EDUCATION
BLENDED RESOURCE FUND 15
STATEMENT OF BLENDED EXPENDITURES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

EXPENDITURES
CURRENT EXPENTHTURES

School 10 - Madison School 10
Bilingual Education

Salaries of Teachers

General Supplies

Textbooks

Other Objects

Total

School Sponsored Cocurricular Activities
Salaries
Other Purchiased Services
Supplies and Materials
Other Objects

Total

School Sponsored Athletics - Instruction
Salaries
Other Purchased Services

Supplics and Materials
Other Objects

Total

Other Instructional Programs
Other Objects

Totat

Total Enstruction

Attendance and Social Waork

Salaries
Other Objects
Total

Heaith Services
Salaries
Other Purchased Services
Supplies and Materials
Other Objects

Total

Yariance
Original Budget Final Final to
Budpet Transfer Budget Actual Actual

§ 103,950
396
40

110

103,950
506
40

103,950
337

169
40

164,386

110

104,496

104,287

209

31,616

31,616

[5,117

16,493

31,610

31,610

15,117

16.493

300

300

30¢

300

300

300

1.2§6.047

54,978

1.271.023

$248718

22,507

66,485
300
2,616

66,485
300
2616

66,485
85
1,752

215
864

69,401

69,401

68322

1,079
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EXPENDITURES
CURRENT EXPENDITURES

Schagl 10 - Madisoy Schoot 10

Other Support Services - Students - Guidance
Salaries of Other Professional Staff
Salaries of Secretarial and Clerical
Other Purchased Services

Supplies and Materials
Other Objects

Total

Improvement of Instructional Services
Sataries Supervisors of Instruction
Salaries of Other Professional Staff’

Supplies and Materials
Other Objects

Total

Educatiorat Media/School Library
Salaries

Supplies and Materials
Other Objects

Totaf

Instructional Staff Training Services
Purchased Professionat Educational Services
Other Objects

Total

Support Service - School Adminisiration
Salaries of Principals/Assistant Principals
Salaries of Other Professional Staff’
Salaries of Sec't and Clerical Assistants
Other Purchased Services

Supplies and Materials
Other Objects

Total

Security

Salaries
Supplies and Materinis
Total

GARFIELD BOARD OF EDUCATION

BLENDED RESOURCE FUND IS

STATEMENT OF BLENDED EXPENDITURES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

EXHIBIT D-3.8

Yariance
Original Budget Final Fimnal to
Budget Transfer Budget Actual Actual
5 48,405 (38,685) % 9,720 $ 9,720
2,893 - 2,893 2,543 750
4,358 4,358 2,017 2,34
55656 {38,685) 16,971 4,160 12,811
|
56,375 56,375 56,375

9,250 9,250 9,249 1
65,625 - 65,625 65,624 1
5,450 - 5,450 4,570 880
5,450 - 5,450 4,570 880

9,000 {9,000} -
9,000 {9,600) M - -

141,900 - 141,900 141,900 -

59,539 - 59,539 59,539 -
11,750 - 11,750 9,746 2,004
18,600 " 18,600 14,756 3,844
5,100 (3.000) 2,100 1,378 722
236,889 (3,000) 233,889 227,319 6,570
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EXMIBIT D-3.8
GARFIELD BOARD OF EDUCATION
BLENDED RESQURCE FUND 15
STATEMENT OF BLENDED EXPENDITURES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR. ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

Variance
Original Budget Final Final ¢o
Budget Transfer Budget Actual Actual

EXPENDITURES
CURRENT EXPENDITURES

Sehool 10 - Madison School 18
Student Transportation Services

Contracted Services (Other than Between Home & School) -
Vendors $ 2,180 - $ 2,180 § 2,180 -

Total 2,180 - 2,180 2,180 -

Unallocated Employee Benefits
Social Security 12,000 % 3,000 15,000 15,000 -
Health Benefits 472,960 61,375 534,335 534,332 § 3

Total 484,960 64,375 549,335 549,332 3

Tatal Undistributed Expenditures 929,161 13,690 942 851 921,507 21,344

Total Schoo! Based Budget Current Expense 2,145208 68,608 2,213,876 2,170,225 43,651

Capital Qutlay

Equipment
Kindergarten
Equipment Grades 1 -5 25,800 (10,000) 15,800 15,470 330
Equipment Grades 6 ~§

School-Sponsored and Other Instructional Programs
Equipment Grades 9-12

Leaening and /or Langnage Disabilities

Basic Skills

Bilingual

Resource Room

Support Staff - Instructional

School Administration

Undistributed Expenditures « Support Services - Students - Reguiar
Undistributed Expenditures - Operation of Plant Services - - - B -

Total Capital Qutlay 25,800 (10,000} 5,800 15,470 330

TOTAL SCHOOL BASED EXPENDITURES 2,171,008 58,668 2,220,676 2,185,695 43,981

Other Financing Sources:
Operating Transfer In 2,171,008 58,668 2,229,676 2,185,695 43,981

Total Other Financing Sources: 2,171,008 58,668 2,229,676 2,185,695 43,981

Excess {Deficiency} of Other Financing Sources Over
(Under) Expenditires and Other Financing (Uses) - - - - -

Fund Balance , Beginning of Year - - - - -

Fund Balance, End of Year 3 - $ - $ - $ - $ -

1i3 {Continued)



EXHIBIT D-3.9
GARFIELD BOARD OF EDUCATION
BLENDED RESOURCE FUND 15
STATEMENT OF BLENDED EXPENIMTURES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 34, 2011

Variance
Original Budget Final Final to
Budget Trausfer Budget Actual Actual
EXPENIMTURES
CURRENT EXPENDITURES

School 4 - Washington Irving Annex
Regular Programs-Instruction

Salaries of Teachers

Kindergarten

Grades 1 -5

Grades 6-8
Grades 9~ 12

Total

Regular Programs « Undistributed Instruction
Other Salaries for Instruction
Purchase Professional Educational Services
General Supplies
Textbooks
Other Objects

Total

Totai Regular Programs - Instruction

Special Education - Instruction
Leaming and/or Disabilities
Safaries of Teachers
Other Salaries for Instruction
General Supplies
Textbooks
Other Objects

Total

Multiple Disabilities
Salaries of Teachers
Other Salaries for Instruction

General Supplies
Textbooks

Tatal

Resource Room
Salaries of Teachers
Othier Salaries for Instruction
General Supplics

Textbooks
Other Objects

Total

Total Special Education - [nstruction

$ 317,711
369,457

3 (84,000)
{170,985)

233,711
198,472

$

228,702
197,731

5,009
741

687,168

(254,985)

432,183

426,433

5,750

1,400
32,400

3,240
2,755

(2,600)

1,400
32,400
3,240
755

1,000
31,226

400
1,174

3,240
755

39,795

(2,000}

37.795

32226

5,569

726,963

(256.985)

469.978

458,659

11,319

43,730

650
350

43,730

650
350

43,730

558

92
350

44,730

44.730

44288

442

44,736

44,730

44,288

442
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EXHIBIT D-3.9
GARFIELD BOARD OF EDUCATION
BLENDED RESOURCE FUND 15

EXPENDITURES
CURRENT EXPENDITURES

School 4 - Washington Irving Annex
Bilinguaj Educaticn

Salaries of Teachers

General Supplies

Textbooks

Other Objects

Total

School Sponsered Cocurricular Activities
Salaries
Other Purchased Servicss
Supplies and Materials
Other Objects

Total

School Sponsored Athletics - Instruction
Salaries
Other Purchased Services

Supplies and Materials
Other Objects

Total

Other Instructional Programs.
Other Objects

Tatal

Total Instruction

Attendance and Social Work

Salaries
Other Objects

Total

Health Services
Salaries
Otker Purchased Services
Supplies and Materials
Other Objects

Total

STATEMENT OF BLENDED EXPENDITURES - RUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 34, 2011

QOriginal
Budget

Budget

Transfer

Final
Budget

Actual

Variance
Final to

Actual

$ 135,726
1,980
198

$ 45,085

180,811
£,980
i98

E71,810
296

9,001
1,684
198

137,904

45,085

182,989

172.106

10,883

8,820

8,820

2,736

6,084

8,820

8,820

2,736

6,084

300

300

300

300

300

300

918,717

(211,900}

706,817

677,789

29,028

42,582
300
1,944

42,582
300
1,944

42,582

952

300
992

44,826

44.826

43,534

1,292
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EXPENDITURES
CURRENT EXPENDITURES

School 4 - Washington Erving Annex

Other Support Services - Students - Guidanee
Sataries of Other Professional Staff’
Salaries of Secretarial and Clerical
Other Purchased Services

Supplies and Materials
Other Objects

Total

Improvement of Instructional Services
Salaries Supervisors of Instruction
Salaries of Other Professional Staff

Supplies and Materials
Other Objects

Taotal

Educational Media/Schoel Library
Salaries

Supplies and Materials
Other Objects

Total

Instructicnal Staff Training Services
Purchased Professional Educational Services
Other Gbjects

Total

Support Service - School Administration
Salaries of Principals/Assistant Principals
Salaries of Other Professionat Staff
Salaries of Sec't and Clerical Assistants
Other Purchased Services

Supplies and Materials
Other Objects
Tatal

Security

Salaries
Supplics and Materials

Total

GARFIELD BOARD OF EDUCATION
BLENDED RESOURCE FUND 15
STATEMENT OF BLENDED EXPENBITURES - BUDGET AND ACTUAIL
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

EXHIBIT D-3.9

Variance

Original Budget Final Final to

Budget Transfer Budget Actual Actual
$ 4,800 % (3,000) & 1,800 1,681 & 119
5,950 {1,000) 4,990 4,009 981
10,790 (4,000) 6,750 5,696 1,100
18,825 18,825 18,757 68
18,825 - 18,825 18,757 [
4,050 - 4,056 3,890 160
4.05¢ - 4,050 3,890 160

5,000 (9,000) -
9,000 (9.000) - - -

142,300 . 142,800 142,800 -

80,414 - 80,414 80,414 -
12,550 9,550 8,809 741
12,960 (2,342) 1G,618 9,723 895
2,430 - 2,430 800 1,630
251,154 (5,342) 245812 242.546 3,266
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GARFIELD BOARD OF EDUCATION

BLENDED RESOURCE FUND 15
STATEMENT OF BLENDED EXPENDITURES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 36, 2611

Qriginal
Budget

Budget
Transfer

Final

Budget

EXHIBIT D-3.9

VYariance
Final to
Actual Actual

EXPENDITURES
CURRENT EXPENDITURES

School 4 - Washington Erving Annex
Student Transportation Services
Contracted Services (Other than Between Home & School) «
Vendors 5

1,630

1,650

- $ 1,650

Total

1,650

1,650

- 1,650

Unallocated Employee Benefits
Social Security
Health Benefits

16,160
318,560

2,000
134,599

18,100
453,559

18,100 -
450,652 2,907

Total

334.660

136,999

Total Undistribusted Expenditures

674,955

118,657

475,659

468,752 2,907

793,612

783,169 10,443

Total School Based Budget Current Expense

1,593,672

(93.243)

1,500,429

1.460.958 39471

Capital Qutlay
Equipment
Kindergarten
Equipment Grades 1 -5
Equipment Grades 6 -8
School-Sponsored and Gther Instructional Programs
Equipment Grades 9-12
Leaming and for Languape Disabilitics
Basic Skills
Bilingual
Resource Room
Support $taff - nstructional
School Administration

Undistributed Expenditures - Support Services - Students - Repulay
Undistributed Expenditures - Operation of Plant Services

[2,500

12,900

12,654 246

Total Capitai Outlay

12,800

12,900

12,654 246

TOTAL SCHOOL BASED EXPENDITURES

1,593,672

(80,343)

1,513,329

1,473,612 39,747

Other Financing Sources:
Operating Transfer In

1,593,672

(80,343}

1,513,329

1,473,612 39,717

Total Other Financing Sources:

1,593,672

(80,343)

1,513,329

1,473,612 39,717

Excess (Deficiency) of Other Financing Sources Over
(Under} Expenditures and Other Financing {Uses)

Fund Balance , Beginning of Year

Fund Balance, End of Year $

1t7
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EXHIBIT E-1

GARFIELD BOARD OF EBUCATION
SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
COMBINING SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES
BUDGETARY BASES
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENBED JUNE 30, 2011

193
Nonpubfic  Nonpublic Corrective Sub-totals Sub-totals Sub-totals Sub-totals Total
Nursing Textbook Speech Exhibit E-1A  Exhibi¢t E-1B  Exhibit E-tC  Exhibit E-ID 2011
REVENUES
Intergovernmental
State $ 2492 § 1,705 % 2,269 § 7,493,567 - - 3 7,500,033
Federal $ 2301199 81616 §  LIIS717 § 33,024 3,531,556
Other - - - - 28,869 - - 28,869
Total Revenues $ 2,492 S 1,705 % 2269 § 2301 198 $ 7,604,052 $ 1,115,717 § 33024 § 11 060,458
EXPENIITURES
[nstruction
Salaries of Teachers 5 52932 § 2075378 % 61,964 - $ 2,190,274
Other Salaries for Instruction - £,221,842 - - 1,221,842
Other Purchased Services 3 2,269 1,559,221 - 631,206 - 2,192,696
General Supplies 16,015 232,888 28,554 - 277457
Textbaoks 3 1,705 - - - - 1,705
Other Objects - - - - 7,856 - - 7,856
Total Instruction - 1,705 2,269 1,628,168 3,337,964 721,724 - 5,891,830
Support Services
Safaries of Supervisors of Instruction 22,528 148,572 61,059 - 232,159
Salaries of Program Directors - 269,100 - - 269,160
Salaries of Other Professional Staff’ - 334,548 “ - 334,548
Salaries of Secretarial and Clerical “ 188,617 - - 188,617
Other Salaries - 220,269 - - 220,269
Salaries of Community Invelvment Spec - 86,165 - - 86,165
Salaries of Master Teachers - 263,260 - - 263,260
Indirect Costs 16,814 917 31,178 33,024 81,933
Personat Services Employee-Benefits 9,656 885,077 3,136 - 897,869
Purchased Ed, Services-Contracted Pre-K - 968,509 - - 968,909
Purchased Prof. Educational Services $ 2,492 - 24,758 2311 - 29,561
Other Purchased Prof, Services 38,291 36,350 43,961 - 118,602
Cleaning Repair and Maintenance Ser, - 94,288 - “ 94,288
Contracted Services - Transportation - 4,039 - - 4,639
Travel - 1,357 - - 1,357
Supplies and Materials 4,341 70,564 - - 74,903
Energy - 135,283 - - 135,283
Other Objects - - - - 2,547 - - 2,547
Taotal Support Services 2,492 - - 91,630 3,735,220 141,645 33,024 4,004,011
Facilities Acquisition and Construction
Services
Construction Services 28,869 28,869
[nstructional Equipment . 246,816 252,348 - 499,164
Noninstructional Equipntent - - - - 55,183 - - 55,183
Total Facilities Acquisition and
Construction Services - - - - 330,868 252,348 - 583,216
Transfer of Fuads to SBB - - - 581,401 - - “ 581,401
Total Expenditures $ 2492 3 1,705 § 2,269 §  2301,199 § 7604052 § 1,115,717 § 33024 § 11060458
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GARFIELD BOARD OF EDUCATION

SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

COMBINING SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES

BUDGETARY BASIS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

REVENUES
Intergovernmentat
State

Federal
Other

Total Revenues

EXPENDITURES
Instruction
Salaries of Teachers
Other Salaries for Instruction
Other Purchased Services
General Supplies

Textbooks
Other Objects

Total Instruction

Support Services
Salaries of Supervisors of Instruction
Salaries of Program Directors
Salaries of Other Professional Staff
Salaries of Secr. And Clerical Assis.
Other Salaries
Salaries of Community Invelviment Spec
Sataries of Master Teachers
Indirect Costs
Personal Services - Employee Benefits
Purchased Ed. Services-Contracted Pre-K
Paurchased Prof. Educationat Services
Other Purchased Prof, Services
Cleaning Repair and Maintenance Ser.
Contracted Services - Transportation
Travel
Supplies and Materials
Energy
Other Objects

Total Support Services

Facilities Acquisition and Construction
Services
Construction Services
Insiructional Equipment
Noninstructional Equipment

Total Facilities Acquisition and
Construction Services

Transfer of Funds to SBB

Total Expenditures

LD.E.A, LD.E.A,

EXHIBIT E-1A

Part Part
B-Basic B-Basic
Title E Reg. Prog.  Preschool  TitleITA  Title I D
10/11 10/11 10/1% 10/11 10/11 Subtotals
$ 694526 § 1,359,662 % 53,984 § 191,694 1,333 § 2.301,199
§ 694,526 $ 1359662 $ 53,084 $_191,694 1,333 § 2301199
3 6,932 $ 46,600 $ 52,932
145,575 $ 1,359,662 % 53,984 1,559,221
9,682 5,000 1,333 16,015
162,189 1,359,662 53,984 51,000 1,333 1,628,168
15,620 6,908 22,528
13,327 3,487 16,814
2,922 0,734 9,656
19,080 19,211 38,291
4,341 4,341
50,949 - - 40,681 - 91,630
481,388 - - 100,013 - 581,401

§ 694,526 § 1,359,062 §

53,984 § 191,694 $

1,333 § 2,301,199
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GARFIELD BOARD OF EBUCATION
SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

EXHIBIT E-1B

COMBINING SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES

BUDGETARY BASIS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

REVENUES
Intergovernmental
State

Federal
Other

Total Revenues

EXPENDITURES
Instruction
Salaries of Teachers
Other Salaries for Instruction
Other Purchased Services
General Supplies

Texthooks
Other Objects

Total Instruction

Support Services
Salaries of Supervisors of Instruction
Salaries of Program Directors
Salaries of Other Professional Staff
Salaries of Secr. and Clerical Assistants
Other Salaries
Salaries of Community Involvment Spec
Salaties of Master Teachers
Iadirect Costs
Personal Services - Employee Benefits
Purchased Ed. Services-Contracted Pre-K
Purchased Prof. Educational Services
Other Purchased Prof. Services
Cleaning Repair and Maintenance Ser.
Contracted Services - Transportation
Travel
Supplies and Materials

Energy
Other Objects

Total Support Services

pacuiiies Acquisition and Lonstruction
BETVICES

Construction Services
Instructional Equipment
Nominstructional Equipment

Total Facilities Acquisition and
Construction Services

Transfer of Funds to SBB

Total Expenditures

Preschool
Title I Education NJSBIG
16/11 Aid - Safety Grant Subtotals
§ 7,493,567 $  7.493,567
3 81,616 81,616
- - b 28,869 28,869
3 81,616 -8 7493567 § 28,862 § 7,604,052
5 25776 § 2,049,602 $ 2,075,378
1,221,842 1,221,842
30,363 202,525 232,888
- 7.856 - 7.856
56,139 3,481,825 - 3,537,964
18,272 130,300 148,572
269,100 269,100
334,548 334,548
188,617 188,617
220,269 220,269
86,165 86,165
263,260 263,260
917 917
885,077 885,077
968,909 968,909
24,758 24,758
2,734 33,616 36,350
94,288 94 288
4,639 4,639
1,357 1,357
699 69,865 70,564
135,283 135,283
- 2,547 - 2,547
22,622 3,712,598 - 3,735,220
$ 28,869 28,869
2,855 243,961 246,816
- 55,183 - 55,183
2,855 296,144 28,869 330,868
$ 81,616 $ 7493567 § 28,869 § 7,604,052
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EXHIBIT E-1C

GARFIELD BOARD OF EDUCATION
SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
COMBINING SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES
BUDGETARY BASIS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

IDEA-
Title I Title 1 SiA IDEA-B Preschoot |
ARRA ARRA  ARRA ARRA Subtotals |
REVENUES
Intergovernmental

State -
Federal $ 328478 § 45897 § 705054 § 36,288 § 1,115,717
Other - - - “ -

Total Revenues $ 328478 § 45897 § 705,054 § 36288 $ 1,115717

EXPENDITURES
Instruction
Salaries of Teachers $ 20,964 § 41,000 k) 61,964
Other Salaries for Instruction -
Other Purchased Services 42,473 $ 588,733 631,266
General Supplies 387 1,761 26,406 28,554

Texthooks -
Other Objects - - - - -

Total Instruction 63,824 42,761 615,139 - 721,724

Support Services :
Salaries of Supervisors of Instruction 2,398 58,661 61,059
Salaries of Program Directors -
Salaries of Other Professional Staff .
Sakaries of Seer. and Clerical Assistants -
Other Salaries -
Salaries of Community Involvment Spec -
Salaries of Master Teachers -
Indirect Costs 15,170 16,008 35,178
Personal Services - Employee Benefits 3,136 3,136
Purchased Ed. Services-Confracted Pre-K -
Purchased Prof. Educational Services 2,311 2,311
Other Purchased Prof. Services 30495 4,466 43,961
Cleaning Repair and Maintenance Ser. -
Contracted Services - Transportation -
Travel -
Supplies and Materials -

Energy
Other Objects - - - - R

Total Support Services 59,374 3,136 79,135 - 141,645

Facilities Acquisition and Construction
Services
Construction Services
Instructional Equipment 205,280 10,780 §$ 36,288 252,348
Noninstructional Equipment - - - - -

Total Facilities Acquisition and
Construction Services 205,280 - 10,780 36,288 252,348

Transfer of Funds to SBB - - - - .

Total Expenditures $ 328478 § 45897 § 705,054 $ 36,288 $  1,115717
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EXHIBIT E-1D

GARFIELD BOARD OF EDUCATION
SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
COMBINING SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES
BUDGETARY BASIS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 39, 2811

Title I Title II Part A Title 11
09/10 Interim  09/10 Interim  09/10 Interim Subtotals
REVENUES
Intergovernmental
State -
Federal $ 24374 § 7,101 § 1,549 § 33,024
Other - - - -
Total Revenues h) 24,374 § 7,101 % 1,549 § 33,024
EXPENDITURES

Instruction
Salaries of Teachers -
Other Salaries for Instruction -
(Other Purchased Services -
General Supplies -
Textbooks -
Other Objects - - - -

Total Instruction - - . -

Support Services

Salaries of Supervisors of Instruction -
Salaries of Program Directors -
Salaries of Other Professional Staff -
Salaries of Secr. and Clerical Assistants -

Other Salaries -
Salaries of Conumunity Involvment Spec -
Salaries of Master Teachers -
Indirect Costs $ 24374 % 7,101 % 1,549 % 33,024
Personal Services - Employee Benefits -
Purchased Ed. Services-Contracted Pre-K -
Purchased Prof. Educational Services -
Other Purchased Prof. Services -
Cleaning Repair and Maintenance Ser. -
Contracted Services - Transportation -
Travel -
Supplies and Materials -
Energy

Other Objects - - - -

Total Support Services 24,374 7,101 1,549 33,024

Facilities Acquisition and Consiruction
Services
Construction Services
Instructional Equipment -
Noninstructional Equipment - - - -

Total Facilities Acquisition and

Construction Services - - - -
Transfer of Funds to SBB - - - -
Total Expenditures 3 24,374 § 7,101 % 1,549 % 33,024
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GARFIELD BOARD OF EDUCATION
SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
PRESCHOOL EDUCATION AID SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES
PRESCHOOL - ALL PROGRAMS
BUDGETARY BASIS

EXHIBIT E-2
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

Original Budget Final
Budget Transfers Budget Actual Variance |
EXPENDITURES
Instruction
Salaries of Teachers $ 2,156,660 - $ 2,156,660 $ 2,049,602 § 107,058
QOther Salaries for Instruction 1,296,296 - 1,296,296 1,221,842 74,454
Other Purchased services 42,500 3 (42,500) - - -
General Supplies 95,956 121,930 217,886 202,525 15,361 |
Other Objects 5,000 2,856 7.856 7.856 - |
Total Instruction 3,596,412 82,286 3,678,698 3,481,825 196,873
Support Services
Salaries of Supervisors of Instruction 130,300 - 130,300 130,300 -
Salaries of Program Directors 281,100 - 281,100 269,100 12,000
Salaries of Other Professional Staff 348,005 - 348,005 334,548 13,457
Salaries of Secr, and Clerical Assistants 188,017 - 188,617 188,617 -
Other Salaries 330,468 - 330,468 220,269 110,199
Salaries of Community Involvment Spec 143,211 - 143,211 86,165 57,046
Salaries of Master Teachers 261,234 8,000 269,234 263,260 5,974
Personal Services - Employee Benefits 1,451,687 (297,513) 1,154,174 885,077 269,097
Purchased Ed. Services - Contracted Pre-K 1,053,110 - 1,053,110 968,909 84,201
Other Purchased Prof. - Ed. Services 86,500 (23,605) 62,895 24,758 38,137
Other Purchased Professional Services 34,345 - 34,345 33,616 729
Cleaning, Repair & Maintenance 71,465 25,000 96,465 94,288 2,177
Contracted Services - (Field Trips) 7,500 - 7,500 4,639 2,861
Travel 7,500 - 7,500 1,357 6,143
Supplies and Materials 50,000 20,900 70,900 69,865 1,035
Energy - 135,283 135,283 135,283 -
Other Objects 3,000 {283) 2,717 2,547 170
Total Support Services 4,448,042 (132,218) 4,315,824 3,712,598 603,226
Facilities Acquisition and Construction Services
Instructional Equipment 206,879 38,329 245208 243,961 1,247
Noninstructional Equipment 26,000 29,184 55,184 55,183 1
Total Support Services 232,879 67,513 300,392 209,144 1,248
Total Expenditures $ 82771333 % 17,581 % 8,204,914 $ 7,493,567 § 801,347

Calculation of Budget Carryover

Total revised 2010-2011 Preschool Education Aid Allocation $ 7,896,501
Add: Actual ECPA/PEA Carryover (June 30, 2010) 735918
Total Preschool Ed. Aid Funds Available for 2010-2011 Budget 8,632,419
Less: 2010-2011 Budgeted Preschool Education Aid (Including
prior year budgeted carryover) 8294914
Available & Unbudgeted Preschool Education Aid Funds as of
Tune 30, 2011 337,505
Add; June 30, 2011 Unexpended Preschool Education Aid 801,347
2010-2011 C/O - Preschool Education Aid Programs $ 1,138,852
2010-11 Preschool Education Aid C/O Budgeted in 2011-2012 b -
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EXHIBIT E-2a
GARFIELD BOARD OF EDUCATION
SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
PRESCHOQOL EDUCATION AID SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES
PRESCHOOL - FULL DAY 3YR & 4YR - REGULAR
BUDGETARY BASIS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

Original Budget Final
Budget Transfers Budget Actual Variance
EXPENDITURES
Instruction
Salaries of Teachers $ 2,156,660 - $ 2,156,660 $  2,049602 § 107,058
Other Salaries for Instruction 1,296,296 - 1,296,296 1,221,842 74,454
Other Purchased services 42,500 § (42,500) - - -
General Supplies 95,956 121,930 217,886 202,525 15,361 |
Other Objects 5,000 2,856 7,836 7,856 - |
|
Total Instruction 3,596,412 82,286 3,678,698 3,481,825 196,873 I
Support Services
Salaries of Supervisors of Instruction 130,300 - 130,300 130,300 -
Salaries of Program Directors 281,100 - 281,100 269,100 12,000
Salaries of Other Professional Staff 348,005 - 348,005 334,548 13,457
Salaries of Secr, and Clerical Assistants 188,617 - 188,617 188,617 -
Other Salaries 330,468 - 330,468 220,269 110,199
Salaries of Community Involvment Spec 143,211 - 143,211 86,165 57,046
Salaries of Master Teachers 261,234 8,000 269,234 263,260 5,974
Personal Services - Employee Benefits 1,451,687 (297,513) 1,154,174 885,077 269,097
Purchased Ed. Services - Contracted Pre-KK 1,053,110 - 1,053,110 968,909 84,201
Other Purchased Prof. - Ed. Services 86,500 (23,605) 62,895 24,758 38,137
Other Purchased Professional Services 34,345 - 34,345 33,616 729
Cleaning, Repair & Maintenance 71,465 25,000 96,465 94,288 2,177
Contracted Services - (Field Trips) 7,500 - 7,500 4,639 2,861
Travel 7,500 - 7,500 1,357 6,143
Supplies and Materials 50,000 20,900 70,900 69,865 1,035
Energy 135,283 135,283 135,283
Other Objects 3,000 {283) 2,717 2,547 170
Total Support Services 4,448,042 (132,218) 4,315,824 3,712,598 603,226
Facilities Acquisition and Construction Services
Instructional Equipment 206,879 38,329 245,208 243,961 1,247
Noninstructional Equipment 26,000 29,184 55,184 55,183 1
Total Support Services 232,879 67,513 300,392 299,144 1,248
Total Expenditures $ 8,277,333 $ 17,581 § 8294914 § 7493567 § 801,347
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GARFIELD BOARD OF EDUCATION
SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
PRESCHOOL EDUCATION AID SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES
PRESCHOOL - SPECIAL EDUCATION INCLUSION CLASSROOM COSTS
BUDGETARY BASIS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

THIS SCHEDULE IS NOT APPLICABLE

PRESCHOOL EDUCATION AID SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES
PRESCHOOL. - SPECIAL EDUCATION SELF CONTAINED OTHER
SPECIAL EDUCATION COSTS
BUDGETARY BASIS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

THIS SCHEDULE IS NOT APPLICABLE

PRESCHOOL EDUCATION AID SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES
PRESCHOOL - OTHER
BUDGETARY BASIS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 34, 2011

THIS SCHEDULE IS NOT APPLICABLE
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EXHIBIT E-2¢
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CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND




EXHIBIT F-1

GARFIELD BOARD OF EDUCATION
CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND
SUMMARY STATEMENT OF PROJECT EXPENDITURES - BUDGETARY BASIS
FOR THE FISCAIL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

Unexpended
Expenditures to Date Balance,
Issue/Project Title Appropriatiens Prior Years Current Year June 30,2011
Garfield High School Partial Roof Replacement $ 732,624 kY 672,176 60,448
On-Behalf Payments
School Development Authority - Educational Facilities
Construction Aid 75,103,040 § 74,844,951 258,089 -
Total Expenditures $ 75,835,664 § 74,844,951 § 930,265 § 60,448
Reconciliation to GAAP Basis
Project Balance, June 30, 2011 $ 60,448 |
|
Less: Unearned SDA Grant Revenue {60,448) i
Fund Balance, June 30, 2011-GAAP Basis $ -
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EXHIBIT F-2
GARFIELD BOARD OF EDUCATION
CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND
SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
BUDGETARY BASIS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2611

Revenues and Other Financing Sources

Revenues
State Sources $ 732,624
State Sources- On-Behalf SDA Contributions 258,089
Total Revenues 990,713

Expenditures and Other Financing Uses

Expenditures
Construction Services 672,176
On-Behalf SDA Construction Services 258,089
Total Expenditures and Other Financing Uses 930,265

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues and Other Financing Sources over (under) Expenditures '
and Other Financing Uses 60,448

Fund Balance- Beginning of Year -

Fund Balance- End of Year $ 60,448

Reconciliation to GAAP Basis

Fund Balance, June 30, 2011 - Budgetary Basis $ 60,448
Less: Unearned SDA Grant Revenue (60,448)
Fund Balance, June 30, 201 1-GAAP Basis $ -
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ENTERPRISE FUND



EXHIBIT G-1

GARFIELD BOARD OF EDUCATION
ENTERPRISE FUNDS
COMBINING STATEMENTS OF NET ASSETS
AS OF JUNE 30, 2011

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ARE PRESENTED ON EXHIBIT B-4

EXHIBIT G-2
COMBINING STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, EXPENSES
AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 34, 2011
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ARE PRESENTED ON EXHIBIT B-5
EXHIBIT G-3

COMBINING STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 36, 2011

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ARE PRESENTED ON EXHIBIT B-6
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FIDUCIARY FUNDS



GARFIELD BOARD OF EDUCATION

EXHIBIT H-1

FIDUCIARY FUNDS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF AGENCY NET ASSETS
AS OF JUNE 30, 2011
Agency
Student
Activity Payroll Total
ASSETS
Cash 3 85,142 % 11,404 § 96,546
Total Assets 3 85,142 § 11,404 $ 96,546
LIABILITIES
Liabilities
Due to Other Funds b 2,962 $ 2,962
Accrued Salaries and Wages $ 11,404 11,404
Due to Student Groups 82,180 - 82,180
Total Liabilities $ 85,142 % 11,404  § 96,546
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EXHIBIT H-2

GARFIELD BOARD OF EDUCATION
FIDUCIARY FUNDS
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ARE PRESENTED ON EXHIBIT B-8
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GARFIELD BOARD OF EDUCATION
STUDENT ACTIVITY AGENCY FUND
SCHEDULE OF RECEIPTS AND DISBURSEMENTS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

Balance, Cash Cash
Jaly 1, 2010 Receipts Disbursements

EXHIBIT H-3

Balance,
June 30, 2011

Due to Other Funds $ 4,817 § 1,855 § 2,962
Due to Student Groups:

Middle School Activity Account $ (1,340) 08,641 88,823 8,478

High School Activity Account 77,500 108,867 112,665 713,702

Total $ 76,160 § 212,325 % 203,343 § 85,142

EXHIBIT H-4
PAYROLL AGENCY FUND
SCHEDULE OF RECEIPTS AND DISBURSEMENTS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011
Balance, Cash Cash Balance,

July 1, 2010 Receipts Disbursentents

June 30,2011

Payroll Deductions and Withholdings $ 19,638,287 § 19,638,287
Accrued Salaries and Wages $ 4,945 28,727,046 28,721,187 3§ 11,404
Total $ 4945 $ 48365933 $ 48359474 § 11,404
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LONG-TERM DEBT



EXHIBIT I-1
GARFIELD BOARD OF EDUCATION
SCHEDULE OF SERIAL BONDS

THIS SCHEDULE IS NOT APPLICABLE

EXHIBIT I-2
SCHEDULE OF CAPITAL LEASES AND LEASE-PURCHASE AGREEMENTS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011
Amount of
Interest Original Balance, Issued Balance,
Issue Rate Issue July 1,2010 Curreant Year Paid June 30, 2011
Capital Leases
Security System 5.00% $ 324479 $ 137,143 $ 66,899 § 70,244
6 Copiers - 08/09 4.80% 163,161 66,257 66,257 -
6 Vehicles - 08/09 5.00% 419,279 254,923 - 80,880 174,043
Total Capital Lease 458,323 - 214,036 244 287
Lease-Purchase Agreements
Computers - 08/09 4.30% 278,000 92,609 92,609 -
341 Computers - 09/10 4.93% 270,315 175,837 - 85,802 90,035
Total Lease-Purchase Agreements 268,446 - 178,411 90,035
$ 726,769 § - $ 392447 § 334,322
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GARFIELD BOARD OF EDUCATION
DEBT SERVICE FUND
BUDGETARY COMPARISON
FOR THE FISCAIL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

THIS SCHEDULE IS NOT APPLICABLE
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EXHIBIT -3



STATISTICAL SECTION

This part of the Garfield Board of Education's comprehensive annual financial report

presents detailed information as a context for understanding what the information in the financial
statements, note disclosures, and required supplementary information says about the government's
overall financial health.

Contents Exhibits
Financial Trends

These schedules contain trend information to help the reader understand

how the government's financial performance and well-being have changed

over time. J-1toJ-5

Revenue Capacity

These schedules contain information to help the reader assess the govern-
ment's most significant local revenue source, the property tax. J-6 to J-9

Debt Capacity

These schedules present information to help the reader assess the afforda-

bility of the government's current levels of outstanding debt and the

government's ability to issue additional debt in the future. J-10to J-13
Demographic and Economic Information

These schedules offer demographic and economic indicators to help the

reader understand the environment within which the government's finan-

cial activities take place. J-14 and J-15
Operating Information

These schedules contain service and infrastructure data to help the reader

understand how the information in the government's financial report
relates to the services the government provides and the activities it performs,  J-16 to J-20

Sources: Unless otherwise noted, the information in these schedules is derived from the
comprehensive annual financial reports for the relevant year.
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GARFIELD BOARD OF EDUCATION
DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING PROPERTY TAX RATES
LAST TEN YEARS
(Unaudited)
(rate per $100 of assessed value)

EXHIBIT J-7

Total Direct
School Tax
Rate Overlapping Rates
Garfield Municipal Total Direct and
Calendar Local School ~ Municipality Library of County of Overlapping Tax
Year District of Garfield Garfield Bergen Rate
2002 $ 1.601 $ 1.063 $ 0.266 $ 2.930
2003 1.615 1.074 0.261 2.950
2004 1.658 1.154 0.298 3.110
2005 1.678 1.323 0.319 3.320
2006 1.719 1.506 0.345 3.570
2007 1.788 1.534 - 0.378 3.700
2008 1.843 1.649 0.438 3.930
2009 1.918 1.728 0.450 4,096
2010 1.941 1.829 0.436 4.206
2011 1.133 1.025 $ 0.037 0.223 2.418

Note: Effective for calendar year 20

tax rate.
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11, the Municipal Library's tax rate was segregated from the Municipality's



EXHIBIT J-8
GARFIELD BOARD OF EDUCATION
PRINCIPAL PROPERTY TAXPAYERS
CURRENT YEAR AND NINE YEARS AGO

(Unaudited)
2011 2002
Taxable % of Total Taxable % of Total
Assessed District Net Assessed District Net
Taxpayer Value Assessed Value Value Assessed Value

Central Bergen Properties $ 47,348,700 2.25% $ 17,943,100 1.52%
New Bridgeland Warchouses, LLC 30,005,800 1.43% 11,826,700 1.00%
Garden State Paper 10,327,300 (.88%
Pulte Homes of NJ LP 13,800,000 0.66%
Varsity Realty Co. 4,771,300 0.40%
Castega Realty 7,419,400 0.35% 5,450,000 0.46%
Somerset Realty Co. 7,369,100 0.35% 4,450,000 0.38%
Crystal Holdings 7,303,600 0.35% 3,498,500 0.30%
Anthony Labue 3.900,000 0.33%
W.S.P. Corp. 6,483,600 0.31% 3,050,000 0.26%
UFVS Mgt. 6,000,000 0.29%
Remigio & Ana Pi¢inich 3,250,300 0.28%
Safeguard Properties LLC 5,500,000 0.26%
YMCA Rose Garfield 5,385,400 0.25%

$ 136,615,600 6.50% $ 68,467,200 5.81%

Source: Municipal Tax Assessor
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EXHIBIT J-9

GARFIELD BOARD OF EDUCATION
PROPERTY TAX LEVIES AND COLLECTIONS
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
{(Unaudited)

Fiscal Local School Collected within the Fiscal Year of the

Year District Taxes Levy Collections in
Ended Levied for the Percentage of Subsequent

June 30, Fiscal Year Amount Levy Years

2002 $ 18,848,308 18,848,308 100,00%

2003 18,807,543 18,807,543 100.,00%

2004 19,274,957 19,274,957 100,00%

2005 19,763,055 19,763,055 100,00%

2006 19,955,546 19,955,546 100,00%

2007 20,856,083 20,856,083 100.00%

2008 21,523,124 21,523,124 100.00%

2009 22,064,724 22,064,724 100.00%

2010 22,506,019 22,506,019 100.00%

2011 23,641,953 23,641,953 100.00%
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GARFIELD BOARD OF EDUCATION
RATIOS OF OUTSTANDING DEBT BY TYPE
LAST SEVEN FISCAL YEARS
{Unaudited)

Governmental Activities

Capital
Certificates  Leases/ Lease-
Fiscal Year Ended of Purchase
June 30, Participation Agreements Total District Population
2005 $2,905,000 $ 1,042,561 $ 3,947,561 29,306
2006 2,125,000 848,985 2,973,985 29,051
2007 1,315,000 870,842 2,185,842 28,936
2008 569,134 569,134 28,889
2009 945,210 945,210 28,966
2010 726,769 726,769 28,966 (E)
2011 334,322 334,322 28,966 (E)

Source: District records

Note:

GASB requires that ten vears of statistical data be presented. As a result of the implementation of GASE No. 44

in fiscal year 2006 only seven years of information is available. Each year thereafter, an additional year's data will be
included until ten years of data is present.

(E) - Estimate
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EXHIBIT J-10

Per Capita

$ 135
102
76
20
33
25
12



EXHIBIT J-11
GARFIELD BOARD OF EDUCATION
RATIOS OF NET GENERAL BONDED DEBT OUTSTANDING
LAST SEVEN FISCAL YEARS
(Unaudited)

General Bonded Debt Outstanding

Fiscal Percentage of
Year General Net General Actual Taxable
Ended Obligation Bonded Debt Value of
June 30, Bonds Deductions Outstanding Property Per Capita
2005 - - - 0.00% $0
2006 - - - 0.00% 0
2007 - - - 0.00% 0
2008 - - - 0.00% 0
2009 - - - 0.00% 0
2010 - - - 0.00% 0
2011 -

Source: District records

Note:
(GASB requires that ten years of statistical data be presented. As a result of the implementation of GASB No. 44
in fiscal year 2006 only seven years of information is available. Each year thereafter, an additional year's data will be

included until ten years of data is present.
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EXHIBIT J-12

GARFIELD BOARD OF EDUCATION
COMPUTATION OF DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING BONDED DEBT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2010

(Unaudited)
Total Debt
MUNICIPAL DEBT:
Garfield Board of Education -
City of Garfield (1) $ 41,692,635
41,692,635
OVERLAPPING DEBT APPORTIONED TO THE MUNICIPALITY
Bergen County:
County of Bergen(A) 9,609,417
Passaic Valley Sewer Commission (B) 4,172,970
13,782,387
Total Direct and Overlapping Outstanding Debt $ 55,475,022
SOURCE:

(1) City of Garfield 2010 Annual Debt Statement
County of Bergen 2010 Annual Debt Statement
Passaic Valley Sewer Commission's Annual Audit Report

(A) The debt for this entity was apportioned to City of Garfield by dividing the municipality's 2010

equalized value by the total 2010 equalized value for the County of Bergen.
(B) Overlapping debt was computed based upon municipal flow to the Commission.
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EXHIBIT J-14
GARFIELD BOARD OF EDUCATION
DEMOGRAPHIC AND ECONOMIC STATISTICS

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
(Unaudited)
County Per
Capita Personal Unemployment

Year Population Income Rate

2002 29,621 $ 51,931 7.1%

2003 29,504 51,291 7.0%

2004 29,442 54,669 5.8%
2005 29,306 56,963 6.4%
2006 29,051 63,021 6.4%

2007 28,936 67,113 6.0%

2008 28,889 68,541 8.0%

2009 28,966 64,388 13.0%

2010 28,966 (E) N/A 13.0%

2011 28,966 (E) N/A N/A

Source: New Jersey State Department of Education
(E) - Estimate

N/A - Not Applicable
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GARFIELD BOARD OF EDUCATION

EXHIBIT J-15

PRINCIPAL EMPLOYERS
CURRENT YEAR AND NINE YEARS AGO
(Unaudited)
2011 2002
Percentage of Percentage of Total
Total Municipal Municipal
Employer Employees Employment Employees Employment

INFORMATION IS NOT AVAILABLE
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GARFIELD BOARD OF EDUCATION

FULL-TIME EQUIVALENT DISTRICT EMPLOYEES BY FUNCTION/PROGRAM
LAST SEVEN FISCAL YEARS

Function/Program
Enstruction

Support Services;
Student & instruction related services
General administration
School administrative services
Central and Other Support Services
Plant operations and maintenance

) Pupil transportation
Totai

Source: District Personnel Records

Note:

GASB requires that ten years of statistical data be presented. As a result of the impiementation of GASB No. 44

EXHIBIT J-16

(Unaudited)
2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011
516 498 498 510 533 533 533
46 63 65 60 62 62 62
B 8 6 7 5 s 5
31 38 38 38 20 20 20
9 5 5 5 5 5 5
55 53 55 57 51 51 51 |
3 4 4 5 5 5 5 |
668 671 671 682 681 681 881

in fiscal year 2006 only seven years of information is available. Each year thereafter, an additional year's data will be

included until ten years of data is present.
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EXHIBIT J-18
GARFIELD BOARD OF EDUCATION
SCHOOL BUILDING INFORMATION

LAST SEVEN FISCAL YEARS
(Unaudited)
2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2610 2011

District Building
Garficld Hizh School (1956, Addition 1962)

Square Feet 121,32¢ i21,320 121,320 121,320 121,320 121,320 121,320

Capacity (Students) 803 803 803 803 803 303 803

Enrollment 1,182 1,158 1,195 1,133 1,160 1,004
Garfield Midqle Schoot (2007 New Construction)

Square Feet 178,000 178,000 178,000 178,000

Capacity (Students) 1,200 1,200 £,200 1,200

Enrollment 953 916 $55
Washington Irving No. 4 (1912, Rebuiit 1217)

Square Feet 32,760 32,760 32,760 32,760 32,760 32,760 32,160

Capacity {Students) 262 262 262 262 262 262 267

Enroliment 278 286 279 202 210 332
Washington Irving Annex

Square Feet 8,085 8,085 8,085 8,085 8,085 8,085 8,085

Capacity (Students) 165 165 165 165 165 165 165

Enrollment 185 194 196 181 186 288
Woodrow Wilson No. 3 (1917)

Square Feet 23,172 23,172 23,172 23,172 23,172 23,172 23,172

Capacity (Students) 185 185 185 185 183 185 185

Enrollment 395 422 386 264 300 305
Abraham Eincoln No. 6 (1922}

Square Feet 33,000 33,000 33,000 33,000 33,000 33,000 33,000

Cagacity (Students) 264 264 264 264 264 264 264

Enrollment 370 378 349 325 337 350
Roosevelt No. 7 (1922}

Square Feet 33,000 33,000 33,000 33,000 33,000 33,000 33,000

Capacity {Students) 264 264 264 264 264 264 264

Enrollment 389 382 360 336 375 362
Columbus No. 8 (1926

Square Fest 48,600 48,000 48,000 48,000 48,000 48,000 48,000

Capacity (Students) 384 384 384 384 384 384 384

Enrollment 463 471 453 384 401 395
Thomas Jefferson No. 9 (1929)

Square Feet 53,000 53,000 53,000 53,000 53,000 53,000 53,000

Capacity (Students) 396 396 396 396 396 396 356

Enrollment 640 627 640
James Madison No, 10

Square Feet 20,309 20,309 20,309 20,309 20,309 20,309 20,309

Capacity (Studexnts) 162 162 162 162 162 162 162

Enrollment 177 177 174 133 135 210
Early Childhood Learning Center (2004)

Square Fect 44,062 44,062 44,062 44,062 44,062 44,062 44,062

Capagcity (Students) 353 353 353 353 353 353 333

Enrollment 331 353 364 370 532 350
Early Childhood Annpey {lcased thru June 30, 2007)

Square Feet 5019 5,019 5,019

Capacity (Students) 40 40 490

Entollinent £i5 111 116

Number of Schools at June 30, 2011
Preschool - 1
Elementary - 8
Middle Schoot - 1
Seniar High School - 1

Source: District Records, Department of Buildings and Grounds

Mate:

GASB requires that ten years of statistical data be presented. As a result of the implementation of GASB No, 44

in fiscal year 2606 only seven years of information is available. Each yeer thereafter, an additional year's data will be
included until ten years of data is present.
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GARFIELD BOARD OF EDUCATION
INSURANCE SCHEDULE

Commercial Package Policy
Property - Blanket Building & Contents
Flood Coverage
Earthquake
Comprehensive General Liability
Workers Compensation

Automobile Coverage
Liability
School Leaders Errors & Omissions Coverage

Student Accident Coverage

Crime Coverage
Theft, Disappearance & Destruction
Employee Dishonesty and Faithful Performance
Forgery and Alteration
Computer Fraud

Public Official Bonds

School Business Administrator/Board Secretary
Treasurer of School Monies

Source: District's records

JUNE 30, 2011
(Unaudited)
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Coverage

$ 300,000,000
50,000,000
50,000,000
11,000,000

2,000,000

11,000,000
11,000,000
Various
100,000
100,000

25,000
100,000

150,000
400,000

EXHIBIT J-20

Deductible

i 1,000
500,000/10,000

1,000

5,000

1,000
500
500

1,000
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LERCH, VINCI & HIGGINS, LLP

EXHIBIT K-1
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS
REGISTERED MUNICIFPAL ACCOUNTANTS
17 - 17 ROUTE 208
FAIR LAWN, N] 07410
TELEPHONE (201) 791-7100
FACSIMILE (201) 791-3035
DIETER P. LERCH, CPA, RMA, P3A ELIZABETH A. SHICK, CPA, RMA, PSA
WWW.LVHCPA.COM
GARY J1. VINCI, CPA, RMA, PSA ANDREW PARENTE, CPA, RMA, PSA
GARY W. HIGGINS, CPA, RMA, PSA ROBERT W. HAAG, CPA, PSA
JEFFREY C. BLISS, CPA, RMA, PSA DEBORAH K, LERCH, CPA, PSA
PAUL ). LERCH, CPA, RMA, PSA XEBRA GOLLE, CPA
DONNA L. JAPHET, CPA, PSA CINDY JANACEK, CPA, RMA
JULIUS B. CONSONI, CPA, PSA RALPH M, PICONE, CPA, RMA, PSA

DWARD N. KERE, CPA

REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON
COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

Honerable President and Members
of the Board of Trustees

Garfield Board of Education

Garfield, New Jersey

We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, and
the aggregate remaining fund information of the Garfield Board of Education as of and for the fiscal year ended June 30,
2011, which collectively comprise the Garfield Board of Education’s basic financial statements and have issued our report
thereon dated November 1, 2011. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued
by the Comptroller General of the United States and audit requirements as prescribed by the Division of Finance and
Regulatory Compliance, Department of Education, State of New Jersey.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

Management of the Garfield Board of Education is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective
internal control over financial reporting. In planning and performing our audit, we considered the Garfield Board of
Education’s internal control over financial reporting as a basis for designing our auditing procedures for the purpose of
expressing our opinion on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
the Garfield Board of Education’s internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on
the effectiveness of the Garfield Board of Education’s internal control over financial reporting.

Our consideration of internal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose described in the preceding
paragraph and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over financial reporting that might be
significant deficiencies or material weaknesses and, therefore, there can be no assurance that all deficiencies, significant
deficiencies, or material weaknesses have been identified. However, as described in the accompanying schedule of findings
and questioned costs, we identified certain deficiencies in internal control over financial reporting that we consider to be
material weaknesses and other deficiencies that we consider to be significant deficiencies.
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EXHIBIT K-1

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or employees, in
the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct misstatements on a timely basis.
A material weakness is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control such that there is a reasonable
possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected
on a timely basis. We consider the deficiencies described in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs as
items 2011-1, 2011-2, 2011-5, 2011-6 and 2011-9 to be material weaknesses.

A significant deficiency is a deficiency or combination of significant deficiencies in internal control that is less severe than a
material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance. We consider the deficiencies
described in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs as items 2011-3, 2011-4, 2011-7 and 2011-8 to be |
significant deficiencies. |

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the of Garfield Board of Education’s financial statements are free
of material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and
grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial
statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit,
and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed instances of noncompliance or other
matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards and audit requirements as prescribed by the
Division of Finance and Regulatory Compliance, Department of Education, State of New Jersey and which are described in
the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs as items 2011-1 through 2011-9.

Additionally, we also noted certain matters that we reported to management of the Garfield Board of Education in a separate
report entitled, “Auditors’ Management Report on Administrative Findings — Finance, Compliance and Performance” dated
November 1, 2611.

The Garfield Board of Education’s responses to the findings identified in our audit are described in the accompanying
schedule of findings and questioned costs. We did not audit the Garfield Board of Education’s responses and, accordingly,
we express no opinion on the responses.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of management, the Board of Trustees, others within the District,
New Jersey State Department of Education, federal and state awarding agencies and pass-through entities and is not intended

to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties. /
DZ%/ km %ﬂ«/ LLA

LERCH, VINCI & HIGGINS, LLP
Certified Public Accountants
Public School Ageountants

Gary W. HK %

Public School Accountant
PSA Number CS00814

Fair Lawn, New Jersey
November 1, 2011
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LERCH, VINCI & HIGGINS, LLP

EXHIBIT K-2
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS
REGISTERED MUNICIPAL ACCOUNTANTS
17- 17 ROUTE 208
FAIR LAWN, NJ 07410

TELEPHONE (201} 791-7108

FACSIMILE (201) 791-3035
DIETER P. LERCH, CPA, RMA, PSA ELIZABETH A. SHICK, CPA, RMA, PSA

WWW.LVHCPA.COM .

GARY 1. VINCI, CPA, RMA, PSA ANDREW FPARENTE, CPA, RMA, PSA
GARY W. HIGGINS, CPA, RMA, PSA ROBERT W. HAAG, CPA, PSA
JEFEREY C, BL1SS, CPA, RMA, PSA DEBORAH K. LERCH, CPA, PSA
PAUL J. LERCH, CFA, RMA, PSA DEBRA GOLLE, CPA
DONNA L. JAPHET, CPA, PSA CINDY JANACEK, CFA, RMA
JULIUS B. CONSONI, CPA, PSA RALFH M. PICONE, CPA, RMA, PSA

EDWARD N. KERE, CPA

REPORT ON COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS THAT COULD HAVE A
DIRECT AND MATERIAL EFECT ON EACH MAJOR PROGRAM AND ON
INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE IN ACCORDANCE WITH
OMB CIRCULAR A-133 AND NEW JERSEY OMB CIRCULAR 04-04

Independent Auditor’s Report

Honorable President and Members
of the Board of Trustees

Garfield Board of Education

Garfield, New Jersey

Compliance

We have audited the Garfield Board of Education’s compliance with the types of compliance requirements described in the
U.S. Office of Management and Budget (OMB) Circular A-133 Compliance Supplement and the New Jersey OMB Circular
(4-04 State Aid/Grant Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and material effect on each of Garfield Board of
Education’s major federal and state programs for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2011. Garfield Board of Education’s major
federal and state programs are identified in the summary of auditor’s results section of the accompanying schedule of
findings and questioned costs. Compliance with the requirement of laws, regulations, contracts and grants applicable to each
of its major federal and state programs is the responsibility of the Garfield Board of Education’s management. Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on Garfield Board of Education’s compliance based on our audit.

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States; audit requirements as prescribed by the Division of Finance and Regulatory
Compliance, Department of Education, State of New Jersey; OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments,
and Non-Profit Organizations and New Jersey OMB Circular 04-04, Single Audit Policy for Recipients of Federal Grants,
State Grants and State Aid. Those standards and circulars require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct
and material effect on a major federal or state program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence
about Garfield Board of Education’s compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures, as we
considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion. Our audit
does not provide a legal determination on Garfield Board of Education’s compliance with those requirements.
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EXHIBIT K-2
Page 2

In our opinion, Garfield Board of Education complied, in all material respects, with the compliance requirements referred to
above that have a direct and material effect on each of its major federal and state programs for the fiscal year ended June 30,
2011. The results of our auditing procedures also disclosed other instances of noncompliance with those requirements that
are required to be reported in accordance with OMB Circular A-133 and New Jersey OMB Circular 04-04 and which are
described in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs as items 2011-10 to 2011-14.

Internal Control Over Compliance

Management of Garfield Board of Education is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control over
compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts and grants applicable to federal and state programs. In
planning and performing our audit, we considered Garfield Board of Education’s internal control over compliance with
requirements that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal or state program to determine the auditing
procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on compliance and to test and report on internal control over
compliance in accordance with OMB Circular A-133 and New Jersey OMB Circular 04-04, but nor for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Board’s internal control over compliance.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the preceding paragraph and
was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over compliance that might be significant deficiencies or
material weaknesses and, therefore, there can be no assurance that all deficiencies, significant deficiencies, or material
weaknesses have been identified. However, as discussed below, we identified certain deficiencies in internal control over
compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses and other deficiencies that we consider to be significant deficiencies

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management
or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to preveat, or detect and correct noncompliance
with a type of compliance requirement of a federal or state program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal
control over compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance such that there is
a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal or state program will
not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. We consider the deficiency in internal control over
compliance described in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs as item 2011-12 to be a material
weakness.

A significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal
control over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal or state program that is less severe than a
material weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with
governance. We consider the deficiencies in internal control over compliance described in the accompanying schedule of
findings and questioned costs as items 2011-10, 2011-11, 2011-13, and 2011-14 to be significant deficiencies.

The Garfield Board of Education’s responses to the findings identified in our audit are described in the accompanying

schedule of findings and questioned costs. We did not audit the Board’s responses and, accordingly, we express no opinion
on the responses.
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EXHIBIT K-2
Page 3

This report is intended solely for the information and use of management, the Board of Trustees, others within the District,
the New Jersey State Department of Education and other federal and state awarding agencies and pass-through entities and is
not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

C;_/@Z//W 5/7’%@, 277

LERCH, VINCI & HIGGINS, L
Certified Public Accountants

Public School ccountant%

Gary W, Higgins
Public School Accountant
PSA Number CS00814
Fair Lawn, New Jersey
November 1, 2011
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EXHIBIT K-5
GARFIELD BOARD OF EDUCATION
NOTES TO THE SCHEDULES OF EXPENDITURES OF
FEDERAL AWARDS AND STATE FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

NOTE 1 GENERAL

The accompanying schedules present the activity of all federal and state financial assistance programs of the Garfield Board
of Education. The Board of Education is defined in Note 1{A) to the Board's basic financial statements, All federal financial
assistance received directly from federal agencics, as well as federal awards and state financial assistance passed through
other government agencies is included on the schedule of expenditures of federal awards and state financial assistance.

NOTE 2 BASIS OF ACCOUNTING

The accompanying schedules are presented using the budgetary basis of accounting with the exception of programs recorded
in the food service fund, which are presented using the accrual basis of accounting. These bases of accounting are described
in Notes 1(C) to the Board's basic financial statements.

NOTE 3 RELATIONSHIP TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The basic financial statements present the general fund and special revenue fund on a GAAP basis. Budgetary comparison
statements or schedules (RSI) are presented for the general fund and special revenue fund to demonstrate finance-related
legal compliance in which certain revenue is permitted by law or grant agreement to be recognized in the audit year, whereas
for GAAP reporting, revenue is not recognized until the subsequent year or when expenditures have been made.

The general fund is presented in the accompanying schedules on a modified accrual basis with the exception of the revenue
recognition of the delayed state aid payments in the current budget year, which is mandated pursuant to N.J.S.A. 18A:22-
44.2.. For GAAP purposes, those payments are not recognized until the subsequent year due to the state deferral and
recording of certain state aid payments in the subsequent year. The special revenue fund is presented in the accompanying
schedules on the grant accounting budgetary basis which recognizes encumbrances as expenditures and also recognizes the
related revenues, which may include the delayed state aid payments, whereas the GAAP basis does not. The special revenue
fund also recognizes the delayed state aid payments in the current budget year, consistent with N.J.S.A. 18A:22-44.2.

The net adjustment to reconcile from the budgetary basis to the GAAP basis is an increase of $62,919 for the general fund
and a decrease of $37,121 for the special revenue fund. See the Notes to Required Supplementary Information for a
reconciliation of the budgetary basis to the modified accrual basis of accounting for the general and special revenue funds.
Awards and financial assistance revenues are reported in the Board’s basic financial statements on a GAAP basis as
presented as follows:

Federal State Total
General Fund $ 87,959 §$ 49914,566 § 50,002,525
Special Revenue Fund 3,604,792 7,389,676 10,994,468
Capital Projects Fund 930,265 930,265
Food Service Fund 1,575,022 25,495 1,600,517
Total Financial Assistance $ 5267,773 $ 58,260,002 $ 63,527,775
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EXHIBIT K-5
GARFIELD BOARD OF EDUCATION
NOTES TO THE SCHEDULES OF EXPENDITURES OF
FEDERAL AWARDS AND STATE FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

NOTE 4 RELATIONSHIP TO FEDERAL AND STATE FINANCJAL REPORTS

Amounts reported in the accompanying schedules may not necessarily agree with the amounts reported in the related federal
and state financial reports due to timing differences between the District’s fiscal year and grant program years.

NOTE 5 OTHER INFORMATION

Revenues and expenditures reported under the National School Lunch Program as non-cash assistance represent current year
value received and current year distributions, respectively of the Federal Food Distribution Program. TPAF Social Security
contributions in the amount of $2,401,067 represents the amount reimbursed by the State for the employer’s share of social
security contributions for TPAF members for the year ended June 30, 2011. The amount reported as TPAF Pension System
Contributions in the amount of $101,450 and TPAF Post-Retirement Medical Benefits Contributions in the amount of
$2,154,791 represents the amount paid by the State on behalf of the District for the year ended June 30, 2011. The School
Development Authority’s (“SDA™) Educational Facilities Construction and Financing Act on-behalf payments totaling
$258,089 represent the amounts paid by SDA on behalf of the District for the facility project expenditures of the District for
the year ended June 30, 2011.

NOTE 6 ON-BEHALF PROGRAMS NOT SUBJECT TO STATE SINGLE AUDIT

On-behalf State Programs for TPAF Pension and Post-Retirement Medical Benefits Contributions as well as on-behalf
School Development Authority Educational Facility Construction and Financing Act Program payments are not subject to a
State single audit and, therefore, are excluded from major program determination. The Schedule of State Financial
Assistance provides a reconciliation of State financial assistance reported in the District’s basic financial statements and the
amount subject to State single audit and major program determination.

NOTE 7 SCHOOLWIDE PROGRAM FUNDS

Schoolwide programs are not separate federal programs as defined in OMB Circular A-133; amounts used in schoolwide
programs (i.e., school based budgets) are included in the total expenditures of the program contributing the funds in the
Schedule of Expenditure of Federal Awards. The following funds by program are included in schoolwide programs in the
District.

Federal Program Amount

Title I, Part A: fmproving Basic Programs Operated by Local Education Agencies $481,388

Title II, Part A: Teacher and Principal Training and Recruiting 100,013
Total $581.,401
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EXHIBIT K-6
GARFIELD BOARD OF EDUCATION
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

Part I — Summary of Auditor’s Results
Financial Statements

Type of auditors’ report issued on financial statements Unqualified

Internal control over financial reporting:
1) Material weaknesses identified? X  yes ho

2) Significant deficiencies identified
that are not considered to be
material weakness(es)? X yes none reported

Noncompliance material to the basic financial
statements noted? X  yes 1no

Federal Awards Section

Internal Control over major programs:
(1) Material weaknesses identified? yes X no

(2) Significant deficiencies identified
that are not congidered to be
material weakness(es)? X yes none reported

Type of auditor's report issued on compliance for
major programs Ungualified

Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be reported
in accordance with section .510(a) of Circular A-133? X  yes no

Identification of major federal programs:

CFDA Number(s) Name of Federal Program or Cluster
84.010A Title I

84.389 Title ] ARRA
84,389 Title T ARRA SIA
84.027 IDEA Basic
84.173 IDEA Preschool
84.391 IDEA Basic ARRA
84,392 IDEA Preschool ARRA
10.555 National School Lunch
10.553 National School Breakfast
10.558 After School Snack Program

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between
Type A and Type B programs: $300,000

Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee? yes X no
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EXHIBIT K-6

GARFIELD BOARD OF EDUCATION
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

Part I - Summary of Auditor’s Results

State Awards Section

Internal Control over major programs:
(1) Material weakness(es} identified?

2) Significant deficiencies identified
that are not considered to be
material weakness(es)?

Type of auditor's report issued on compliance for
major programs

Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be reported
in accordance with N.J, Circular Letter 04-047

Identification of major state programs:
GMIS Number
11-495-034-5120-078
11-495-034-5120-089

11-495-034-5095-002
11-495-034-5120-086

Doltar threshold used to distinguish between
Type A and Type B programs:

Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee?
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X yes no

X  yes none reported
Unqualified

X yes no

Name of State Program or Cluster

Equalization Aid

Special Education Aid

TPAF Social Security Aid

Preschool Education Aid

$1,673,793

yes X no




EXHIBIT K-6
GARFIELD BOARD OF EDUCATION
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

Part 2 — Schedule of Financial Statement Findings
This section identifies the significant deficiencies, material weaknesses, fraud, illegal acts, violations of provisions of

conifracts and grant agreements and abuse related to the financial statements in accordance with Government Auditing
Standards.

Finding 2011-1

Our audit of budget account charges in the General and Special Revenue Fund revealed numerous expenditures
were not charged to the proper budget line accounts,

Criteria or specific requirement:

Proper budget account charges in accordance with NJAC 6A:23A-16.2(f).
Condition:
Budget account charges for tuition, child study team expenses, related and extraordinary services, supplies,
repairs and maintenance, building improvements, equipment and lease purchases were not classified and charged
to the proper budget line accounts. In addition, numerous payroll related expenditures for employees’ salaries
and other employee compensation were also not classified and charged to the proper budget line accounts.
Context:
Approximately $163,000 of budget account charges for tuition, child study team expenses, related and
extraordinary services, $430,000 of budget account charges for repairs and maintenance, building improvements,
equipment and lease purchases and $726,000 of payroll related expenditures were not charged to the proper
budget line accounts.

Cause:

Expenditures were not properly classified and charged to the proper budget line item accounts in accordance with
the Uniform Minimum Chart of Accounts for New Jersey Public Schools.

Effect:

The District’s budget reports may not accurately reflect expenditure classifications in accordance with Uniform
Minimum Chart of Accounts.

Recommendation:

Expenditures be classified and charged to the appropriate budget line accounts in accordance with the Uniform
Minimum Chart of Accounts for New Jersey Public Schools.

Management’s Response:

Management has reviewed this finding and has indicated appropriate corrective action will be implemented.
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EXHIBIT K-6
GARFIELD BOARD OF EDUCATION
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 201¢

Part 2 — Schedule of Financial Statement Findings
This section identifies the significant deficiencies, material weaknesses, fraud, illegal acts, violations of provisions of

contracts and grant agreements and abuse related to the financial statements in accordance with Government Auditing
Standards.

Finding 2011-2

Our audit with respect to payroll related expenditures for contractual employees’ base salaries revealed the
following:

> Certain employees were not paid in accordance with the approved salary guides.
» Certain. employees were compensated for positions or stipends which were not included in approved

contractual agreements or Board resolutions.

Criteria or specific requirement:

Internal control procedures pertaining to payroll processing,

Condition:
Payroll payments for base salary were not in agreement with the salary guides of the bargaining unit contracts
approved by the Board. In addition, employees were compensated for positions or stipends which were not
included in the approved contractual agreements or Board resolutions.

Context:
Four (4) employees® base salary payments were not in agreement with the approved salary guide amounts. In
addition, the position of Substitute Coordinator and stipends for In-School Suspension Supervisor could not be
verified to an approved contractual agreement or Board resolution.

Cause:

Amounts paid for base pay and certain stipends were not in agreement with approved contractual agreements or
Board resolutions.

Effect:
Payments for contractual salaries may be unauthorized and not be in accordance with approved amounts.

Recommendation:

Internal control procedures be revised to ensure employee base salary payments are calculated in accordance with
the approved salary guides and include only positions and stipends which have been approved in the respective
contractual agreements or Board resolutions.

Management’s Response:

Management has reviewed this finding and has indicated corrective action will be implemented.
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EXHIBIT K-6
GARFIELD BOARD OF EDUCATION
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

Part 2 — Schedule of Financial Statement Findings
This section identifies the significant deficiencies, material weaknesses, fraud, illegal acts, violations of provisions of

contracts and grant agreements and abuse related to the financial statements in accordance with Government Auditing
Standards.

Finding 2011-3

Certain terminated employees were paid their regular contractual salary after their last official day of
employment.

Criteria or specific requirement:

Internal controls pertaining to Payroll Processing.
Condition:

Regular salary payments were made to terminated employees after their last official day of employment. We
noted these payments were subsequently reversed and voided in the subsequent payroll period.

Context:

Three (3) terminated employees out of fifteen former employees tested were paid subsequent to their last day of
employment. All three payments were subsequently corrected.

Cause:;

Terminated employees were not removed from the payroll system in a timely manner.
Effect:

Salary payments were made for services not rendered by former employees.

Recommendation:

Internal control procedures be reviewed and revised to ensure terminated employees are removed timely from the
payroll system.

Management’s Response:

Management has reviewed this finding and has indicated corrective action will be implemented.
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EXHIBIT K-6
GARFIELD BOARD OF EDUCATION
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

Part 2 — Schedule of Financial Statement Findings
This section identifies the significant deficiencies, material weaknesses, fraud, illegal acts, violations of provisions of

contracts and grant agreements and abuse related to the financial statements in accordance with Government Auditing
Standards.

Finding 2011-4
Our audit with respect to the payment of compensated absences revealed the following:

» A payment was made to an employee prior to separation of service.
> The per diem rates were not calculated in accordance with State regulations.

Criteria or specific requirement:

Internal controls pertaining to Payroll Processing.
New Jersey Administrative Code
New Jersey Statutes

Condition:
An employee was paid unused sick and vacation leave benefits prior to the date of retirement. In addition, the
number of days used to calculate the per diem rate for certain employees should have been 200 days, rather than
183 days for 10 month employees and 260 days, rather than the 220 days, for 12 month employees as required by
the State Administrative Code and Statutes.

Context:
One employee was paid accumulated unused sick and vacation leave benefits totalling $30,000 seven months
prior to the time of separation of service. In addition, five employees were overpaid a combined amount of
$23,859 for unused sick and vacation leave benefits due to the incorrect calculation of the per diem rate.

Cause:

Compensated absence benefit payments were not made or calculated in accordance with New Jersey
Administrative Code and Statutes.

Effect:

Employees were paid prior to and in amounts in excess of the amounts allowed by the State Administrative Code
Statutes.

Recommendation:

The payment of compensated absences (ic unused sick and vacation leave benefits) be made in accordance with
the New Jersey Administrative Code and Statutes.

Management’s Response:

Management has reviewed this finding and has indicated corrective action will be implemented.
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EXHIBIT K-6
GARFIELD BOARD OF EDUCATION
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

Part 2 — Schedule of Financial Statement Findings

This section identifies the significant deficiencies, material weaknesses, fraud, illegal acts, violations of provisions of
contracts and grant agreements and abuse related to the financial statements in accordance with Government Auditing
Standards.

Finding 2011-5

Our audit with respect to payroll related expenditures for substitute teachers, extracurricular stipends and home
instruction services revealed the following:

» Written supporting documentation was not obtained prior to the payment of substitute teachers’
compensation.

Compensation rates for substitute teachers were not formally approved by Board resolution.

Supporting documentation for extracurricular stipend payments were not available in certain instances.
Extracurricular stipends were not paid in accordance with approved Extracurricular Activity Assignment
resolutions.

Supporting documentation for home instruction services was incomplete.

A7 YV VY

Criteria or specific requirement:

Internal control procedures pertaining to payroll processing.

Condition:
Payroll payments for substitute teachers and extracurricular stipends were made prior to the completion of a
timely submitted and approved payroll voucher. In addition, certain extracurricular stipends were not paid in

accordance with the amounts approved by Board resolution. We noted certain extracurricular payments which
were in excess of approved amounts. Home instruction payroll vouchers did not detail specific times of service.

Context:
Substitute teachers pay tested was not documented by approved payroll vouchers on file in the Payroll
Department nor were the daily rates paid approved by Board resolution. Numerous individuals were over paid

for “shared” extracurricular stipend positions. Four (4) of nine (9) home instructors’ payroll vouchers did not
detail specific times of service.

Cause:

See Condition.
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EXHIBIT K-6
GARFIELD BOARD OF EDUCATION
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011
Part 2 — Schedule of Financial Statement Findings
This section identifies the significant deficiencies, material weaknesses, fraud, illegal acts, violations of provisions of
contracts and grant agreements and abuse related to the financial statements in accordance with Government Auditing
Standards.
Finding 2011-5 (Continued)
Effect:

Payments for substitute teachers, extracurricular stipends and home instruction services may be unauthorized and
not in accordance with approved amounts.

Recommendation:
With respect to substitute teachers’ pay, extracurricular stipends and home instruction services:

e Detailed payroll vouchers be obtained, approved and reviewed prior to the payment of compensation.
o Payments be made in accordance with contractual agreements and Board approved rates and amounts.

Management’s Response:

Management has reviewed this finding and has indicated corrective action will be implemented.
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EXHIBIT K-6
GARFIELD BOARD OF EDUCATION
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

Part 2 — Schedule of Financial Statement Findings
This section identifies the significant deficiencies, material weaknesses, fraud, illegal acts, violations of provisions of

contracts and grant agreements and abuse related to the financial statements in accordance with Government Auditing
Standards.

Finding 2011-6
Original bills invoiced to the District for occupational therapy services, physical therapy services, and student

evaluations and observations were not detailed by student and frequency of service. In addition, vendor provided
timesheets were either not available or did not support amounts invoiced in certain instances.

Criteria or specific requirement:
Internal Control procedures pertaining to accounts payable processing and cash disbursements.

Condition:
Certain vendor invoices for occupational therapy services, physical therapy services, and student evaluations and
observations provided only the number of hours invoiced for the time period billed (i.e., weekly, monthly)} and in
limited instances also were detailed by date. Timesheets subsequently provided by some of the vendors were not
available for all amounts invoiced or did not support amounts invoiced in certain instances.

Context:
None of the invoices reviewed were detailed by student and frequency of service to the respective student. Eight
(8) invoices from three (3) different vendors were either not supported by vendor timesheets or timesheets
provided did not support amounts invoiced.

Cause:
Vendor invoices were not properly reviewed by District personnel prior to payment,

Effect:

Financial statements may be misstated due to expenditures recorded which are not properly supported and may
not have been received by the District.

Recommendation:
Vendor invoices for occupational therapy services, physical therapy services, and student evaluations and

observations be detailed with student initials and frequency of service, and they be supported by detailed vendor
timesheets approved by District personnel.

Management’s Response:

Management has reviewed this finding and has indicated that it will reinforce its procedures with the
administrator of the Special Education Department to ensure corrective action is taken.
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_ EXHIBIT K-6
GARFIELD BOARD OF EDUCATION
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

Part 2 — Schedule of Financial Statement Findings
This section identifies the significant deficiencies, material weaknesses, frand, illegal acts, violations of provisions of

contracts and grant agreements and abuse related to the financial statements in accordance with Government Auditing
Standards.

Finding 2011-7

Our audit revealed several duplicate payments were made to vendors for special education tuition and other
special education related services.

Criteria or specific requirement:

Internal Control procedures pertaining to accounts payable processing and cash disbursements.
Condition:
Certain vendors were paid in excess of amounts invoiced for tuition, occupational therapy, physical therapy,

nursing and other special education related services. Duplicate purchase orders and vendor invoices were
processed for the same student and the same month resulting in a double encumbrance and double payment.

Coniext:

Duplicate purchase orders were issued in four (4) instances which resuited in the overpayment of special
education related costs in the amount of $12,000.

Cause:
Vendor invoices were not properly reviewed to ensure that the services were not previously invoiced and paid.

Effect:

Financial statements may be misstated due to expenditures recorded in excess of amounts invoiced for services
received by the District.

Recommendation:

Greater care be exercised in reviewing and processing of vendor payments for special education services to ensure
duplicate purchase orders and invoices are not processed and paid for the same services.

Management’s Response:

Management has reviewed this finding and has indicated that it will reinforce its procedures with the
administrator of the Special Education Department to ensure corrective action is taken.
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EXHIBIT K-6
GARFIELD BOARD OF EDUCATION
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

Part 2 - Schedule of Financial Statement Findings
This section identifies the significant deficiencies, material weaknesses, fraud, illegal acts, violations of provisions of

contracts and grant agreements and abuse related to the financial statements in accordance with Government Auditing
Standards.

Finding 2011-8

Our review of transportation bills for special education students revealed certain students receiving transportation
services that could not be verified to either a tuition bill or state debit/credit memo, several of which appeared on
multiple months of paid transportation bilis.

Criteria or specific requirement;

Internal Control procedures pertaining to accounts payable processing and cash disbursements,

Condition:
Certain special education students listed on certain invoices for transportation services could not be traced to a
tuition bill or state/credit memo of the respective school where the students were being transported to per the
transportation vendors’ invoice,

Context:
Five (5) students transported to three (3) different schools for up to six (6) months were not listed on the
respective school’s tuition bills or student enrollment information during the period for which the District paid
for transportation services.

Cause:

Students listed on transportation bills were not traced to corresponding tuition bills and/or State debit/credit
documentation.

Effect;

Financial statements may be misstated due to expenditures recorded for services paid for which were not
provided to the District.

Recommendation;

Transportation invoices for special education students be reviewed and verified to tuition contracts, tuition bills or
other documentation to ensure students are attending respective schools that transportation services are being
provided for.

Management’s Response:

Management has reviewed this finding and has indicated that it will reinforce its procedures with the
administrator of the Special Education Department to ensure corrective action is taken,
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EXHIBIT K-6
GARFIELD BOARD OF EDUCATION
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

Part 2 — Schedule of Financial Statement Findings

'This section identifies the significant deficiencies, material weaknesses, fraud, illegal acts, violations of provisions of
contracts and grant agreements and abuse related to the financial statements in accordance with Government Auditing
Standards.

Finding 2011-9

Instances were noted where the District was billed and paid for special education tuition or transportation services
for students where their respective IEP indicated the student Jeft the District during the period the District was billed
for services. We also noted the District was billed for special education tuition and related services that were not
required as part of the respective student’s IEP. In addition, it was noted that the District was billed for special
education tuition and related services in which the District had no record of the student on file.

Criteria or specific requirement:

Internal Control procedures pertaining to accounts payable processing and cash disbursements.

Condition:

Special education students’ IEP’s indicated that students were no longer in District during the period the District
was billed for tuition or transportation services of the respective student. The District was also billed for related
services that were not included in the student’s IEP. In addition, the District was also billed for special education
services for students that could not be located in either the current or archived student database.

Context:

Cause:

Effect:

Eight (8) students were billed in the amount of $49,400 for various services in which the TEP indicated that the
student was no longer in the District. The District was billed in the amount of $55,700 for special education
tuition and related services which were not required as a part of the respective student’s IEP. The District was
billed for four (4) students in the amount of $23,300 who could not be located in the student database.

Vendor invoices for special education tuition, transportation and related services were not verified to students
IEP’s and the student database.

Financial statements may be misstated due to expenditures recorded for services which were not provided to the
District.
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EXHIBIT K-6
GARFIELD BOARD OF EDUCATION
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

Part 2 — Schedule of Financial Statement Findings
This section identifies the significant deficiencies, material weaknesses, fraud, illegal acts, violations of provisions of
contracts and grant agreements and abuse related to the financial statements in accordance with Government Auditing
Standards.

Finding 2011-9 (Continued)

Recommendation:

Students listed on special education tuition, transportation and related services invoices be verified to the respective
student’s IEP and student database to ensure that the students invoiced are in District and are eligible to receive the
respective services.

Management’s Response:

Management has reviewed this finding and has indicated that it will reinforce its procedures with the
administrator of the Special Education Department to ensure corrective action is taken.
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EXHIBIT K-6
GARFIELD BOARD OF EDUCATION
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS (CONT’D)
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011
Part 3 — Schedule of Federal and State Award Findings and Questioned Costs (Cont’d)
This section identifies the significant deficiencies, material weaknesses, and instances of noncompliance, including
questioned costs, related to the audit of major federal and state programs, as required by OMB Circular A-133and New

Jersey OMB’s Circular 04-04.

CURRENT YEAR FEDERAL AWARDS

Finding 2011-10

Our audit revealed numerous salary related encumbrances in the Special Revenue Fund which were not property
reported at June 30, 2011,

Federal program information:

Title 84.010A
Title 1 - SIA 84.010A
Title I - ARRA 84.389

Criteria or specific requirement:

Federal Grant Compliance Supplement — Allowable Costs
Condition:

Salary encumbrances were overstated in the amount of $11,583 for certain programs and understated in the amount
of $9,766 for other programs.

Questioned Costs:

Noane,
Context:

Approximately $21,349 of salary related encumbrances were not properly recorded at year end.
Cause:

Open purchase orders were not adjusted to reflect actual encumbrance balances at year end.
Effect:

Budgetary expenditures may be overstated or understated for salary encumbrances.
Recommendation;

Open purchase orders be reviewed at year end to ensure that outstanding encumbrances are valid and properly
recorded in the District’s accounting tecords.

Management’s Response:

Management has reviewed this finding and has indicated it will revise its procedures to ensure corrective action
is taken.
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EXHIBIT K-6
GARFIELD BOARD OF FDUCATION
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS (CONT’D)
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011
Part 3 — Schedule of Federal and State Award Findings and Questioned Costs (Cont'd)
This section identifies the significant deficiencies, material weaknesses, and instances of noncompliance, including
questioned costs, related to the audit of major federal and state programs, as required by OMB Circular A-133and New

Jersey OMB’s Circular 04-04.

CURRENT YEAR FEDERAL AWARDS

Finding 2011-11

Our audit revealed that reimbursements requested and received for Title 1 and Title 1 SIA for the program years
2008/2009 and 2009/2010 exceeded the amount of program expenditures incurred for the grant period.

Federal program information:

Title I 84.010A
Title I - SIA 84.010A

Criteria or specific requirement:

Federal Grant Compliance Supplement — Cash Management
Condition:

Reimbursements requested through the Electronic Web Enabled Grant (EWEG) system for the years 08/09 and
09/10 exceeded the amounts expended for Title I and Title I-SIA programs.

Questioned Costs:
None,
Context:

Reimbursements requested and received for Title I and Title I SIA exceeded the amount expended by 563,000 and
$33,000, respectively.

Cause:
Amounts requested were not in agreement with amounts expended.
Effect:
Reimbursements received exceeded the amount of program expenditures resulting in overpayments.

Recommendation:

Federal program expenditure reimbursements be requested based upon actual grant program expenditures made
during the grant period.

Management’s Response;

Management has reviewed this finding and has indicated it will revise its procedures to ensure corrective action
is taken.
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EXHIBIT K-6
GARFIELD BOARD OF EDUCATION
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS (CONT’D)
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

Part 3 — Schedule of Federal and State Award Findings and Questioned Costs (Cont’d)
This section identifies the significant deficiencies, material weaknesses, and instances of noncompliance, including

questioned costs, related to the audit of major federal and state programs, as required by OMB Circular A-133and New
Jersey OMB’s Circular 04-04.

CURRENT YEAR STATE AWARDS

Finding 2011-12

Our audit of purchases and procedures related to compliance with the Public School Contracts Law revealed the
following:

o Contracts awarded through State contracts and Educational Data Services (Ed Data) were not approved by
Board resolution.

o Purchases and contracts for the acquisition of equipment, building improvements and renovations and
equipment rental agreements were made in excess of the bid threshold and were not procured through public
bids advertised in accordance with 18A:18A.

o Competitive quotations were not obtained from vendors for purchases made in excess of the quote threshold for
bus repairs.

o Vendor political contribution disclosure forms were not on file in all instances where required.

State program information:

Equalization Aid 495-034-5120-078
Special Education Aid 495-034-5120-089

Criteria or specific requirement:

State Grant Compliance Supplement — State Aid — Public
NIJSA 18A:18A — Public School Contracts Law

Condition:

Purchases and contracts for goods and services were made which were not in accordance with the procedures
specified in the Public School Contracts Law.

Questioned Costs:

Unknown.
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EXHIBIT K-6
GARFIELD BOARD OF EDUCATION
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS (CONT’D)
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2010
Part 3 — Schedule of Federal and State Award Findings and Questioned Costs (Cont’d)
This section identifies the significant deficiencies, material weaknesses, and instances of noncompliance, including
questioned costs, related to the audit of major federal and state programs, as required by OMB Circular A-133and New

Jersey OMB’s Circular 04-04, as amended.

CURRENT YFAR STATE AWARDS (Continued)

Finding 2011-12

Context:
We noted three contracts were awarded through either State contracts or through Educational Data Services, which
were not approved in the minutes. We also noted the acquisition of instructional equipment, building improvements
and renovations, and equipment rental agreements that were in excess of the bid threshold which were not obtained
through advertised public bids. We noted bus repairs in excess of the quote threshold for which quotations were not

obtained from vendors. We noted certain vendors did not have political contribution disclosure statements on file
that were required to file such statements.

Effect:
Noncompliance with bidding requirements of the Public School Contracts Law.
Recommendation:

Internal control procedures be reviewed and revised to ensure purchases and contract awards in excess of the bid or
quote threshold are made in accordance with the Public School Contracts Law.

Management’s Response:

Management has reviewed this finding and has indicated it will review and revise its procedures to ensure corrective
action is taken.
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EXHIBIT K-6
GARFIELD BOARD OF EDUCATION
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS (CONT’D)
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011
Part 3 — Schedule of Federal and State Award Findings and Questioned Costs (Cont’d)
This section identifies the significant deficiencies, material weaknesses, and instances of noncompliance, including
questioned costs, related to the audit of major federal and state programs, as required by OMB Circular A-133and New

Jersey OMB’s Circular 04-04.

CURRENT YEAR STATE AWARDS

Finding 2011-13
The final transfer report submitted to the County was not in agreement with the final budget appropriation report
provided for audit. In addition, the transfers to Capital Outlay for facilities acquisition and construction services

budget accounts were not submitted to and approved by the Executive County Superintendent.

Information on the State Program

State Aid-Public

Criteria or specific reguirement:

N.J. Department of Education — Specific Grant Compliance for State Aid - Public

Condition:

The final transfer report amounts were not in agreement with the amounts reported in the final budget appropriation
reports. Transfers to the Capital Outlay facilities acquisition and construction services budget line accounts were

not specifically requested and approved by the Executive County Superintendent.

Questioned Costs

Unknown.

Context

Certain transfers between budget appropriation accounts require prior approval from the N.J. State Department of
Education, however the final transfer report did not reflect these amounts nor was specific approval requested and

granted from the Executive County Superintendent for transfers to the capital outlay facilities acquisition and
construction services accounts in the amount of $302,241,
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GARFIELD BOARD OF EDUCATION
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS (CONT’D)
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 34, 2011

Part 3 — Schedule of Federal and State Award Findings and Questioned Costs (Cont’d)
This section identifies the significant deficiencies, material weaknesses, and instances of noncompliance, including

questioned costs, related to the audit of major federal and state programs, as required by OMB Circular A-133and New

EXHIBIT K-6
Jersey OMB’s Circular 04-04. |

CURRENT YEAR STATE AWARDS

Finding 2011-13 (Continued)

Effect

Line item transfers may be disallowed by State Department of Education.
Cause

Unknown,

Recommendation:

The transfer reports submitted to the County be in agreement with the final budget report and transfers to non-
equipment lines in Capital Outlay be specifically approved by the Executive County Superintendent,

Management’s Response:

Management has reviewed this finding and has indicated it will revise its procedures to ensure corrective action
is taken.
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EXHIBIT K-6
GARFIELD BOARD OF EDUCATION
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

Part 3 — Schedule of Federal and State Award Findings and Questioned Costs
This section identifies the significant deficiencies, material weaknesses, and instances of noncompliance including
questioned costs, related to the audit of major federal and state programs, as required by OMB Circular A-133 and New

Jersey OMB’s Circular 04-04.

CURRENT YEAR STATE AWARDS

Finding 2011-14

Our audit of the Application for State School Aid (ASSA) revealed the following:

e Low income students reported on the District workpapers exceeded the number of students reported on the
ASSA.

e Detail workpapers for resident LEP not low income students were not available to support number of
students reported on the ASSA.

State program information:

Equalization Aid 11-495-034-5120-078
Special Education Aid 11-495-034-5120-089

Criteria or specific requirement:

State of New Jersey Grant Compliance Supplement

Condition:
The District workpapers for low income students was not in agreement with the number of students reported as
low income on the ASSA. Also, the number of students reported as resident LEP not low income on the ASSA

were not supported by a detail list of students by name and grade.

Questioned Costs:

Unknown.
Context:

A difference of eight (8) students was reported for fow income students. Also, 221 students reported as resident
LEP not low income on the ASSA were not supported by a detailed District workpaper.

Effect:

The District may not be reporting all eligible low income students and resident LEP low income students
reported by the District could not be verified as to eligibility.

Cause:

See Condition.
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EXHIBIT K-6
GARFIELD BOARD OF EDUCATION
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

Part 3 — Schedule of Federal and State Award Findings and Questioned Costs
This section identifies the significant deficiencies, material weaknesses, and instances of noncompliance including
questioned costs, related to the audit of major federal and state programs, as required by OMB Circular A-133 and New

Jersey OMB’s Circular 04-04,

CURRENT YEAR STATE AWARDS

Finding 2011-14 (Continued)
Recommendation:

Internal controls be enhanced to ensure that documentation is retained and in agreement with the students
reported on the Application for State School Aid.

Managementi’s Response:

Management has reviewed this finding and has indicated it will revise its procedures to ensure corrective action
is taken.
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EXHIBIT K-7

GARFIELD BOARD OF EDUCATION
SUMMARY SCHEDULF. OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

This section identifies the status of prior-year findings related to the basic financial statements and federal and state awards
that are required to be reported in accordance with Chapter 6.12 of Government Auditing Standards, U.S. OMB Circular A-
133 (section .315(a)(b)) and New Jersey OMB’s Circular 04-04.

STATUS OF PRIOR YEAR FINDINGS

Finding 2010-1
Condition:

Budget account charges for supplies, travel expenses, repairs and maintenance, building improvements and
equipment were not classified and charged to the proper budget line accounts, In addition, certain administrative
salaries were misbudgeted and charged to non-administrative budget line accounts.

Current Status
See Finding 2011-1.

Finding 2010-2

Condition:
Payroll payments for substitutes and extracurricular stipends were made prior to the completion of a timely
submitted and approved payroll voucher. Home Instruction payroll vouchers did not detail specific times of
service and were not approved by District personnel, In addition, certain extracurricular stipends were not paid
in accordance with the amounts approved by Board resolution. We noted certain extracurricular payments which
were in excess of approved amounts.

Current Status
See Finding 2011-5

Finding 2010-3

Condition:
Regular salary payments were made to terminated employees in the payroll period after their termination date.

Current Status

See Finding 2011-3.
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EXHIBIT K-7

GARFIELD BOARD OF EDUCATION
SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

This section identifies the status of prior-year findings related to the basic financial statements and federal and state awards
that are required to be reported in accordance with Chapter 6.12 of Government Auditing Standards, U.S. OMB Circular A-
133 (section .315(a)(b)) and New Jersey OMB’s Circular 04-04.

STATUS OF PRIOR YEAR FINDINGS (Continued)

Finding 2010-4

Condition:

Encumbrances in the amount of $100,569 for salary related charges and an accounts payable in the amount of
$135,000 for special education tuition were overstated at year end,

Current Status
See Finding 2011-10

Finding 2010-5

Condition;
The Title ] final report was not completed and submitted on the Electronic Web-Enabled Grant System (EWEG).

Current Status
Corrective action was taken,

Finding 2010-6

Condition;
Various grant expenditures were disallowed due to the District failing to adhere to New Jersey Public School
Contracts Law and Federal Regulations when hiring professional development service providers and procuring
equipment which exceeded the State bid threshold. In addition, payments were made to professional
development services providers prior to the services being rendered and no written contracts were entered into
with these vendors detailing terms of agreement.

Current Status

Corrective action was taken,
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EXHIBIT K-7

GARFIELD BOARD OF EDUCATION
SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

This section identifies the status of prior-year findings related to the basic financial statements and federal and state awards
that are required to be reported in accordance with Chapter 6.12 of Government Auditing Standards, U.S. OMB Circular A-
133 (section .315(a)(b)) and New Jersey OMB’s Circular 04-04.

STATUS OF PRIOR YEAR FINDINGS (Continued)

Finding 2010-7
Condition:

Budget account charges for equipment were and not classified and charged to the proper budget line accounts for
certain Federal grant programs.

Current Status

See Finding 2011-1 as it relates to non-major programs.
Finding 2010-8
Condition:

Budget account charges for certain administrative salaries and travel expenses wete not charged to the proper
budget line accounts.

Current Status
Corrective action was taken.

Finding 2010-9

Condition:
General school supplies, a security access card reader system, smart boards, trailer rentals, building repairs and
professional development costs obtained from various vendors which exceeded the bid threshold of $29,000 were
not publicly advertised for bids, or exceeded the quote threshold of $4,350 where quotes were not obtained, or
where state contracts were not awarded and approved by formal Board resolution.

Current Status

See Finding 2011-12
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